AGL RESOURCES INC Form 10-K February 22, 2012

# **UNITED STATES** SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

### FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

**b** ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES **EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934** 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

OR

"TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-14174

### AGL RESOURCES INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Georgia 58-2210952

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

or organization)

Ten Peachtree Place NE, 404-584-4000

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

(Address and zip code of principal (Registrant's telephone number, including

executive offices) area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered Common Stock, \$5 Par Value

New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act. Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Act. Yes "No b

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company

Large accelerated filer b Accelerated filer " Non-accelerated filer " Smaller reporting company "

(Do not check if smaller reporting

company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes "No b

The aggregate market value of the registrant's voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant, computed by reference to the price at which the registrant's common stock was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity, as of the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was \$3,193,375,611.

The number of shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding as of February 15, 2012 was 117,099,662.

### DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders ("Proxy Statement") to be held May 1, 2012, are incorporated by reference in Part III.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page(s)	
Glossary of Key Terms		3	
Forward-Looking Statements		4	
Part I			
Item 1.	Business	4 – 17	
	Distribution Operations	5 – 10	
	Retail Operations	10 - 12	
	Wholesale Services	12 - 14	
	Midstream Operations	14 – 15	
	Cargo Shipping	15 – 16	
	Other Other	16 –17	
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	17 - 29	
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments	29	
Item 2.	Properties	29	
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	30	
<u>Item 4.</u>	Mine Safety Disclosures	30	
Part II			
<u></u> Item 5.	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder	30 - 31	
	Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities		
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	31 - 32	
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition		
	and Results of Operations	33 - 53	
	Executive Summary	33 - 34	
	Results of Operations	34 - 40	
	Liquidity and Capital Resources	40 - 48	
	Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates	48 - 53	
	Accounting Developments	53	
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	54 - 57	
Item 8.	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	58 - 108	
	Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	58	
	Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial	59	
	Reporting		
	Consolidated Statements of Financial Position	60 - 61	
	Consolidated Statements of Income	62	
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income	63	
	Consolidated Statements of Equity	64	
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	65	
	Note 1 – Organization and Basis of Presentation	66	
	Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies and Methods of	66 - 79	
	Application		
	Note 3 – Merger with Nicor	79 - 81	
	Note 4 – Fair Value Measurements	81 - 83	
	Note 5 – Derivative Instruments	83 - 85	
	Note 6 – Employee Benefit Plans	86 - 89	
	Note 7 – Stock-based and Other Incentive Compensation Plans	90 - 93	
	and Agreements		
	Note 8 – Debt	94 – 96	

	Note 9 – Equity	97
	Note 10 – Non-Wholly-Owned Entities	98 – 99
	Note 11 – Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies	100 - 104
	Note 12 – Income Taxes	104 - 105
	Note 13 – Segment Information	106 - 108
	Note 14 – Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)	108
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	109
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	109
Item 9B.	Other Information	109
Part III		
<u>Item 10.</u>	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	110
<u>Item 11.</u>	Executive Compensation	110
<u>Item 12.</u>	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and	110
	Management and Related Stockholder Matters	
<u>Item 13.</u>	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director	111
	<u>Independence</u>	
<u>Item 14.</u>	Principal Accounting Fees and Services	111
Part IV		
<u>Item 15.</u>	Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules	111 - 120
<u>Signatures</u>		121
Schedule II		122
2		

# GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS

AGL Capital	AGL Capital Corporation
AGL Credit Facility	\$1.3 billion credit agreement entered into by AGL Capital to support the AGL
	Capital commercial paper program
Atlanta Gas Light	Atlanta Gas Light Company
Bcf	Billion cubic feet
Bridge Facility	Credit agreement entered into by AGL Capital Corporation to finance a portion
	of the Nicor merger
Central Valley	Central Valley Gas Storage, LLC
Chattanooga Gas	Chattanooga Gas Company
Chicago Hub	A venture of Nicor Gas, which provides natural gas storage and
<u> </u>	transmission-related services to marketers and gas distribution companies
California Commission	California Public Utilities Commission, the agency that regulates utilities in California
EBIT	Earnings before interest and taxes, a non-GAAP measure that includes operating income and other income and excludes financing costs, including interest on debt and income tax expense each of which we evaluate on a consolidated level. As an indicator of our operating performance, EBIT should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, earnings before income taxes, or net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. as determined in accordance with GAAP
ERC	Environmental remediation costs associated with our distribution operations
	segment which are generally recoverable through rate mechanisms
FASB	Financial Accounting Standards Board
FERC	Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Fitch	Fitch Ratings
Florida Commission	Florida Public Service Commission, the state regulatory agency for Florida City Gas
GAAP	Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
Georgia Commission	Georgia Public Service Commission, the state regulatory agency for Atlanta
2018.m 20111111111111111111111111111111111111	Gas Light
Georgia Natural Gas	The name under which SouthStar does business in Georgia
Golden Triangle Storage	Golden Triangle Storage, Inc.
Hampton Roads	Virginia Natural Gas' pipeline project which connects its northern and southern
P COLUMN	pipelines
Heating Degree Days	A measure of the effects of weather on our businesses, calculated when the
ricumg Degree Dujs	average daily temperatures are less than 65 degrees Fahrenheit
Heating Season	The period from November through March when natural gas usage and
ricating Scason	operating revenues are generally higher because weather is colder
Henry Hub	A major interconnection point of natural gas pipelines in Erath, Louisiana
Tiemy Tido	where NYMEX natural gas future contracts are priced
Horizon Pipeline	Horizon Pipeline Company, LLC
Illinois Commission	Illinois Commerce Commission, the state regulatory agency for Nicor Gas
Jefferson Island	Jefferson Island Storage & Hub, LLC
LIBOR	London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
LNG	Liquefied natural gas
LOCOM	Lower of weighted average cost or current market price
LOCOM	Lower of weighted average cost of current market price

Magnalia	Magnalia Enterprisa Haldinga Ina
Magnolia Marketers	Magnolia Enterprise Holdings, Inc.  Marketers calling retail natural gas in Georgia
Marketers	Marketers selling retail natural gas in Georgia
Managan A ang ang ang	and certificated by the Georgia Commission
Merger Agreement	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
	December 6, 2010, as amended by and among
	the Company, Nicor, Apollo
	Acquisition Corp, an Illinois corporation and
	wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
	Ottawa Acquisition LLC, an Illinois Limited
	Liability Company and a wholly owned
1405	subsidiary of the Company
MGP	Manufactured gas plant
Moody's	Moody's Investors Service
New Jersey BPU	New Jersey Board of Public Utilities, the state
	regulatory agency for Elizabethtown Gas
Nicor	Nicor Inc an acquisition completed in
	December 2011 and former holding company
	of Nicor Gas
Nicor Advanced Energy	Prairie Point Energy, LLC, doing business as
	Nicor Advanced Energy
Nicor Gas	Northern Illinois Gas Company, doing
	business as Nicor Gas Company
Nicor Gas Credit Facility	\$700 million credit facility entered into by
	Nicor Gas to support its commercial paper
	program
Nicor Services	Nicor Energy Services Company
Nicor Solutions	Nicor Solutions, LLC
NUI	NUI Corporation – an acquisition completed in
	November 2004
NYMEX	New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc.
OCI	Other comprehensive income
Operating margin	A non-GAAP measure of income, calculated as operating revenues minus cost of goods
	sold, that excludes operation and maintenance expense, depreciation and amortization,
	taxes other than income taxes, and gains or losses on the sale of our assets; these items are
	included in our calculation of operating income as reflected in our Consolidated
	Statements of Income. Operating margin should not be considered an alternative to, or
	more meaningful than, operating income as determined in accordance with GAAP
OTC	Over-the-counter
Pad gas	Volumes of non-working natural gas used to maintain the operational integrity of the
	natural gas storage facility
PBR	Performance-based rate, a regulatory plan that provided economic incentives based on
	natural gas cost performance
PGA	Purchased Gas Adjustment
Piedmont	Piedmont Natural Gas Company, Inc.
Pivotal Utility	Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., doing business as Elizabethtown Gas, Elkton Gas and
•	Florida City Gas
PP&E	Property, plant and equipment
S&P	Standard & Poor's Ratings Services
Sawgrass Storage	Sawgrass Storage, LLC
SEC	Securities and Exchange Commission
Sequent	Sequent Energy Management, L.P.
1	

Seven Seas	Seven Seas Insurance Company, Inc.
SNG	Substitute natural gas, a synthetic form of gas manufactured from coal
SouthStar	SouthStar Energy Services LLC
STRIDE	Atlanta Gas Light's Strategic Infrastructure Development and Enhancement program
Tennessee Authority	Tennessee Regulatory Authority, the state regulatory agency for Chattanooga Gas
Term Loan Facility	\$300 million credit agreement entered into by AGL Capital to repay the \$300 million senior notes due in 2011
TEU	Twenty-foot equivalent unit, a measure of volume in containerized shipping equal to one 20-foot-long container
Triton	Triton Container Investments LLC, a cargo container leasing company in which we have an investment
Tropical Shipping	A wholly owned business and a carrier of containerized freight in the Bahamas and the Caribbean region
VaR	Value at risk is defined as the maximum potential loss in portfolio value over a specified time period that is not expected to be exceeded within a given degree of probability
Virginia Natural Gas	Virginia Natural Gas, Inc.
Virginia Commission	Virginia State Corporation Commission, the state regulatory agency for Virginia Natural Gas
WACOG	Weighted average cost of gas
WNA	Weather normalization adjustment

### Forward-Looking Statements

Certain expectations and projections regarding our future performance referenced in this section and elsewhere in this report, as well as in other reports and proxy statements we file with the SEC or otherwise release to the public and on our website are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the United States federal securities laws and are subject to uncertainties and risks, as itemized in Item 1A "Risk Factors", in this Form 10-K. Senior officers and other employees may also make verbal statements to analysts, investors, regulators, the media and others that are forward-looking.

Forward-looking statements involve matters that are not historical facts, and because these statements involve anticipated events or conditions, forward-looking statements often include words such as "anticipate," "assume," "believe," "can," "could," "estimate," "expect," "forecast," "future," "goal," "indicate," "intend," "may," "outlook," "plan," "potential," "predict," "project," "proposed," "seek," "should," "target," "would," or similar expressions. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our expectations are not guarantees and are based on currently available competitive, financial and economic data along with our operating plans. While we believe that our expectations are reasonable in view of currently available information, our expectations are subject to future events, risks and uncertainties, and there are numerous factors - many beyond our control - that could cause our actual results to vary significantly from our expectations.

Such events, risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, changes in price, supply and demand for natural gas and related products; the impact of changes in state and federal legislation and regulation including any changes related to climate change; actions taken by government agencies on rates and other matters; concentration of credit risk; utility and energy industry consolidation; the impact on cost and timeliness of construction projects by government and other approvals, development project delays, adequacy of supply of diversified vendors, unexpected change in project costs, including the cost of funds to finance these projects; limits on pipeline capacity; the impact of acquisitions and divestitures; our ability to integrate successfully operations that we have or may acquire or develop in the future, including those of Nicor, and realize cost savings and any other synergies related to any such integration, or the risk that any such integration could be more difficult, time-consuming or costly than expected; uncertainty of our expected financial performance following the recent completion of the Nicor merger; disruption from the recent Nicor merger making it more difficult to maintain relationships with customers, employees or suppliers; direct or indirect effects on our business, financial condition or liquidity resulting from any change in our credit ratings resulting from the recent merger with Nicor or otherwise or any change in the credit ratings of our counterparties or competitors; interest rate fluctuations; financial market conditions, including recent disruptions in the capital markets and lending environment and the current economic downturn; and general economic conditions; uncertainties about environmental issues and the related impact of such issues; the impact of changes in weather, including climate change, on the temperature-sensitive portions of our business; the impact of natural disasters such as hurricanes on the supply and price of natural gas; acts of war or terrorism; the outcome of litigation; and other factors discussed elsewhere herein and in our filings with the SEC.

We caution readers that the important factors described elsewhere in this report, among others, could cause our business, results of operations or financial condition to differ significantly from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. There also may be other factors that we cannot anticipate or that are not described in this report that could cause results to differ significantly from our expectations.

Forward-looking statements are only as of the date they are made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of future events, new information or otherwise, except as required under United States federal securities law.

### ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to "we," "us," "our," the "company" and "AGL Resources" are intended to mean consolidated AGL Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries. The operations and businesses described in this filing are owned and operated, and management services provided, by distinct direct and indirect subsidiaries of AGL Resources. AGL Resources was organized and incorporated in 1995 under the laws of the State of Georgia.

### Merger with Nicor

On December 9, 2011, we closed our merger with Nicor and created a combined company with increased scale and scope in the distribution, storage and transportation of natural gas. We are now the nation's largest natural gas distribution company based on customer count. In accordance with the Merger Agreement, each share of Nicor common stock outstanding at the Effective Time (as defined in the Merger Agreement), other than shares to be cancelled, and Dissenting Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement), was converted into the right to receive consideration consisting of (i) \$21.20 in cash and (ii) 0.8382 shares of AGL Resources common stock. Fractional shares were not issued in connection with the merger as Nicor shareholders who would have been entitled to receive a fraction of a share of AGL Resources common stock received cash settlements. Additionally, cash was paid to repurchase stock options and restricted stock units that were awarded for pre-merger services. The total purchase consideration of \$2.5 billion paid to Nicor shareholders was primarily based on the number of Nicor shares outstanding on December 9, 2011, and the volume-weighted average price of AGL Resources common stock on December 8, 2011.

In connection with the Nicor merger, the headquarters of our distribution operations segment moved to Naperville, Illinois during December 2011 and we agreed not to initiate a rate proceeding that would increase our base rates effective prior to December 7, 2014. We have committed to maintain 2,070 full-time equivalent employees involved in the operation of Nicor Gas for a period of three years and maintain the personnel numbers in specific areas of safety oversight of the Nicor Gas system for a period of at least five years. Additionally, we are required to maintain the same level of corporate philanthropy within the communities that Nicor Gas serves.

See the following discussions for more information on the impacts of the Nicor merger on our business. Additionally, see the Executive Summary within Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, as well as Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein, for additional information on the merger. During 2011, we recorded approximately \$68 million (\$55 million net of tax) of transaction expenses associated with the merger with Nicor. These costs are expensed as incurred. The effects of Nicor's results of operations and financial condition on our 2011 results include activity from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011.

### Nature of Our Business

We are an energy services holding company whose principal business is the distribution of natural gas in seven states - Illinois, Georgia, Virginia, New Jersey, Florida, Tennessee and Maryland – through our seven natural gas distribution utilities, including, as a result of the Nicor merger, Nicor Gas. At December 31, 2011, our seven utilities served approximately 4.5 million end-use customers.

In addition to our primary business of the distribution of natural gas, we are involved in several related and complementary businesses. Our retail operations segment serves more than one million retail customers and markets natural gas and related home services to end-use customers in Georgia, Illinois, Ohio, Florida and New York. Our wholesale services segment provides natural gas storage arbitrage and related activities, natural gas asset management and related logistics activities for each of our utilities as well as for non-affiliated companies. Our midstream operations segment provides natural gas storage arbitrage and related activities and engages in the development and operation of high-deliverability natural gas storage assets.

As a result of the Nicor merger we are also involved in the shipping industry through our cargo shipping segment, which owns and operates Tropical Shipping, one of the largest containerized cargo carriers serving the Bahamas and the Caribbean.

In connection with the completion of the Nicor merger on December 9, 2011, we revised our operating segments to be the following five operating and reporting segments — distribution operations, retail operations, wholesale services, midstream operations, cargo shipping and one non-operating segment — other. These segments are consistent with how management views and manages our businesses. For additional information on our segments, see Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" under the caption "Results of Operations" and Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

### **Distribution Operations**

Our distribution operations segment is the largest component of our business and includes seven natural gas local distribution utilities. These utilities construct, manage and maintain intrastate natural gas pipelines and distribution facilities and include:

Utility State Number of Approximate customers miles of pipe

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

		(in	
	th	ousands)	
Nicor Gas (1)	Illinois	2,188	34,000
Atlanta Gas			
Light	Georgia	1,541	32,250
Virginia Natural	-		
Gas	Virginia	278	5,500
Elizabethtown	New		
Gas	Jersey	276	3,150
Florida City Gas	Florida	103	3,450
Chattanooga Gas	Tennessee	62	1,600
Elkton Gas	Maryland	6	100
Total		4,454	80,050

(1) Customers as of December 31, 2011.

The focus on the design of our distribution operations is the delivery of safe and reliable natural gas to our end-users. In integrating Nicor Gas into our existing distribution operations, we plan to focus on the standardization of operational processes along with continuing to focus on delivering superior customer service.

### Competition and Customer Demand

All of our utilities face competition from other energy products. Our principal competition is from electric utilities and oil and propane providers serving the residential and commercial markets throughout our service areas. Additionally, the potential displacement or replacement of natural gas appliances with electric appliances is a competitive factor.

Competition for space heating and general household and small commercial energy needs generally occurs at the initial installation phase when the customer or builder makes decisions as to which types of equipment to install. Customers generally continue to use the chosen energy source for the life of the equipment. Customer demand for natural gas could be affected by numerous factors, including:

- changes in the availability or price of natural gas and other forms of energy
  - general economic conditions
    - energy conservation
  - legislation and regulations
  - the capability to convert from natural gas to alternative fuels
    - weather
    - new commercial construction and
      - new housing starts.

Over the last two years there has been some improvement in the economic conditions within the areas we serve. However, there continue to be high rates of unemployment and depressed housing markets with high inventories, significantly reduced new home construction and a slow-down in new commercial development. As a result, we have experienced slight customer losses in our distribution operations segment. Excluding Nicor Gas, our year-over-year consolidated utility customer gain rate was 0.1% in 2011, compared to a loss rate of (0.1)% for 2010. We anticipate overall competition and customer trends in 2012 to be similar to our 2011 results. For the full year 2011 the customer count of Nicor Gas increased by 0.4% compared to 0.2% for 2010.

We continue to mitigate the effects of the current economic conditions on our business through our use of a variety of targeted marketing programs designed to attract new customers and to retain existing customers. These efforts include working to add residential customers, multifamily complexes and commercial customers who use natural gas for purposes other than space heating, as well as evaluating and launching new natural gas related programs, products and services to enhance customer growth, mitigate customer attrition and increase operating revenues.

The natural gas related programs generally emphasize natural gas as the fuel of choice for customers and seek to expand the use of natural gas through a variety of promotional activities. In addition, we partner with numerous third-party entities such as builders, realtors, plumbers, mechanical contractors, architects and engineers to market the benefits of natural gas appliances and to identify potential retention options early in the process for those customers who might consider converting to alternative fuels.

We work with regulators and state agencies in each of our jurisdictions to educate customers throughout the year about energy costs in advance of the Heating Season, and to ensure that those customers qualifying for the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program and other similar programs receive any needed assistance. We expect to continue this focus for the foreseeable future. We have also worked with the Virginia Commission, the Tennessee Authority and the New Jersey BPU to educate our customers about energy efficiency and conservation and to provide rebates and other incentives for the purchase of high-efficiency natural gas-fueled equipment. Additionally, we provide rebates and other incentives to our Nicor Gas customers through similar energy efficiency plans.

Sources of Natural Gas Supply

We purchase natural gas supplies in the open market by contracting with producers and marketers. We also purchase transportation and storage services from interstate pipelines that are regulated by the FERC. When firm pipeline services are temporarily not needed, we may release the services in the secondary market under FERC-approved capacity release provisions, with proceeds reducing the cost of natural gas charged to customers for most of our utilities. Peak-use requirements are met through utilization of company-owned storage facilities, pipeline transportation capacity, purchased storage services and other supply sources, arranged by either our transportation customers or us. We have been able to obtain sufficient supplies of natural gas to meet customer requirements. We believe natural gas supply and pipeline capacity will be sufficiently available to meet market demands in the foreseeable future.

### Utility Regulation and Rate Design

Rate Structures Our utilities operate subject to regulations and oversight of the state regulatory agencies in each of the seven states served by our utilities with respect to rates charged to our customers, maintenance of accounting records and various service and safety matters. Rates charged to our customers vary according to customer class (residential, commercial or industrial) and rate jurisdiction. These agencies approve rates designed to provide us the opportunity to generate revenues to recover all prudently incurred costs, including a return on rate base sufficient to pay interest on debt and provide a reasonable return for our shareholders. Rate base generally consists of the original cost of utility plant in service, working capital and certain other assets; less accumulated depreciation on utility plant in service and net deferred income tax liabilities, and may include certain other additions or deductions.

The natural gas market for Atlanta Gas Light was deregulated in 1997. Accordingly, Marketers, rather than a traditional utility, sell natural gas to end-use customers in Georgia and handle customer billing functions. The Marketers file their rates monthly with the Georgia Commission. As a result of operating in a deregulated environment, Atlanta Gas Light's role includes:

### • distributing natural gas for Marketers

- constructing, operating and maintaining the gas system infrastructure, including responding to customer service calls and leaks
  - reading meters and maintaining underlying customer premise information for Marketers
    - planning and contracting for capacity on interstate transportation and storage systems

Atlanta Gas Light earns revenue by charging rates to its customers based primarily on monthly fixed charges that are periodically adjusted. The Marketers add these fixed charges to customer bills. This mechanism, called a straight-fixed-variable rate design, minimizes the seasonality of Atlanta Gas Light's revenues since the monthly fixed charge is not volumetric or directly weather dependent.

With the exception of Atlanta Gas Light, the earnings of our regulated utilities can be affected by customer consumption patterns that are a function of weather conditions and price levels for natural gas. Specifically, customer demand substantially increases during the Heating Season when natural gas is used for heating purposes. We have various mechanisms, such as weather normalization mechanisms at some of our utilities which limit our exposure to weather changes within typical ranges in the utilities' respective service areas.

All of our utilities, excluding Atlanta Gas Light, are authorized to use natural gas cost recovery mechanisms that allow them to adjust their rates to reflect changes in the wholesale cost of natural gas and to ensure they recover all of the costs prudently incurred in purchasing gas for their customers. Since Atlanta Gas Light does not sell natural gas directly to its end-use customers, it does not need or utilize a natural gas cost recovery mechanism. However, Atlanta Gas Light does maintain inventory for the Marketers in Georgia and recovers the cost of this gas through recovery mechanisms approved by the Georgia Commission.

In addition to natural gas recovery mechanisms, we have other cost recovery mechanisms, such as riders, which vary by utility but allow us to recover certain costs such as environmental remediation and energy efficiency plans.

In traditional rate designs, utilities recover a significant portion of their fixed customer service and pipeline infrastructure costs based on assumed natural gas volumes used by our customers. Three of our utilities have "decoupled" regulatory mechanisms in place that encourage conservation. We believe that separating, or decoupling, the recoverable amount of these fixed costs from the customer throughput volumes, or amounts of natural gas used by our customers, allows us to encourage our customers' energy conservation and ensures a more stable recovery of our fixed costs.

The following table provides regulatory information for our six largest utilities.

	Nicor Gas		Atlanta Gas Light		Virginia Natural Gas		Elizabethto Gas	wn	Florida City Gas		Chattano Gas	oga
Authorized return on rate base												
(1)	8.09	%	8.10	%	7.38	%	7.64	%	7.36	%	7.41	%
Estimated 2011 return on rate												
base (2)	N/A		8.33	%	8.15	%	8.84	%	5.74	%	8.43	%
Authorized return on equity												
(1)	10.17	%	10.75	%	10.00	%	10.30	%	11.25	%	10.05	%
Estimated 2011 return on												
equity (2)	N/A		11.20	%	11.97	%	12.81	%	8.53	%	12.24	%
Authorized rate base % of												
equity (1)	51.1	%	51.0	%	45.4	%	47.9	%	36.8	%	46.1	%
Rate base included in 2011												
return on equity (in millions)												
(2)	\$1,485		\$1,317		\$516		\$ 476		\$163		\$92	
Weather normalization (3)					ü		ü				ü	
Decoupled or												
straight-fixed-variable rates												
(4)			ü								ü	
Regulatory infrastructure												
program rates (5)			ü				ü					
Bad debt rider (6)	ü		-				-					
Synergy sharing policy (7)			ü									
Last decision on change in												
rates (8)	Oct. 2009	)	Oct. 2010	1	Dec 2011		Dec. 2009	)	N/A		May 201	0
(1) The outhorized return or										out	•	

- (1) The authorized return on rate base, return on equity, and percentage of equity were those authorized as of December 31, 2011.
  - (2) Estimates based on principles consistent with utility ratemaking in each jurisdiction.
- (3) Involves regulatory mechanisms that allow us to recover our costs in the event of unseasonal weather, but are not direct offsets to the potential impacts of weather and customer consumption on earnings. These mechanisms are designed to help stabilize operating results by increasing base rate amounts charged to customers when weather is warmer than normal and decreasing amounts charged when weather is colder than normal.
- (4) Decoupled and straight-fixed-variable rate designs allow for the recovery of fixed customer service costs separately from assumed natural gas volumes used by our customers. The decoupled rate design for Virginia Natural Gas expired in December 2011.
  - (5) Includes programs that update or expand our distribution systems and liquefied natural gas facilities.
- (6) Involves the recovery (or refund) of the amount of bad debt expense over (or under) an established benchmark expense.
  - (7) Involves the recovery of 50% of net synergy savings achieved on future acquisitions.
- (8) In connection with the Nicor merger, we agreed not to initiate a rate proceeding that would increase our base rates for Nicor Gas effective prior to December 9, 2014.

# **Recent Regulatory Actions**

Nicor Gas In May 2011, the Illinois Commission approved an energy efficiency plan for Nicor Gas pursuant to an Illinois law that requires local gas distribution utilities to establish plans to achieve specified energy savings goals and

provides utilities with a rider to collect the costs from customers. Under its approved plan, we estimate that Nicor Gas would bill approximately \$155 million to customers under the rider, over a three year period which commenced June 1, 2011, to fund the costs of various energy savings programs identified in the filing. This new energy efficiency plan rider replaced the rider previously in effect. The costs under the rider are subject to annual review by the Illinois Commission.

On July 1, 2009, Nicor Gas filed a petition seeking re-approval from the Illinois Commission of the operating agreement that governs many inter-company transactions between Nicor Gas and its affiliates. The petition was filed pursuant to a requirement contained in the Illinois Commission order approving Nicor Gas's most recent general rate increase and requested that the operating agreement be re-approved without change. A number of parties intervened in the proceeding (the "operating agreement proceeding") and sought modifications on a prospective basis to the operating agreement. Among the proposals were several by the Illinois Commission Staff and intervenors that would preclude Nicor Gas from continuing to provide certain services to support warranty products that are sold by Nicor Services. Specifically, Nicor Services had used Nicor Gas personnel to assist in some sales solicitation for these warranty products. The Illinois Commission was required to evaluate future transactions between Nicor Gas and its affiliates in connection with the joint application of AGL Resources, Nicor and Nicor Gas for approval of the merger of AGL Resources and Nicor (the "merger proceeding"). The Illinois Commission Administrative Law Judge assigned to the merger proceeding decided to address the matters raised in the operating agreement proceeding in the merger proceeding. As a result, Nicor Gas is no longer permitted to use its call center personnel to solicit its affiliates' products, most notably the warranty products. This is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

On January 1, 2000, Nicor Gas instituted a PBR plan for natural gas costs. Under the PBR plan, Nicor Gas' total gas supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark. Savings and losses relative to the benchmark were determined annually and shared equally with sales customers. The PBR plan was terminated effective January 1, 2003. The PBR plan is currently under review by the Illinois Commission as there are allegations that Nicor Gas acted improperly in connection with the PBR plan. In February 2012, we committed to a stipulated resolution of issues with the Illinois Commission, which includes crediting Nicor Gas customers \$64 million, but does not constitute an admission of fault. The stipulated resolution is subject to review and approval by the Illinois Commission. The Citizens Utility Board and the Illinois Attorney General's Office are not parties to the stipulation resolution and continue to pursue their claims in this proceeding. Evidentiary hearings on this matter are scheduled to begin on February 28, 2012. We do not expect the stipulated resolution to affect our 2011 or 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income, as the \$64 million proposed credit is consistent with the estimated liability we recorded for this matter as part of our accounting for the merger with Nicor. For more information on the PBR plan see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

On February 2, 2010, the Illinois Commission approved Nicor Gas' previously filed bad debt rider. This rider provides for the recovery from (or credit to) Nicor Gas customers of the difference between Nicor Gas' actual bad debt experience on an annual basis and the \$63 million benchmark bad debt expense included in its base rates for the respective year. Costs incurred for bad debt expense are subject to annual review by the Illinois Commission.

Virginia Natural Gas On December 20, 2011, the Virginia Commission approved an annual increase of \$11 million in base rate revenues and established an authorized return on equity of 10% for Virginia Natural Gas with an overall return on rate base set at 7.38%. Additionally, \$3.1 million of costs previously recovered through base rates will now be recovered through the company's gas cost recovery rate. Customer's bills will be credited to refund the difference between the final approved rates and an interim rate increase, which began with usage on and after October 1, 2011. The new rate is expected to increase the average residential customer's monthly bill by less than \$3.50 per month depending on usage.

### **Environmental Remediation Costs**

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. These laws and regulations require us to remove or remedy the effect on the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. The following table provides more information on the costs related to remediation of our former MGP operating sites.

				Exp	ected costs	
	Cost estimate		Amount	C	over next	
In millions	range (1)	range (1) recorded		twelve months		
	\$134 -					
Illinois	\$216	\$	134	\$	19	
Georgia and Florida	42 - 98		58		7	
New Jersey	124 - 174		124		9	
North Carolina	10 - 16		11		2	
	\$310 -					
Total	\$504	\$	327	\$	37	

(1) Our ERC liabilities are customarily reported estimates of future remediation costs for our former operating sites that are contaminated based on probabilistic models of potential costs and on an undiscounted basis. However, we have not yet performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites in Illinois, which will be completed in 2012.

As we continue to conduct the actual remediation and enter into cleanup contracts, we are increasingly able to provide conventional engineering estimates of the likely costs of many elements of the remediation program. These estimates contain various engineering uncertainties, and we regularly attempt to refine and update these engineering estimates. These costs are primarily recovered through rate riders.

See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Estimates", for additional information about our environmental remediation liabilities. Also see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for information on our environmental remediation efforts.

### Capital Projects

We continue to focus on capital discipline and cost control, while moving ahead with projects and initiatives that we expect will have current and future benefits to us and our customers, provide an appropriate return on invested capital and ensure the safety, reliability and integrity of our utility infrastructure. The following table and discussions provide updates on some of our larger capital projects at our distribution operations segment. These programs update or

expand our distribution systems to improve system reliability and meet operational flexibility and growth. Our anticipated expenditures for these programs in 2012 are discussed in 'Liquidity and Capital Resources' under the caption 'Cash Flows from Financing Activities'.

Dollars in millions	Utility	•	penditures in 2011	penditures to date	Miles of pipe	Year project	Anticipated year of
	•		111 2011	to date	replaced	began	completion
Pipeline replacement	Atlanta Gas						
program	Light	\$	70	\$ 568	2,531	1998	2013
Integrated System							
Reinforcement	Atlanta Gas						
Program	Light		89	141	n/a	2009	2012
Integrated Customer	Atlanta Gas						
Growth Program	Light		7	12	n/a	2010	2012
Enhanced							
infrastructure	Elizabethtown						
program	Gas		22	90	88	2009	2012
Total		\$	188	\$ 811	2,619		

Atlanta Gas Light Our STRIDE program is comprised of the ongoing pipeline replacement program, the Integrated System Reinforcement Program (i-SRP), and Integrated Customer Growth Program (i-CGP). The purpose of the i-SRP program under STRIDE is to upgrade our distribution system and liquefied natural gas facilities in Georgia, improve our system reliability and operational flexibility, and create a platform to meet long-term forecasted growth. Our i-CGP authorizes Atlanta Gas Light to extend its pipeline facilities to serve customers in areas without pipeline access and create new economic development opportunities in Georgia. Under STRIDE, we are required to file an updated ten-year forecast of infrastructure requirements under i-SRP along with a new construction plan every three years for review and approval by the Georgia Commission.

Virginia Natural Gas In January 2012 Virginia Natural Gas filed an accelerated infrastructure replacement program with the Virginia Commission. The program was filed pursuant to a Virginia statute that provides a regulatory cost recovery mechanism to recover the costs associated with certain infrastructure replacement programs. Our proposed program is for a five-year period and includes a maximum allowance for capital expenditure of \$25 million per year, not to exceed \$105 million in total over the five-year period. The Virginia Commission has six months to review and render a decision on this proposed program.

Elizabethtown Gas The New Jersey BPU-approved accelerated enhanced infrastructure program was created in response to the New Jersey Governor's request for utilities to assist in the economic recovery by increasing infrastructure investments. On May 16, 2011, the New Jersey BPU approved Elizabethtown Gas' request to spend an additional \$40 million under this program before the end of 2012. Costs associated with the investment in this program are recovered through periodic adjustments to base rates. We expect to file for an extension of the program in 2012.

### Asset Management Agreements

Some of our utilities have entered into asset management agreements with Sequent, our affiliate. These agreements are designed to efficiently manage storage and transportation assets belonging to our utilities, including the purchase and sale of natural gas as well as excess transportation and storage capacity that may not be needed on a daily basis to meet system requirements. The agreements have either annual minimum guarantees within a profit sharing structure, a profit sharing structure without any annual minimum guarantee, or a fixed fee. Under the various types of agreements, Sequent made payments of \$32 million in 2011. Our utilities began entering into these agreements with Sequent in 2001. From 2001 through 2011 Sequent has made sharing payments under these agreements totaling \$192 million, which has reduced customers' bills at all of our utilities except Atlanta Gas Light. For Atlanta Gas Light these payments have been made to the Universal Service Fund controlled by the Georgia Commission and utilized for infrastructure improvements and to fund heating assistance programs. The following table provides payments made by Sequent to our utilities under these agreements during the last three years.

	Total amount receive	ed		
2011	2010		2009	Expiration Date
	2010			March
9	\$ 4	\$	16	2012
				March
9	5		7	2016
				March
9	10		11	2014
				March
2	1		1	2013
				March
3	4		4	2014
	9 9 2	2011 2010 9 \$ 4 9 5 9 10 2 1	9 \$ 4 \$ 9 5 9 10 2 1	2011       2010       2009         9       \$ 4       \$ 16         9       5       7         9       10       11         2       1       1

Total \$ 32 \$ 24 \$ 39

On March 30, 2011, the New Jersey BPU authorized the renewal of the asset management agreement between Elizabethtown Gas and Sequent. The renewed agreement requires Sequent to pay minimum annual fees of \$5 million to Elizabethtown Gas and includes overall margin sharing levels of 70% to Elizabethtown Gas and 30% to Sequent. In October 2011, the Virginia Commission authorized the renewal of the asset management agreement between Virginia Natural Gas and Sequent. The minimum and overall sharing levels of the renewed agreement are consistent with the prior agreement.

### **Retail Operations**

The companies in our retail operations segment market natural gas and related home services, such as appliance repair and line protection plans to customers primarily in our utility service areas, but also in areas outside of our utility service areas. This segment also offers products that provide product protection and comfort services and natural gas price risk and utility bill management services. These companies include SouthStar, Nicor Advanced Energy, Nicor Solutions and Nicor Services. Nicor Solutions, Nicor Services and Nicor Advanced Energy joined our business on December 9, 2011 as part of the Nicor merger and are wholly owned businesses.

Our retail operations businesses, including SouthStar, Nicor Advanced Energy and Nicor Solutions, generate earnings through the sale of natural gas to residential, commercial and industrial customers, primarily in Georgia and Illinois where we capture spreads between wholesale and retail natural gas prices. We also offer our customers energy-related products that provide for natural gas price stability and utility bill management. These products mitigate and/or eliminate the risks to customers of colder than normal weather and/or changes in natural gas prices. We charge a fee or premium for these services.

We also collect monthly service fees and customer late payment fees. We evaluate the combination of these two retail price components to ensure such pricing is structured to cover related retail customer costs, such as bad debt expense, customer service and billing, and lost and unaccounted-for gas, and to provide a reasonable profit, as well as being competitive to attract new customers and maintain market share.

Through our commercial operations we optimize storage and transportation assets and effectively manage commodity risk, which enables our energy solutions businesses to maintain competitive retail prices and operating margin. Through hedging transactions, we manage exposures arising from changing commodity prices by using natural gas storage transactions to capture operating margin from natural gas pricing differences that occur over time.

SouthStar, a joint venture currently owned 85% by us and 15% by Piedmont, markets natural gas and related services to retail customers on an unregulated basis, primarily in Georgia under the trade name Georgia Natural Gas. SouthStar also serves retail customers in Ohio, Florida and New York. We have no contractual rights to acquire Piedmont's remaining 15% ownership interests.

SouthStar is governed by an executive committee, which is comprised of six members, three representatives from AGL Resources and three representatives from Piedmont. Under the joint venture agreement, all significant management decisions require the unanimous approval of the SouthStar executive committee; accordingly, our 85% financial interest is considered to be noncontrolling. We record the earnings allocated to Piedmont as a noncontrolling interest in our Consolidated Statements of Income, and we record Piedmont's portion of SouthStar's capital as a noncontrolling interest in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

SouthStar's operations are sensitive to seasonal weather, natural gas prices, customer growth and consumption patterns similar to those affecting our utility operations. SouthStar's retail pricing strategies and the use of a variety of hedging strategies, such as the use of futures, options, swaps, weather derivative instruments and other risk management tools, help to ensure retail customer costs are covered to mitigate the potential effect of these issues and commodity price risk on its operations. For more information on SouthStar's energy marketing and risk management activities, see Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk - Commodity Price Risk."

Nicor Solutions offers its residential and small commercial customers, primarily in the Nicor Gas service territory, energy-related products that provide for natural gas price stability and utility bill management. These products mitigate and/or eliminate the risks to customers of colder than normal weather and/or changes in natural gas prices. Nicor Advanced Energy is certified by the Illinois Commission as an Alternate Gas Supplier, authorizing it to be a non-utility marketer of natural gas for residential and small commercial customers. Nicor Advanced Energy presently operates in northern Illinois, offering customers an alternative to the utility as its natural gas supplier.

Our retail operations businesses also provide warranty protection solutions to customers through Nicor Services. Such services include a gas line repair plan and a heating, ventilation, and air conditioning repair and maintenance plan, whereby we, in return for a predetermined monthly amount collected from customers, provide repair and maintenance per the contracted terms. In addition, we also provide customer move connection services for utilities. Our retail operations businesses primarily provide warranty protection solutions to customers in Illinois and Ohio under the Nicor National brand.

Competition Our retail operations business competes with other energy marketers to provide natural gas and related services to customers in Georgia, Illinois, Ohio, New York and the Southeast. In the Georgia market, SouthStar operates as Georgia Natural Gas and is the largest of eleven Marketers, with average customers of approximately 495,000 over the last three years and market share of approximately 33%.

In recent years, increased competition and the heavy promotion of fixed price plans by SouthStar's competitors has resulted in increased pressure on retail natural gas margins. In response to these market conditions SouthStar's

residential and commercial customers have been migrating to fixed price plans, which, combined with increased competition from other Marketers, has impacted SouthStar's customer growth as well as margins.

In addition, similar to our natural gas utilities, our retail operations businesses face competition based on customer preferences for natural gas compared to other energy products, primarily electricity, and the comparative prices of those products. Natural gas price volatility in the wholesale natural gas commodity market has also contributed to an increase in competition for residential and commercial customers. We continue to use a variety of targeted marketing programs to attract new customers and to retain existing customers. In October 2011, Georgia Natural Gas was named the exclusive natural gas partner for the Delta Air Lines Inc. Delta SkyMiles Program in Georgia. This is a long-term partnership and we expect it will help retain current customers as well as attract new customers from other Marketers in Georgia.

Our retail operations businesses also experience price, convenience and service competition from other warranty and HVAC companies. These businesses also bear risk from potential changes in the regulatory environment. As a condition of the merger, Nicor Gas is no longer permitted to use its call center personnel to solicit its affiliates' products, most notably the warranty products.

#### Wholesale Services

Our wholesale services segment consists of our wholly owned subsidiaries Sequent, Nicor Enerchange and Compass Energy (Compass). Sequent is involved in asset management and optimization, storage, transportation, producer and peaking services and wholesale marketing of natural gas across the United States and in Canada. Nicor Enerchange, which was integrated into Sequent as part of the Nicor merger, expands Sequent's wholesale marketing of natural gas supply services in the Midwest, enables Sequent to serve commercial and industrial customers in the Midwest primarily in the northern Illinois market area and manage Nicor Solutions' and Nicor Advanced Energy's product risks, including the purchase of natural gas supplies. Compass, which we acquired in 2007, provides natural gas supply and services to commercial, industrial and governmental customers primarily in Kentucky, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and West Virginia.

Wholesale services utilizes a portfolio of natural gas storage assets, contracted supply from all of the major producing regions, as well as contracted storage and transportation capacity across the Gulf Coast, Eastern, Midwestern and Western sections of the United States and Canada to provide these services to its customers, consisting primarily of electric and natural gas utilities, power generators and large industrial customers. Our logistical expertise enables us to provide our customers with natural gas from the major producing regions and market hubs in the United States and Canada and meet our delivery requirements and customer obligations at competitive prices by leveraging our portfolio of natural gas storage assets and contracted natural gas supply, transportation and storage capacity.

Wholesale services portfolio of storage and transportation capacity also enables us to generate additional operating margin by optimizing the contracted assets through the application of our wholesale market knowledge and risk management skills as the opportunities arise in the Gulf Coast, Eastern, Midwestern and Western sections of the United States and Canada. These asset optimization opportunities focus on capturing the value from idle or underutilized assets, typically by participating in transactions to take advantage of volatility in pricing differences between varying geographic locations and time horizons (location and seasonal spreads) within the natural gas supply, storage and transportation markets to generate earnings. We seek to mitigate the commodity price and volatility risks and protect our operating margin through a variety of risk management and economic hedging activities.

Competition Wholesale services competes for asset management, long-term supply and seasonal peaking service contracts with other energy wholesalers, often through a competitive bidding process. We are able to price competitively by utilizing our portfolio of contracted storage and transportation assets and by renewing and adding new contracts at prevailing market rates. We will further continue to broaden our market presence in sections of the United States and Canada where our portfolio of contracted storage and transportation assets provided us a competitive advantage, as well as continue our pursuit of additional opportunities with power generation companies located in the areas of the country we operate. We are also focused on building our fee based services in part to have a source of operating margin that is less impacted by volatility in the marketplace.

Asset Management Transactions Our asset management customers include affiliated and nonaffiliated utilities, municipal utilities, power generators and large industrial customers. These customers, due to seasonal demand or levels of activity, may have contracts for transportation and storage capacity which exceed their actual requirements. We enter into structured agreements with these customers, whereby we, on behalf of the customers, optimize the transportation and storage capacity during periods when customers do not use it for their own needs. We may capture incremental operating margin through optimization, and either share margins with the customers or pay them a fixed amount.

Transportation Transactions We enter into contracts for natural gas transportation capacity and participate in transactions that manage the natural gas commodity and transportation costs in an attempt to achieve the lowest cost to serve our various markets. We seek to optimize this process on a daily basis as market conditions change by

evaluating all the natural gas supplies, transportation alternatives and markets to which we have access and identifying the lowest-cost alternatives to serve our markets. This enables us to capture geographic pricing differences across these various markets as delivered natural gas prices change.

As we execute transactions to secure transportation capacity, we often enter into forward financial contracts to hedge our positions and lock-in a margin on future transportation activities. The hedging instruments are derivatives, and we reflect changes in the derivatives' fair value in our reported operating results in the period of change, which can be in periods prior to actual utilization of the transportation capacity.

Producer Services Our producer services activities focus on aggregating natural gas supply primarily from various small and medium-sized producers located throughout the natural gas production areas of the United States. We provide producers with certain logistical and risk management services that offer them attractive options to move their supply into the pipeline grid.

Park and Loan Transactions We routinely enter into park and loan transactions with various pipelines and storage facilities, which allows us to park gas on, or borrow gas from, the pipeline in one period and reclaim gas from, or repay gas to, the pipeline in a subsequent period. For these services, we charge, or pay, rates which include the retention of natural gas lost and unaccounted for in-kind. The economics of these transactions are evaluated and price risks are managed in much the same way as traditional reservoir and salt-dome storage transactions are evaluated and managed.

We enter into forward NYMEX contracts to hedge the natural gas price risk associated with the park and loan transactions. While the hedging instruments mitigate the price risk associated with the delivery and receipt of natural gas, they can also result in volatility in our reported results during the period before the initial delivery or receipt of natural gas. During this period, if the forward NYMEX prices in the months of delivery and receipt do not change in equal amounts, we will report a net unrealized gain or loss on the hedges. Once gas is delivered under the park and loan transaction, earnings volatility is essentially eliminated since the park and loan transaction contains an embedded derivative, which is also marked to market and would substantially offset subsequent changes in value of the forward NYMEX contracts used to hedge the park and loan transaction.

Natural Gas Storage Inventory and Transactions We maintain natural gas storage balances for volumes associated with energy marketing activities, parked gas transactions and sales to wholesale and commercial and industrial customers and record these within natural gas stored underground inventory on our Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Further and generally in connection with non-affiliated asset management transactions, our recorded natural gas stored underground inventory includes volumes of natural gas we manage for our customers by purchasing the natural gas inventory from and physically delivering volumes of natural gas back to our customers based on specific delivery dates. The cost at which we purchase the volumes of natural gas from our customers or WACOG is also the same price at which we sell the natural gas volumes to the customer. Consequently, we make no margin on the purchase and sale of the natural gas but make operating margin through our natural gas storage optimization activities of these volumes under management. As of December 31, 2011, we had \$269 million of natural gas stored underground inventory within our Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, representing 78 Bcf at an overall WACOG of \$3.44.

Natural Gas Price Volatility and Energy Marketing Activities We purchase natural gas for storage when the current market price we pay plus the cost for transportation and storage is less than the market price we anticipate we could receive in the future. We attempt to mitigate substantially all of the commodity price risk associated with our storage portfolio and use derivative instruments to reduce the risk associated with future changes in the price of natural gas. We sell NYMEX futures contracts or OTC derivatives in forward months to substantially lock in the operating revenue we will ultimately realize when the stored gas is actually sold.

We view our trading margins from two perspectives. First, we base our commercial decisions on economic value, which is defined as the locked-in operating revenue to be realized at the time the physical gas is withdrawn from storage and sold and the derivative instrument used to economically hedge natural gas price risk on that physical storage is settled. Second is the GAAP reported value both in periods prior to and in the period of physical withdrawal and sale of inventory. The GAAP amount is affected by the process of accounting for the financial hedging instruments in interim periods at fair value between the period when the natural gas is injected into storage and when it is ultimately withdrawn and the derivative instruments are settled. The change in the fair value of the hedging instruments is recognized in earnings in the period of change and is recorded as unrealized gains or losses. The actual value, less any interim recognition of gains or losses on hedges and adjustments for LOCOM, is realized when the natural gas is delivered to its ultimate customer.

We account for natural gas stored in inventory differently than the derivatives we use to mitigate the commodity price risk associated with our storage portfolio. The natural gas that we purchase and inject into storage is accounted for at the lower of average cost or current market value. The derivatives we use to mitigate commodity price risk are

accounted for at fair value and marked to market each period. This difference in accounting treatment can result in volatility in wholesale services reported results, even though the expected operating revenue is essentially unchanged from the date the transactions were initiated. These accounting differences also affect the comparability of wholesale services period-over-period results, since changes in forward NYMEX prices do not increase and decrease on a consistent basis from year to year.

Volatility in the natural gas market arises from a number of factors such as weather fluctuations or changes in supply or demand for natural gas in different regions of the country. The volatility of natural gas commodity prices have a significant impact on our customer rates, our long-term competitive position against other energy sources and the ability of our wholesale services segment to capture value from location and seasonal spreads. During 2008 and 2009, daily Henry Hub spot market prices for natural gas in the United States were extremely volatile. However, during 2010 and 2011, the volatility of natural gas prices was significantly lower than it had been for several prior years. This is the result of a robust natural gas supply, the weak economy, mild hurricane seasons, mild weather and ample storage. Our natural gas acquisition strategy is designed to secure sufficient supplies of natural gas to meet the needs of our utility customers and to hedge gas prices to effectively manage costs, reduce price volatility and maintain a competitive advantage. Additionally, our hedging strategies and physical natural gas supplies in storage enable us to reduce earnings risk exposure due to higher gas costs.

It is possible that natural gas prices will remain low for an extended period based on current levels of excess supply relative to market demand for natural gas, in part due to abundant sources of new shale natural gas reserves, particularly in the Marcellus Shale producing region where Sequent has natural gas receipt requirements, and the lack of demand growth by commercial and industrial enterprises. However, as economic conditions improve the demand for natural gas may increase, natural gas prices could rise and higher volatility could return to the natural gas markets. Consequently, we are working to reposition Sequent's business model with respect to fixed costs and the types of contracts pursued and executed.

Sequent's expected natural gas withdrawals from physical salt-dome and reservoir storage are presented in the following table along with the operating revenues expected at the time of withdrawal. Sequent's expected operating revenues are net of the estimated impact of profit sharing under our asset management agreements and reflect the amounts that are realizable in future periods based on the inventory withdrawal schedule and forward natural gas prices at December 31, 2011 and 2010. A portion of Sequent's storage inventory is economically hedged with futures contracts, which results in realization of a substantially fixed margin, timing notwithstanding.

		Expected
	Total storage	operating
	(in Bcf)	revenues
	(WACOG	
Withdrawal schedule	\$2.98)	(in millions)
2012		
First quarter	30	\$ 1
Second quarter	4	0
Third quarter	1	0
Fourth quarter	1	1
2013	1	1
Total at Dec. 31, 2011	37	\$ 3
Total at Dec. 31, 2010	28	\$ 16

If Sequent's storage withdrawals associated with existing inventory positions are executed as planned, it expects operating revenues from storage withdrawals of approximately \$2 million during the next twelve months and \$1 million in 2013. This will change as Sequent adjusts its daily injection and withdrawal plans in response to changes in market conditions in future months and as forward NYMEX prices fluctuate. For more information on Sequent's energy marketing and risk management activities, see Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk - Commodity Price Risk."

#### Midstream Operations

Our midstream operations segment includes a number of businesses that are related and complementary to our primary business. The most significant of these businesses is our natural gas storage business, which develops, acquires and operates high-deliverability underground natural gas storage assets primarily in the Gulf Coast region of the United States and in Northern California. While this business can also generate additional revenue during times of peak market demand for natural gas storage services, the majority of our natural gas storage facilities are covered under a portfolio of short, medium and long-term contracts at a fixed market rate. Golden Triangle Storage began full commercial operations during the first quarter of 2011. Central Valley, located in northern California, is expected to begin commercial operations in the first half of 2012. The following table shows the working gas capacity and subscription amounts by storage facility as of December 31, 2011.

Working Gas
Capacity Subscribed (3)

				Additional		
				Amount		
				Expected in		
In Bcf	State	Type	Current	2012	Amour	nt %
Jefferson Island	Louisiana	Salt-dome	7.5	0.0	5.0	69%
Golden Triangle	Texas	Salt-dome				
Storage (1)			6.0	7.3	4.0	67%
Central Valley (2)	)California	Depleted	0.0	11.0		
		field			3.0	27%
Total			13.5	18.3	12.0	

- (1) We expect the second cavern construction to be complete and firm storage services to commence in mid-2012. (2) We expect construction to be complete and firm storage services to commence in the first half of 2012.
- (3) The amount and percentage of capacity under subscription does not include 2 Bcf of capacity under contract at Jefferson Island and 2 Bcf of capacity under contract at Golden Triangle Storage by Sequent at December 31, 2011.

Jefferson Island This wholly owned subsidiary operates a salt-dome storage and hub facility, approximately eight miles from the Henry Hub. The storage facility is regulated by the Louisiana Department of Natural Resources and by the FERC, which has regulatory authority over storage and transportation services. Jefferson Island provides storage and hub services through its direct connection to the Henry Hub and its interconnections with eight pipelines in the area. The level of firm subscription has remained consistent over the last three years. We will hold an open season for 3 Bcf of subscribed capacity that expires in March 2012 and expect the subscription rate to be significantly lower than the current contract.

In December 2009, the Louisiana Mineral and Energy Board approved an operating agreement between Jefferson Island and the State of Louisiana. In June 2010, Jefferson Island filed a permit application with the Louisiana Department of Natural Resources to expand its natural gas storage facility through the addition of two caverns. We continue to seek approval to expand our storage facility; however, we cannot predict when or if this approval will be obtained. The caverns would expand the total working gas capacity at Jefferson Island to approximately 19.5 Bcf of working gas capacity.

Golden Triangle Storage This wholly owned subsidiary is designed for an initial 13.3 Bcf of working natural gas capacity. The storage facility is regulated by the FERC. Golden Triangle Storage owns an approximately nine-mile dual 24" natural gas pipeline to connect the storage facility with three interstate and three intrastate pipelines.

Cavern 1, with 6 Bcf of working capacity, began commercial service in September 2010. We expect Cavern 2 will now consist of 7.3 Bcf of working capacity. Our estimate to complete the second cavern, based on current prices for labor, materials and pad gas, is approximately \$28 million. We spent approximately \$11 million in capital expenditures for this project in 2011. The total estimated construction cost for Caverns 1 and 2 remains consistent with prior estimates.

At December 31, 2011, of the approximate 6 Bcf of working natural gas capacity available for subscription, Golden Triangle Storage had 4 Bcf of capacity subscribed with a third party and 2 Bcf under contract with Sequent through March 2016. Accordingly, Cavern 1 at Golden Triangle Storage has no remaining capacity available for subscription until March 2013. Cavern 2 is currently unsubscribed, and we will be seeking contracts of varying durations as the in-service date approaches.

Central Valley This wholly owned subsidiary, which joined our business as part of the Nicor merger, is developing an underground natural gas storage facility in the Sacramento River valley of north-central California. We are converting the depleted Princeton Gas Field into a high-deliverability, multi-cycle storage field. This will include the addition of a 14.9 mile 24-inch diameter gas pipeline connecting the facility to a major pipeline. The storage facility is regulated by the California Commission.

Sawgrass Storage Our 50% owned joint venture (held by Cypress Creek Gas Storage, LLC) with Mill Creek Gas Storage, LLC (an affiliate of Samson Contour Energy E&P, LLC), which joined our business as part of the Nicor merger, is engaged in developing an underground natural gas storage facility northwest of Monroe, Louisiana. In July 2011, Sawgrass Storage applied for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity with the FERC to construct and operate the natural gas storage facility and expects to receive the certificate during 2012.

Horizon Pipeline Our 50% owned joint venture with Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America, Horizon Pipeline, which joined our business as part of the Nicor merger, operates an approximate 70 mile natural gas pipeline stretching from Joliet, Illinois to near the Wisconsin/Illinois border. Nicor Gas has contracted for approximately 80% of Horizon Pipeline's total throughput capacity of 0.38 Bcf under an agreement expiring in 2015 at rates that have been accepted by the FERC.

Competition Our natural gas storage facilities primarily compete with natural gas facilities in the Gulf Coast region of the United States as the majority of the existing and proposed high deliverability salt-dome natural gas storage facilities in North America are located in the Gulf Coast region. Salt caverns have also been leached from bedded salt formations in the Northeastern and Midwestern states. Competition for our Central Valley storage facility will primarily consist of storage facilities in northern California and western North America. Storage values have declined over the past two years due to low gas prices and low volatility and we expect this to continue in 2012 and potentially longer.

### Cargo Shipping

Our cargo shipping segment, which joined our business as part of the Nicor merger, consists of Tropical Shipping, multiple wholly owned foreign subsidiaries of Tropical Shipping that are treated as disregarded entities for United States income tax purposes, Seven Seas, a wholly owned domestic cargo insurance company and an equity investment in Triton, a cargo container leasing business.

Tropical Shipping is a transporter of containerized freight and provides southbound scheduled services from the United States and Canada to twenty-five ports in the Bahamas and the Caribbean, interisland service between several of the Caribbean ports and operates from St. Thomas and St. Croix as its hubs in the Caribbean. In addition, it provides northbound shipments from those islands to the United States and Canada. Other related services such as inland transportation and cargo insurance are also provided by Tropical Shipping or its other subsidiaries and affiliates.

Tropical Shipping's southbound cargo consists mainly of building materials, food and other necessities for developers, distributors and residents in the Caribbean and the Bahamas, as well as tourist-related shipments intended for use by hotels, resorts, and cruise ships. Tropical Shipping's interisland shipments consist primarily of consumer staples and northbound shipments primarily consist of apparel, rum and agricultural products.

On average, approximately 70% to 75% of Tropical Shipping's total volumes shipped are in the southbound market, 15% - 20% interisland and 5% - 10% northbound. Tropical Shipping's largest contract consists of a southbound shipment of goods from Canada destined mainly for Puerto Rico. Tropical Shipping measures volumes and capacity of vessels and containers in TEU's. Details of Tropical Shipping's properties are discussed in Item 2 "Properties" - "Vessels and shipping containers".

Tropical Shipping's operations are structured to allow it to take advantage of certain provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 that provide the opportunity for certain tax savings. Generally, to the extent foreign shipping earnings are not repatriated to the United States, such earnings are not expected to be subject to current taxation. In addition, to the extent such earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvested offshore, no deferred income tax expense is recorded by the company. For more information on management's indefinite reinvestment assertion, see Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations", under the caption "Liquidity and Capital Resources". See also Note 2 and Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Our cargo shipping segment also includes Triton, a full-service global leasing company and an owner-lessor of marine intermodal cargo containers. Profits and losses are generally allocated to investor's capital accounts in proportion to their capital contributions. Our investment in Triton is accounted for under the equity method, and our share of earnings are reported within "Other Income" on our Consolidated Statements of Income. For more information about our investment in Triton, see Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Seven Seas is a Florida domestic insurance corporation that provides cargo insurance policies mainly between Tropical Shipping and its customers. Approximately 70% of Seven Seas' revenues are generated from Tropical Shipping's customers. The policies' coverage is from the point when the cargo leaves the shipper's possession to the point when the customer takes delivery.

Competition Cargo shipping has five main competitors that serve the same major transportation areas. Over the past several years, Tropical Shipping has maintained an average market share of approximately 40% for the ports in which it serves. Tropical Shipping has significantly more market penetration for certain islands versus others. For example, currently it has 45% of the southbound market share for the Virgin Islands versus 20% for the Windward Islands. Tropical Shipping continuously reviews new market opportunities. However, the ability to capture additional market share is difficult due to competition.

Operations Tropical Shipping's operating results are cyclical and very much aligned with the level of global gross domestic product, tourism and the cost of fuel. Overall, the Bahamas and the Virgin Island economies are highly dependent on tourism from the United States. Whereas, the Caribbean's Windward and Leeward Island economies have more tourism from Europe. Fuel price volatility also impacts our earnings. Bunker surcharge rates are charged to customers and are used to mitigate the fluctuations in fuel transportation costs.

Tropical Shipping generates revenues primarily by three main services, which include Full Container Load (FCL) service, Less-than Container Load (LCL) service, and break bulk service which is cargo that cannot ship in a container. Tropical Shipping also generates revenues from handling "project cargo", which provides a coordinated service for construction projects. Tropical Shipping's FCL cargo service revenues typically consist of an empty container delivery to the customer's site via truck or rail or coordinating a customer pick up at the Port. The customer fills and seals the container and either requests Tropical to pick it up or delivers it back to the Port. Tropical Shipping generates revenues from LCL services primarily by providing packaging and transporting services for smaller cargos or customers, including individuals, who may have a few items to ship.

Seven Seas generates revenues from premiums received on insurance policies subscribed to primarily by customers of Tropical Shipping. Seven Seas' results depend on its ability to generate revenues from the premiums and to manage risk.

### Other

Our other segment primarily includes our nonoperating business units. AGL Services Company is a service company we established to provide certain centralized shared services to our operating segments. We allocate substantially all

of AGL Services Company's operating expenses and interest costs to our operating segments in accordance with state regulations. However, merger related costs are not allocated to our operating segments.

AGL Capital, our wholly owned finance subsidiary, provides for our ongoing financing needs through a commercial paper program, the issuance of various debt and hybrid securities, and other financing arrangements. Our other segment also includes intercompany eliminations for transactions between our operating business segments. Our EBIT results include the impact of these allocations to the various operating segments.

### **Employees**

As of February 1, 2012, we had approximately 6,400 employees, 5,850 of whom were in the United States.

The following table provides information about our natural gas utilities' collective bargaining agreements, which represent approximately 26% of our total employees.

		Contract
	# of	Expiration
	<b>Employees</b>	Date
Nicor Gas International Brotherhood		
of Electrical Workers (Local No. 19)	1,344	Feb-14
Virginia Natural Gas International		
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers		
(Local No. 50)	129	May-12
Elizabethtown Gas Utility Workers		
Union of America (Local No. 424)	168	Nov-12
Total	1,641	

The collective bargaining agreements at Virginia Natural Gas and Elizabethtown Gas expire in 2012. We believe that we have a good working relationship with our unionized employees and there have been no work stoppages at Virginia Natural Gas or Elizabethtown Gas since we acquired those operations in 2000 and 2004, respectively. As we have historically done, we remain committed to work in good faith with the unions to renew or renegotiate collective bargaining agreements that balance the needs of the company and our employees. Our current collective bargaining agreements do not require our participation in multiemployer retirement plans and we have no obligation to contribute to any such plans.

### **Available Information**

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and proxy statements, and amendments to those reports that we file with, or furnish to, the SEC are available free of charge at our website, www.aglresources.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such reports with or furnish such reports to the SEC. However, our website and any contents thereof should not be considered to be incorporated by reference into this document. We will furnish copies of such reports free of charge upon written request to our Investor Relations department. You can contact our Investor Relations department at:

AGL Resources Inc. Investor Relations P.O. Box 4569 Atlanta, GA 30302-4569 404-584-4000

In Part III of this Form 10-K, we incorporate certain information by reference from our Proxy Statement for our 2012 annual meeting of shareholders. We expect to file that Proxy Statement with the SEC on or about March 16, 2012, and we will make it available on our website as soon as reasonably practicable. Please refer to the Proxy Statement when it is available.

Additionally, our corporate governance guidelines, code of ethics, code of business conduct and the charters of each committee of our Board of Directors are available on our website. We will furnish copies of such information free of charge upon written request to our Investor Relations department.

#### ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

### Risks Related to Our Business

Risks related to the regulation of our businesses could affect the rates we are able to charge, our costs and our profitability.

Our businesses are subject to regulation by federal, state and local regulatory authorities. In particular, at the federal level our businesses are regulated by the FERC. At the state level, our businesses are regulated by regulatory authorities in Illinois, Georgia, Virginia, New Jersey, Florida, Tennessee and Maryland.

These authorities regulate many aspects of our operations, including construction and maintenance of facilities, operations, safety, rates that we charge customers, rates of return, the authorized cost of capital, recovery of costs associated with our regulatory infrastructure projects, including our pipeline replacement program and environmental remediation activities, relationships with our affiliates, and carrying costs we charge Marketers selling retail natural gas in Georgia for gas held in storage for their customer accounts. Our ability to obtain rate increases and rate supplements to maintain our current rates of return and recover regulatory assets and liabilities recorded in accordance with authoritative guidance related to regulated operations depends on regulatory discretion, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain rate increases or rate supplements or continue receiving our currently authorized rates of return including the recovery of our regulatory assets and liabilities.

In 2011, Illinois enacted laws that required Nicor Gas and other large gas utilities in Illinois to elect either to file rate cases with the Illinois Commission in 2012, 2014 and 2016 or sign contracts to purchase SNG to be produced from two coal gasification plants proposed to be constructed in Illinois. On September 30, 2011, Nicor Gas signed an agreement to purchase approximately 25 Bcf of SNG annually from one of the proposed facilities for a 10-year term beginning as early as 2015. For additional information on the substitute natural gas plant legislation. See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" - "Contractual Obligations and Commitments"

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 introduced a comprehensive new regulatory framework for swaps and security-based swaps. Although the SEC and other regulators are still in the process of adopting rules to implement the new framework, it is possible that Sequent, or other aspects of AGL Resources' operations, could be subject to the new regulations, depending on the ultimate definitions of key terms in the Dodd-Frank Act such as "swap," "swap dealer" and "major swap participant." This may require increased use of working capital for Nicor Gas, SouthStar and Sequent if the regulations increase our collateral requirements related to derivatives utilized to manage risk in these businesses.

We could incur significant compliance costs if we must adjust to new regulations. In addition, as the regulatory environment for our industry increases in complexity, the risk of inadvertent noncompliance could also increase. If we fail to comply with applicable regulations, whether existing or new ones, we could be subject to fines, penalties or other enforcement action by the authorities that regulate our operations, or otherwise be subject to material costs and liabilities.

Our business is subject to environmental regulation in all jurisdictions in which we operate, and our costs to comply are significant. Any changes in existing environmental regulation could affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our operations and properties are subject to extensive environmental regulation pursuant to a variety of federal, state and municipal laws and regulations. Such environmental legislation imposes, among other things, restrictions, liabilities and obligations associated with storage, transportation, treatment and disposal of hazardous substances and waste and in connection with spills, releases and emissions of various substances into the environment. Environmental legislation also requires that our facilities, sites and other properties associated with our operations be operated, maintained, abandoned and reclaimed to the satisfaction of applicable regulatory authorities. Our current costs to comply with these laws and regulations are significant to our results of operations and financial condition. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations and failure to obtain any required permits and licenses may expose us to fines, penalties or interruptions in our operations that could be material to our results of operations.

In addition, claims against us under environmental laws and regulations could result in material costs and liabilities. Existing environmental regulations could also be revised or reinterpreted, new laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable to us or our facilities, and future changes in environmental laws and regulations could occur. With the trend toward stricter standards, greater regulation, more extensive permit requirements and an increase in the number and types of assets operated by us subject to environmental regulation, our environmental expenditures could increase in the future, particularly if those costs are not fully recoverable from our customers. Additionally, the discovery of presently unknown environmental conditions could give rise to expenditures and liabilities, including fines or penalties, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Our infrastructure improvement and customer growth may be restricted by the capital-intensive nature of our business.

We must construct additions and replacements to our natural gas distribution systems to continue the expansion of our customer base and improve system reliability, especially during peak usage. We may also need to construct expansions of our existing natural gas storage facilities or develop and construct new natural gas storage facilities. The cost of this construction may be affected by the cost of obtaining government and other approvals, development project delays, adequacy of supply of diversified vendors, or unexpected changes in project costs. Weather, general economic conditions and the cost of funds to finance our capital projects can materially alter the cost, and projected construction schedule and completion timeline of a project. Our cash flows may not be fully adequate to finance the cost of this construction. As a result, we may be required to fund a portion of our cash needs through borrowings or the issuance of common stock, or both. For our distribution operations segment, this may limit our ability to expand our infrastructure to connect new customers due to limits on the amount we can economically invest, which shifts

costs to potential customers and may make it uneconomical for them to connect to our distribution systems. For our natural gas storage business, this may significantly reduce our earnings and return on investment from what would be expected for this business, or may impair our ability to complete the expansions or development projects.

We may be exposed to certain regulatory and financial risks related to climate change.

Climate change is receiving ever increasing attention from scientists and legislators alike. The debate is ongoing as to the extent to which our climate is changing, the potential causes of this change and its potential impacts. Some attribute global warming to increased levels of greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide, which has led to significant legislative and regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas emissions.

Presently there are no federally mandated greenhouse gas reduction requirements in the United States. However, there are a number of legislative and regulatory proposals to address greenhouse gas emissions, which are in various phases of discussion or implementation. The outcome of federal and state actions to address global climate change could result in a variety of regulatory programs including potential new regulations, additional charges to fund energy efficiency activities, or other regulatory actions. These actions could:

- result in increased costs associated with our operations
  - increase other costs to our business
  - affect the demand for natural gas, and
  - impact the prices we charge our customers.

Because natural gas is a fossil fuel with low carbon content, it is possible that future carbon constraints could create additional demand for natural gas, both for production of electricity and direct use in homes and businesses.

Any adoption by federal or state governments mandating a substantial reduction in greenhouse gas emissions could have far-reaching and significant impacts on the energy industry. We cannot predict the potential impact of such laws or regulations on our future consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Transporting and storing natural gas involves numerous risks that may result in accidents and other operating risks and costs.

Our gas distribution and storage activities involve a variety of inherent hazards and operating risks, such as leaks, accidents, including third party damages, and mechanical problems, which could cause substantial financial losses. In addition, these risks could result in serious injury to employees and non-employees, loss of human life, significant damage to property, environmental pollution and impairment of our operations, which in turn could lead to substantial losses to us. In accordance with customary industry practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of these risks and losses. The location of pipelines and storage facilities near populated areas, including residential areas, commercial business centers and industrial sites, could increase the level of damages resulting from these risks. The occurrence of any of these events not fully covered by insurance could adversely affect our financial position and results of operations.

We face increasing competition, and if we are unable to compete effectively, our revenues, operating results and financial condition will be adversely affected which may limit our ability to grow our business.

The natural gas business is highly competitive, increasingly complex, and we are facing increasing competition from other companies that supply energy, including electric companies, oil and propane providers and, in some cases, energy marketing and trading companies. In particular, the success of our retail businesses is affected by the competition from other energy marketers providing retail natural gas services in our service territories, most notably Illinois and Georgia. Natural gas competes with other forms of energy. The primary competitive factor is price. Changes in the price or availability of natural gas relative to other forms of energy and the ability of end-users to convert to alternative fuels affect the demand for natural gas. In the case of commercial, industrial and agricultural customers, adverse economic conditions, including higher gas costs, could also cause these customers to bypass or disconnect from our systems in favor of special competitive contracts with lower per-unit costs.

Retail energy markets fixed-price contracts that protect customers against higher natural gas prices, or protect customers against both higher natural gas prices and colder weather. The sale of these fixed-price contracts may be adversely affected if natural gas prices are, or are perceived to be, low and stable.

Our retail services business faces risks in the form of price, convenience, and service competition from other warranty and HVAC companies. Retail services also bears risk from potential changes in the regulatory environment,

and in fact regulatory-change risk was incurred in late 2011. As a condition of the merger, Nicor Gas is no longer permitted to use its call center personnel to solicit its affiliates' products, most notably the warranty products offered by Nicor Services.

Our wholesale services segment competes with national and regional full-service energy providers, energy merchants and producers and pipelines for sales based on our ability to aggregate competitively priced commodities with transportation and storage capacity. Some of our competitors are larger and better capitalized than we are and have more national and global exposure than we do. The consolidation of this industry and the pricing to gain market share may affect our operating margin. We expect this trend to continue in the near term, and the increasing competition for asset management deals could result in downward pressure on the volume of transactions and the related operating margin available in this portion of Sequent's business.

Our midstream operations segment competes with natural gas facilities in the Gulf Coast region of the United States as the majority of the existing and proposed high deliverability salt-dome natural gas storage facilities in North America are located in the Gulf Coast region. Competition for our Central Valley storage facility in Northern California, will primarily consist of storage facilities in Northern California and western North America. Storage values have declined over the past two years due to low gas prices and low volatility and we expect this to continue in 2012.

Our cargo shipping segment competes with international maritime companies. The current expansion of the Panama Canal, which is expected to be completed in 2014, may lead to increased competition as larger vessels may gain access to the Caribbean. In addition, the growing development of the global logistic environment has moved away from port-to-port operations to the combined transport supply chain of various combinations of road, rail, sea and inland waterways. Globally, this has resulted in the need to improve ship productivity, sometimes via third party ship management, development of hub and spoke systems, larger ships, faster ship turnaround time and increased use of technology. Primarily as a result of the current economic downturn there is increased pricing pressure and decreased shipping volumes for the islands that Tropical Shipping currently serves. Over the past several years Tropical Shipping has maintained an average market share of approximately 40% for the ports it serves. However, increased competition may affect our volumes, market share, pricing structure and operating margin. Tropical Shipping does not have fuel contracts, but reduces its fuel price risk through fuel surcharges. Tropical Shipping has five primary competitors that serve the same major areas, some of which are larger and better capitalized than we are and have more global exposure than we do.

Changes or downturns in the economy could adversely affect our customers and negatively impact our financial results.

The slowdown in the United States economy, along with increased mortgage defaults, and significant decreases in new home construction, home values and investment assets, has adversely impacted the financial well-being of many households in the United States. We cannot predict if the administrative and legislative actions to address this situation will be successful in reducing the severity or duration of this downturn. As a result, our customers may use less gas in future Heating Seasons and it may become more difficult for them to pay their natural gas bills. This may slow collections and lead to higher than normal levels of accounts receivables, bad debt and financing requirements.

Tropical Shipping's business consists primarily of the shipment of building materials, food and other necessities from the United States and Canada to developers, distributors and residents in the Bahamas and the Caribbean region, as well as tourist-related shipments intended for use in hotels and resorts, and on cruise ships. As a result, Tropical Shipping's results of operations, cash flows and financial condition can be significantly affected by adverse general economic conditions in the United States, Bahamas, Caribbean region and Canada. Also, a shift in buying patterns that results in such goods being sourced directly from other parts of the world, including China and India, rather than the United States and Canada, could significantly affect Tropical Shipping's results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

An adverse decision in the proceeding concerning Nicor Gas' PBR plan could result in an obligation to credit additional amounts to customers which could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

On January 1, 2000, Nicor Gas instituted a PBR plan for natural gas costs. Under the PBR plan, Nicor Gas' total gas supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark. Savings and losses relative to the benchmark were determined annually and shared equally with sales customers. There are allegations that Nicor Gas acted improperly in connection with the PBR plan, and the Illinois Commission is reviewing these allegations in a pending proceeding. In October 2011, rebuttal testimony was submitted requesting refunds of \$85 million by Staff of the Illinois Commission, \$255 million by the Illinois Attorney General's Office and \$305 million by the Citizens Utility Board. An adverse decision in this proceeding could result in a credit to ratepayers or other obligations which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

In February 2012, we committed to a stipulated resolution of certain issues with the staff of the Illinois Commission, which includes crediting Nicor Gas customers \$64 million, but does not constitute an admission of fault. The stipulated resolution is subject to review and approval by the Illinois Commission. The Citizens Utility Board and the Illinois Attorney General's Office are not parties to this stipulated resolution and continue to pursue their claims in

this proceeding. Evidentiary hearings on this matter are scheduled to begin on February 28, 2012. We do not expect the stipulated resolution to affect our 2011 or 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income, as the \$64 million proposed credit is consistent with the estimated liability we recorded for this matter as part of our accounting for the merger with Nicor. See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein, for additional information regarding the PBR plan.

A significant portion of our accounts receivable is subject to collection risks, due in part to a concentration of credit risk at Nicor Gas in Illinois, Atlanta Gas Light and SouthStar in Georgia and at Sequent.

Nicor Gas and Sequent often extend credit to their counterparties. Despite performing credit analyses prior to extending credit and seeking to effectuate netting agreements, Nicor Gas and Sequent are exposed to the risk that they may not be able to collect amounts owed to them. If the counterparty to such a transaction fails to perform and any collateral Nicor Gas or Sequent has secured is inadequate, they could experience material financial losses.

Further, Sequent has a concentration of credit risk, which could subject a significant portion of its credit exposure to collection risks. Approximately 60% of Sequent's credit exposure is concentrated in its top 20 counterparties. Most of this concentration is with counterparties that are either load-serving utilities or end-use customers that have supplied some level of credit support. Default by any of these counterparties in their obligations to pay amounts due Sequent could result in credit losses that would negatively impact our wholesale services segment.

We have accounts receivable collection risks in Georgia due to a concentration of credit risks related to the provision of natural gas services to Marketers. At December 31, 2011, Atlanta Gas Light provided services to eleven certificated and active Marketers in Georgia, four of which (based on customer count and including SouthStar) accounted for approximately 30% of our consolidated operating margin for 2011. As a result, Atlanta Gas Light depends on a concentrated number of customers for revenues. The provisions of Atlanta Gas Light's tariff allow it to obtain security support in an amount equal to no less than two times a Marketer's highest month's estimated bill in the form of cash deposits, letters of credit, surety bonds or guaranties. The failure of these Marketers to pay Atlanta Gas Light could adversely affect Atlanta Gas Light's business and results of operations and expose it to difficulties in collecting Atlanta Gas Light's accounts receivable. AGL Resources provides a guarantee to Atlanta Gas Light as security support for SouthStar. Additionally, SouthStar markets directly to end-use customers and has periodically experienced credit losses as a result of severe cold weather or high prices for natural gas that increase customers' bills and, consequently, impair customers' ability to pay.

The asset management arrangements between Sequent and our local distribution companies, and between Sequent and its nonaffiliated customers, may not be renewed or may be renewed at lower levels, which could have a significant impact on Sequent's business.

Sequent currently manages the storage and transportation assets of our affiliates Atlanta Gas Light, Virginia Natural Gas, Elizabethtown Gas, Florida City Gas, Chattanooga Gas, and Elkton Gas and shares profits it earns from the management of those assets with those customers and their respective customers, with the exception of Chattanooga Gas and Elkton Gas where Sequent is assessed annual fixed-fees. Entry into and renewal of these agreements are subject to regulatory approval. The agreement for Atlanta Gas Light is subject to renewal in March 2012. Additionally, the agreement with Florida City Gas expires in March 2013 and the agreements with Chattanooga Gas and Elizabethtown Gas expire in March 2014.

Sequent also has asset management agreements with certain nonaffiliated customers. Sequent's results could be significantly impacted if these agreements are not renewed or are amended or renewed with less favorable terms.

We are exposed to market risk and may incur losses in wholesale services, midstream operations and retail operations.

The commodity, storage and transportation portfolios at Sequent and the commodity and storage portfolios at midstream operations and SouthStar consist of contracts to buy and sell natural gas commodities, including contracts that are settled by the delivery of the commodity or cash. If the values of these contracts change in a direction or manner that we do not anticipate, we could experience financial losses from our trading activities. Based on a 95% confidence interval and employing a 1-day holding period for all positions, our portfolio of positions as of December 31, 2011 had a VaR of \$2.2 million at wholesale services and less than \$0.1 million at retail operations.

Our accounting results may not be indicative of the risks we are taking or the economic results we expect for wholesale services.

Although Sequent enters into various contracts to hedge the value of our energy assets and operations, the timing of the recognition of profits or losses on the hedges does not always correspond to the profits or losses on the item being hedged. The difference in accounting can result in volatility in Sequent's reported results, even though the expected operating margin is essentially unchanged from the date the transactions were initiated.

Changes in weather conditions may affect our earnings.

Weather conditions and other natural phenomena can have a large impact on our earnings. Severe weather conditions can impact our suppliers and the pipelines that deliver gas to our distribution system. Extended mild weather, during either the winter or summer period, can have a significant impact on demand for and cost of natural gas.

At Nicor Gas approximately 50% of all usage is for space heating and 75% of the usage and revenues occur from October through March. Fluctuations in weather have the potential to significantly impact year-to-year comparisons of operating income and cash flow. We estimate that a 100 degree-day variation from normal weather impacts Nicor Gas' margin, net of income taxes, by approximately \$1 million under its current rate structure.

We have a WNA mechanism for Virginia Natural Gas, Elizabethtown Gas and Chattanooga Gas that partially offsets the impact of unusually cold or warm weather on residential and commercial customer billings and our operating margin. At Elizabethtown Gas we could be required to return a portion of any WNA surcharge to its customers if Elizabethtown Gas' return on equity exceeds its authorized return on equity of 10.3%.

These WNA regulatory mechanisms are most effective in a reasonable temperature range relative to normal weather using historical averages. The protection afforded by the WNA depends on continued regulatory approval. The loss of this continued regulatory approval could make us more susceptible to weather-related earnings fluctuations.

Changes in weather conditions may also impact SouthStar's earnings. As a result, SouthStar uses a variety of weather derivative instruments to stabilize the impact on its operating margin in the event of warmer or colder than normal weather in the winter months. However, these instruments do not fully protect SouthStar's earnings from the effects of unusually warm or cold weather.

Wholesale services' earnings are impacted by changes in weather conditions as weather impacts the demand for natural gas and volatility in the natural gas market. The volatility of natural gas commodity prices has a significant impact on our customer rates, our long-term competitive position against other energy sources and the ability of our wholesale services segment to capture value from location and seasonal spreads. The volatility of natural gas prices has been significantly lower than it has been for several prior years in part due to mild hurricane seasons and mild summer and winter weather. Through the acquisition of natural gas and hedging of natural gas prices, wholesale services reduce the risk to its results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Tropical Shipping's operations are affected by weather conditions in Florida, Canada, the Bahamas and Caribbean regions. During hurricane season in the summer and fall, Tropical Shipping may be subject to revenue loss, higher operating expenses, business interruptions, delays, and ship, equipment and facilities damage which could adversely affect Tropical Shipping's results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Nicor Solutions and Nicor Advanced Energy offer utility-bill management products that mitigate and/or eliminate the risks to customers of variations in weather and we hedge this risk to reduce any adverse affect to our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

A decrease in the availability of adequate pipeline transportation capacity could reduce our revenues and profits.

Our gas supply, for our distribution operations, retail operations, wholesale services and midstream operations segments, depends on the availability of adequate pipeline transportation and storage capacity. We purchase a substantial portion of our gas supply from interstate sources. Interstate pipeline companies transport the gas to our system. A decrease in interstate pipeline capacity available to us or an increase in competition for interstate pipeline transportation and storage service could reduce our normal interstate supply of gas.

Our profitability may decline if the counterparties to Sequent's asset management transactions fail to perform in accordance with Sequent's agreements.

Sequent focuses on capturing the value from idle or underutilized energy assets, typically by executing transactions that balance the needs of various markets and time horizons. Sequent is exposed to the risk that counterparties to our transactions will not perform their obligations. Should the counterparties to these arrangements fail to perform, we may be forced to enter into alternative hedging arrangements, honor the underlying commitment at then-current market prices or return a significant portion of the consideration received for gas. In such events, we may incur additional losses to the extent of amounts, if any, already paid to or received from counterparties.

We could incur additional material costs for the environmental condition of some of our assets, including former manufactured gas plants.

We are generally responsible for all on-site and certain off-site liabilities associated with the environmental condition of the natural gas assets that we have operated, acquired or developed, regardless of when the liabilities arose and whether they are or were known or unknown. In addition, in connection with certain acquisitions and sales of assets,

we may obtain, or be required to provide, indemnification against certain environmental liabilities. Before natural gas was widely available, we manufactured gas from coal and other fuels. Those manufacturing operations were known as MGPs, which we ceased operating in the 1950s.

We have confirmed eleven sites in Georgia and three in Florida where Atlanta Gas Light, or its predecessors, own all or part of an MGP site. We are required to investigate possible environmental contamination at those MGP sites and, if necessary, cleanup any contamination. As of December 31, 2011, the soil and sediment remediation program was substantially complete for all Georgia sites, except for a few remaining areas of recently discovered impact, although groundwater cleanup continues. As of December 31, 2011, projected costs associated with the MGP sites associated with Atlanta Gas Light range from \$42 million to \$98 million. For elements of the MGP program where we still cannot provide engineering cost estimates, considerable variability remains in future cost estimates.

We have identified 26 sites in Illinois for which we may have some responsibility. Nicor Gas and Commonwealth Edison Company are parties to an agreement to cooperate in cleaning up residue at many of these sites. The agreement allocates to Nicor Gas 51.73% of cleanup costs for 23 sites, no portion of the cleanup costs for 14 other sites and 50% of general remediation program costs that do not relate exclusively to particular sites. In addition to the agreement with Commonwealth Edison Company there are 3 sites in which we have sole responsibility. Information regarding preliminary site reviews has been presented to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for certain sites. The results of the detailed site-by-site investigations will determine the extent additional remediation is necessary and provide a basis for estimating additional future costs. Our ERC liabilities are customarily reported estimates of future remediation costs for our former operating sites that are contaminated based on our probabilistic models of potential costs and on an undiscounted basis. However, we have not performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites. Based on the estimates we have performed the Illinois sites cleanup cost estimates range from \$134 to \$216 million. In accordance with Illinois Commission authorization, we have been recovering, and expect to continue to recover, these costs from our customers, subject to annual prudence reviews.

In addition, we are associated with former sites in New Jersey and North Carolina. Material cleanups of these sites have not been completed nor are precise estimates available for future cleanup costs and therefore considerable variability remains in future cost estimates. For the New Jersey sites, cleanup cost estimates range from \$124 million to \$174 million. Costs have been estimated for one site in North Carolina and range from \$10 million to \$16 million.

Inflation and increased gas costs could adversely impact our ability to control operating expenses and costs, increase our level of indebtedness and adversely impact our customer base.

Inflation has caused increases in certain operating costs. We attempt to control costs in part through implementation of best practices and business process improvements, many of which are facilitated through investments in information systems and technology. We have a process in place to continually review the adequacy of our utility gas rates in relation to the increasing cost of providing service and the inherent regulatory lag in adjusting those gas rates. Historically, we have been able to control operating expenses and investments within the amounts authorized to be collected in rates, and we intend to continue to do so. However, any inability by us to control our expenses in a reasonable manner would adversely influence our future results.

Rapid increases in the price of purchased gas cause us to experience a significant increase in short-term debt because we must pay suppliers for gas when it is purchased, which can be significantly in advance of when these costs may be recovered through the collection of monthly customer bills for gas delivered. Increases in purchased gas costs also slow our utility collection efforts as customers are more likely to delay the payment of their gas bills, leading to higher-than-normal accounts receivable. This situation results in higher short-term debt levels and increased bad debt expense. Should the price of purchased gas increase significantly during the upcoming Heating Season, we would expect increases in our short-term debt, accounts receivable and bad debt expense during 2012.

Finally, higher costs of natural gas can cause our utility customers to conserve their use of our gas services or switch to other competing products. Higher natural gas costs may increase competition from products utilizing alternative energy sources for applications that have traditionally used natural gas, encouraging some customers to move away from natural gas fired equipment to equipment fueled by other energy sources. However, natural gas prices are expected to remain low and may continue to be lower than they have been historically as a result of a robust natural gas supply, the weak economy and ample storage.

The cost of providing retirement plan benefits to eligible employees and qualified retirees is subject to changes in pension fund values and changes in liabilities as a result of updated demographics and assumptions. These changes may have a material adverse effect on our financial results.

Nicor Gas maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan for substantially all of its employees hired prior to 1998 and a retiree health care plan for the benefit of substantially all of its employees (Nicor Gas retirees make contributions to their health care plan. AGL Resources maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan and retiree health care plan for its pre-Nicor merger full-time employees and qualified retirees. Further note that the AGL retiree health care plan only includes medical coverage for eligible AGL Resources employees who were employed as of June 30, 2002, if they reach retirement age while working for us; additionally the pre-65 retirees make contributions to their health care plan. Effective January 1, 2012, the AGL Retirement Plan was frozen with respect to participation for non-union employees hired on or after that date. Such employees will be entitled to employer provided benefits under their defined contribution plan, that exceed defined contribution benefits for employees who participate in the defined benefit plan. The cost of providing these benefits to eligible current and former employees is subject to changes in the market value of our pension fund assets, changing demographics and assumptions, including longer life expectancy of beneficiaries and changes in health care cost trends.

Any sustained declines in equity markets and reductions in bond yields may have a material adverse effect on the value of our pension funds. In these circumstances, we may be required to recognize an increased pension expense or

a charge to our other comprehensive income to the extent that the pension fund values are less than the total anticipated liability under the plans. Market declines in the second half of 2008 resulted in significant losses in the value of our pension fund assets. Although the market made a recovery in 2009 and 2010 our pension fund assets are not at the levels they were prior to the market decline in 2008. As a result, based on the current funding status of the AGL plans, we would be required to make a minimum contribution to these plans of approximately \$36 million in 2012. We may make additional contributions in 2012 in order to preserve the current level of benefits under the plans and in accordance with the funding requirements of The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (Pension Protection Act). As of December 31, 2011 our pension plans assets represented 78% of our total pension plan obligations.

For more information regarding some of these obligations, see Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" under the caption "Contractual Obligations and Commitments" and the subheading "Retirement Plan Obligations" and Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Natural disasters, terrorist activities and the potential for military and other actions could adversely affect our businesses.

Natural disasters may damage our assets. The threat of terrorism and the impact of retaliatory military and other action by the United States and its allies may lead to increased political, economic and financial market instability and volatility in the price of natural gas that could affect our operations. In addition, future acts of terrorism could be directed against companies operating in the United States, and companies in the energy industry may face a heightened risk of exposure to acts of terrorism. These developments have subjected our operations to increased risks. The insurance industry has also been disrupted by these events. As a result, the availability of insurance covering risks against which we and our competitors typically insure may be limited. In addition, the insurance we are able to obtain may have higher deductibles, higher premiums and more restrictive policy terms.

Changes in the laws and regulations regarding the sale and marketing of products and services offered by our retail operations segment could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our retail operations segment provides various energy-related products and services. These include sales of natural gas and utility-bill management services to residential and small commercial customers, the sale, repair, maintenance and warranty of heating, air conditioning and indoor air quality equipment. The sale and marketing of these products and services are subject to various state and federal laws and regulations. Changes in these laws and regulations could impose additional costs on or restrict or prohibit certain activities, which could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In 1997, Georgia enacted legislation allowing deregulation of gas distribution operations. To date, Georgia is the only state in the nation that has fully deregulated gas distribution operations, which ultimately resulted in Atlanta Gas Light exiting the retail natural gas sales business while retaining its gas distribution operations. Marketers, including our majority-owned subsidiary, SouthStar, then assumed the retail gas sales responsibility at deregulated prices. The deregulation process required Atlanta Gas Light to completely reorganize its operations and personnel at significant expense. We are not aware of any movement to do so, but it is possible that the legislature could reverse or amend portions of the deregulation process.

Changes in the laws and regulations regarding maritime activities offered by our cargo shipping segment could adversely affect the results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Tropical Shipping is subject to the International Ship and Port-facility Security Code and is also subject to the United States Maritime Transportation Security Act, both of which require extensive security assessments, plans and procedures. Tropical Shipping is also subject to the regulations of the Federal Maritime Commission, the Surface Transportation Board, as well as other federal agencies and local laws, where applicable. Additional costs that could result from changes in the rules and regulations of these regulatory agencies would adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Conservation could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

As a result of recent legislative and regulatory initiatives, we have put into place programs to promote additional energy efficiency by our customers. Funding for such programs is being recovered through cost recovery riders. However, the adverse impact of lower deliveries and resulting reduced margin could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

A security breach could disrupt our operating systems, shutdown our facilities or expose confidential personal information.

Security breaches of our information technology infrastructure, including cyber-attacks and cyber terrorism, could lead to system disruptions or generate facility shutdowns. If such an attack or security breach were to occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In addition, such an attack could affect our ability to service our indebtedness, our ability to raise capital and our future growth opportunities.

Additionally, the protection of customer, employee and company data is critical to us. A breakdown or a breach in our systems that results in the unauthorized release of individually identifiable customer or other sensitive data could occur and have a material adverse effect on our reputation, operating results and financial condition. Such a breakdown or breach could also materially increase the costs we incur to protect against such risks. There is no guarantee that the procedures that we have implemented to protect against unauthorized access to secured data are adequate to safeguard against all data security breaches.

We could be adversely affected by violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws.

Our international operations require us to comply with a number of U.S. and international laws and regulations, including those involving anti-bribery and anti-corruption. The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") generally prohibits United States companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or maintaining business or obtaining an improper business benefit. Although our policies require compliance with these laws, we may be held liable for actions taken by our strategic or local partners in foreign jurisdictions, even though these partners may not be subject to the FCPA. Violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt our business and result in a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

#### Risks Related to Our Corporate and Financial Structure

We depend on our ability to successfully access the capital and financial markets. Any inability to access the capital or financial markets may limit our ability to execute our business plan or pursue improvements that we may rely on for future growth.

We rely on access to both short-term money markets (in the form of commercial paper and lines of credit) and long-term capital markets as a source of liquidity for capital and operating requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from our operations. If we are not able to access financial markets at competitive rates, our ability to implement our business plan and strategy will be negatively affected, and we may be forced to postpone, modify or cancel capital projects. Certain market disruptions may increase our cost of borrowing or affect our ability to access one or more financial markets. Such market disruptions could result from:

- · adverse economic conditions
- adverse general capital market conditions
- poor performance and health of the utility industry in general
- bankruptcy or financial distress of unrelated energy companies or Marketers
  - significant decrease in the demand for natural gas
- adverse regulatory actions that affect our local gas distribution companies and our natural gas storage business
  - terrorist attacks on our facilities or our suppliers or
    - extreme weather conditions.

During 2011, our issuances of new debt along with our commercial paper borrowings were primarily used to fund the merger with Nicor, capital expenditures and purchase natural gas inventories for the 2011 / 2012 Heating Season. The amount of our working capital requirements in the near-term will primarily depend on the market price of natural gas and weather. Higher natural gas prices may adversely impact our accounts receivable collections and may require us to increase borrowings under our credit facilities to fund our operations.

While we believe we can meet our capital requirements from our operations and our available sources of financing, we can provide no assurance that we will continue to be able to do so in the future, especially if the market price of natural gas increases significantly in the near-term. The future effects on our business, liquidity and financial results due to market disruptions could be material and adverse to us, both in the ways described above, or in ways that we do not currently anticipate.

If we breach any of the financial covenants under our various credit facilities, our debt service obligations could be accelerated.

The AGL Credit Facility and the Nicor Gas Credit Facility contain financial covenants. If we breach any of the financial covenants under these agreements, our debt repayment obligations under them could be accelerated. In such event, we may not be able to refinance or repay all our indebtedness, which would result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

A downgrade in our credit rating could negatively affect our ability to access capital, or may require us to provide additional collateral to certain counterparties.

Our senior debt is currently assigned investment grade credit ratings. If the rating agencies downgrade our ratings, particularly below investment grade, it may significantly limit our access to the commercial paper market and our borrowing costs would increase. In addition, we would likely be required to pay a higher interest rate in future financings and our potential pool of investors and funding sources would likely decrease.

Additionally, if our credit rating by either S&P or Moody's falls to non-investment grade status, we will be required to provide additional support for certain customers. In December 2010, after we announced the proposed merger with Nicor, S&P lowered our outlook from stable to negative watch. In December 2011, related to our merger with Nicor, our credit ratings were graded as follows:

- Moody's affirmed the senior unsecured and short-term ratings of the legacy subsidiaries of AGL Resources. Moody's withdrew the short-term rating of Nicor and downgraded the long-term and short-term ratings of Nicor Gas (long-term to A3, from A2, and short-term to P-2 from P-1). Moody's affirmed the Stable outlook for all of our entities.
- S&P affirmed its rating of AGL Capital (BBB+), while lowering the corporate credit ratings on AGL Resources and its subsidiaries (Atlanta Gas Light and Nicor Gas). The corporate credit rating of AGL Resources and Atlanta Gas Light was downgraded from A- to BBB+ while the corporate credit rating of Nicor Gas was downgraded from AA to BBB+. S&P indicated the downgrade primarily stems from our increased financial leverage resulting from the Nicor merger. S&P rated both the AGL Capital and Nicor Gas commercial paper programs at A-2. As a result of these actions, S&P removed the Negative Watch and noted the outlook is now Stable.
- Fitch affirmed its ratings on AGL Resources and its subsidiaries (A-) and Nicor Gas (A), with a Stable outlook. Fitch noted that our consolidated financial profile is pressured, and that with the addition of acquisition-related debt, our consolidated credit metrics are weak for the ratings category. Fitch indicated that long-term ratings stability will depend on reduction in leverage through successful integration and the realization of operating synergies.

As of December 31, 2011, if our credit rating had fallen below investment grade, we would have been required to provide collateral of approximately \$48 million to continue conducting business with certain counterparties.

We are vulnerable to interest rate risk with respect to our debt, which could lead to changes in interest expense and adversely affect our earnings.

We are subject to interest rate risk in connection with the issuance of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. In order to maintain our desired mix of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt, we may use interest rate swap agreements and exchange fixed-rate and variable-rate interest payment obligations over the life of the arrangements, without exchange of the underlying principal amounts. For additional information, see Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk." We cannot ensure that we will be successful in structuring such swap agreements to manage our risks effectively. If we are unable to do so, our earnings may be reduced. In addition, higher interest rates, all other things equal, reduce the earnings that we derive from transactions where we capture the difference between authorized returns and short-term borrowings.

We are a holding company and are dependent on cash flow from our subsidiaries, which may not be available in the amounts and at the times we need.

A significant portion of our outstanding debt was issued by our wholly owned subsidiary, AGL Capital, which we fully and unconditionally guarantee. Since we are a holding company and have no operations separate from our investment in our subsidiaries, we are dependent on cash in the form of dividends or other distributions from our subsidiaries to meet our cash requirements. The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends and make other distributions is subject to applicable state law. In addition, Nicor Gas is not permitted to make money pool loans to affiliates. Refer to Item 5, "Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities" for additional dividend restriction information.

The use of derivative contracts in the normal course of our business could result in financial losses that negatively impact our results of operations.

We use derivatives, including futures, forwards and swaps, to manage our commodity and financial market risks. We could recognize financial losses on these contracts as a result of volatility in the market values of the underlying commodities or if a counterparty fails to perform under a contract. In the absence of actively quoted market prices and

pricing information from external sources, the valuation of these derivative instruments can involve management's judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could adversely affect the value of the reported fair value of these contracts.

As a result of cross-default provisions in our borrowing arrangements, we may be unable to satisfy all our outstanding obligations in the event of a default on our part.

The AGL Credit Facility and the Nicor Gas Credit Facility contain cross-default provisions. Should an event of default occur under some of our debt agreements, we face the prospect of being in default under other of our debt agreements, obligated in such instance to satisfy a large portion of our outstanding indebtedness and unable to satisfy all our outstanding obligations simultaneously.

Changes in taxation could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Various tax and fee increases may occur in locations in which we operate. For example, the Illinois corporate income tax rate was increased effective January 1, 2011. We cannot predict whether other legislation or regulation will be introduced, the form of any legislation or regulation, or whether any such legislation or regulation will be passed by the legislatures or other governmental bodies. New taxes or an increase in tax rates would increase tax expense and could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various courts and governmental bodies that could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various courts and governmental bodies with respect to general claims, rates, taxes, environmental issues, billing, credit and collection matters, intersegment services, gas cost prudence reviews and other matters. Adverse decisions regarding these matters, to the extent they require us to make payments in excess of amounts provided for in our financial statements, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

## Risks Related to Our Merger with Nicor

The market price of our common stock after the merger may be affected by factors different from those affecting the shares of AGL Resources or Nicor prior to the merger.

Our businesses differ from those of Nicor in important respects and, accordingly, the results of operations of the combined company and the market price of our shares of common stock following the merger may be affected by factors different from those affecting the results of our operations prior to the merger.

The merger may not be accretive to our earnings and may cause dilution to our earnings per share, which may negatively affect the market price of our common shares.

We may encounter additional transaction and integration-related costs, may fail to realize all of the benefits anticipated in the merger or be subject to other factors that affect preliminary estimates. Any of these factors could cause a decrease in our earnings per share or decrease or delay the expected accretive effect of the merger and contribute to a decrease in the price of our common shares.

The anticipated benefits of combining Nicor with us may not be realized.

We entered into the Merger Agreement with the expectation that the merger would result in various benefits, including, among other things, increased operating efficiencies and reduced costs. Although we expect to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger, achieving them is subject to a number of uncertainties, including:

- the ability to combine certain of our operations or take advantage of expected growth opportunities
  - general market and economic conditions
  - general competitive factors in the marketplace
  - higher than expected costs required to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger.

No assurance can be given that these benefits will be achieved or, if achieved, the timing of their achievement. Failure to achieve these anticipated benefits could result in increased costs and decreases in the amount of expected revenues or net income of the combined company.

The integration of AGL Resources and Nicor will present significant challenges that may result in a decline in the anticipated potential benefits of the merger.

The difficulties of combining operations include:

- combining the best practices, including utility operations, non-regulated energy marketing operations and staff functions
- the necessity of coordinating geographically separated organizations, systems and facilities
- integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds and organizational cultures

- moving our operating headquarters for our gas distribution business to Naperville, Illinois
- reducing the costs associated with each company's operations
- preserving important relationships of both AGL Resources and Nicor and resolving potential conflicts that may arise.

The process of combining operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of one or more of the combined company's businesses and the possible loss of key personnel. The diversion of management's attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the merger and the integration of our operations could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or prospects of the combined company after the merger.

We have incurred and will incur significant transaction, merger-related and restructuring costs in connection with the merger.

We continue to incur restructuring and integration costs in connection with the merger. We are assessing the magnitude of these costs and additional unanticipated costs may be incurred as we continue the integration of the businesses. The costs related to restructuring are expensed as a cost of the ongoing results of operations of the combined company. Although we expect that the elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses, may offset incremental transaction, merger-related and restructuring costs over time, any net benefit may not be achieved in the near term, or at all.

The combined company recorded goodwill and intangible assets that could become impaired and adversely affect the combined company's operating results.

We accounted for the merger as a purchase in accordance with GAAP. Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Nicor were recorded, as of the date of the merger, at their respective fair values and added to our assets and liabilities. Our reported financial condition and results of operations issued after completion of the merger reflect Nicor balances and results after completion of the merger, but do not restate retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or results of operations of Nicor for periods prior to the merger. The earnings of the combined company reflect purchase accounting adjustments.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price was allocated to Nicor's tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets based on their fair values as of the date of the merger. Identifiable intangible assets of \$103 million were recorded. The fair value of Nicor's assets and liabilities subject to the rate setting practices of their regulators approximate their carrying value. The excess of the purchase price over identifiable fair values was recorded as goodwill in the amount of approximately \$1.4 billion. To the extent the value of goodwill or intangibles becomes impaired, the combined company may be required to incur impairment charges that could have a material impact on the combined company's operating results.

Our indebtedness following the merger is higher than our previous indebtedness, which could limit our operations and opportunities, make it more difficult for us to pay or refinance our debts and may cause us to issue additional equity in the future, which would increase the dilution of our shareholders or reduce earnings.

In connection with the merger, we assumed Nicor's outstanding debt and incurred additional debt to pay the cash portion of the merger consideration and transactions expenses. Our total indebtedness as of December 31, 2011 was approximately \$4.9 billion (including approximately \$1.3 billion of short-term borrowings and approximately \$3.6 billion of long-term debt and other long-term obligations).

Our debt service obligations with respect to this increased indebtedness could have an adverse impact on our earnings and cash flows (which after the merger include the earnings and cash flows of Nicor) for as long as the indebtedness is outstanding.

This increased indebtedness could also have important consequences to shareholders. For example, it could:

- make it more difficult for us to pay or refinance our debts as they become due during adverse economic and industry conditions because any decrease in revenues could cause us to not have sufficient cash flows from operations to make our scheduled debt payments
- limit our flexibility to pursue other strategic opportunities or react to changes in our business and the industry in which we operate and, consequently, place us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with less debt
- require a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to be used for debt service payments, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, dividend

payments and other general corporate purposes

- result in a downgrade in the credit rating of our indebtedness, which could limit our ability to borrow additional funds or increase the interest rates applicable to our indebtedness
- reduce the amount of credit available to us to support hedging activities
- result in higher interest expense in the event of increases in interest rates since some of our borrowings are, and will continue to be, at variable rates.

Based upon current levels of operations, we expect to be able to generate sufficient cash on a consolidated basis to make all of the principal and interest payments when such payments are due under our existing credit agreements, indentures and other instruments governing our outstanding indebtedness, and under the indebtedness of Nicor and its subsidiaries that remained outstanding after the merger; but there can be no assurance that we will be able to repay or refinance such borrowings and obligations.

We are committed to maintaining and improving our credit ratings. In order to maintain and improve these credit ratings, we may consider it appropriate to reduce the amount of indebtedness outstanding. This may be accomplished in several ways, including issuing additional shares of common stock or securities convertible into shares of common stock, reducing discretionary uses of cash or a combination of these and other measures. Issuances of additional shares of common stock or securities convertible into shares of common stock would have the effect of diluting the ownership percentage that shareholders will hold in the combined company and might reduce the reported earnings per share. The specific measures that we may ultimately decide to use to maintain or improve our credit ratings and their timing, will depend upon a number of factors, including market conditions and forecasts at the time those decisions are made.

#### ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We do not have any unresolved comments from the SEC staff regarding our periodic or current reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

#### ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We consider our properties to be well maintained, in good operating condition and suitable for their intended purpose. The following provides the location and general character of the materially important properties that are used by our segments. Substantially all of Nicor Gas' properties are subject to the lien of the indenture securing its first mortgage bonds. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

#### Distribution and transmission mains

Our distribution systems transport natural gas from our pipeline suppliers to our customers in our service areas. At December 31, 2011, our distribution operations segment owned approximately 80,000 miles of underground distribution and transmission mains. The distribution and transmission mains are located on easements or rights-of-way which generally provide for perpetual use.

## Storage assets

Distribution Operations We own and operate eight underground natural gas storage facilities in Illinois with a total inventory capacity of about 150 Bcf, approximately 135 Bcf of which can be cycled on an annual basis. The system is designed to meet about 50% of the estimated peak-day deliveries and approximately 40% of its normal winter deliveries in Illinois. In addition to the facilities we own, we have about 40 Bcf of purchased storage services under contracts with Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America that expire in 2013. This level of storage capability provides us with supply flexibility, improves the reliability of deliveries and can mitigate the risk associated with seasonal price movements.

We have approximately 7.5 Bcf of LNG storage capacity in five LNG plants located in Georgia, New Jersey and Tennessee. In addition, we own two propane storage facilities in Virginia that have a combined storage capacity of approximately 0.5 Bcf. The LNG plants and propane storage facilities are used by our distribution operations segment to supplement natural gas supply during peak usage periods.

Midstream Operations We currently own three high-deliverability natural gas storage and hub facilities which are operated by our midstream operations segment. Jefferson Island operates a salt-dome storage facility in Louisiana currently consisting of two salt dome gas storage caverns with approximately 10 Bcf of total capacity and about 7.2 Bcf of working gas capacity. Golden Triangle Storage operates a salt-dome storage facility in Texas designed for approximately 13.3 Bcf of working natural gas capacity and total cavern capacity of 20 Bcf. Cavern 1, with 6 Bcf of working capacity, was completed and began commercial service in September 2010. Cavern 2, with an expected 7.3

Bcf of working capacity, is expected to be placed into commercial service in mid-2012. Central Valley is developing an underground natural gas storage facility in California with an expected 11 Bcf of working natural gas capacity and is expected to be placed into commercial service in mid-2012.

#### Vessels and shipping containers

Our cargo shipping segment operates 12 owned vessels and 2 chartered vessels with a container capacity totaling approximately 5,500 TEUs. The owned vessels range in age from 1-35 years, and vary in length from 249-491 feet. In addition to the vessels, the company owns and/or leases containers, freight-handling equipment, chassis and other equipment.

## Offices

All of our segments own or lease office, warehouse and other facilities throughout our operating areas. We expect additional or substitute space to be available as needed to accommodate the expansion of our operations.

## ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of our business ordinarily results in periodic regulatory proceedings before various state and federal authorities. In addition, we are party, as both plaintiff and defendant, to a number of lawsuits related to our business on an ongoing basis. Management believes that the outcome of all regulatory proceedings and litigation in which we are currently involved will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

For more information regarding some of these proceedings, see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein under the caption "Litigation".

#### ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

#### **PART II**

# ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Holders of Common Stock, Stock Price and Dividend Information

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. On December 16, 2011, our ticker symbol changed from AGL to GAS. At January 31, 2012, there were 17,770 record holders of our common stock, which represents an increase of approximately 8,500 from the same period in 2011. The increase in the number of record holders and the change in our ticker symbol were primarily the result of the completion of our merger with Nicor on December 9, 2011. Quarterly information concerning our high and low stock prices and cash dividends paid in 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

			Cash dividend				Cash dividend	
	Sales price of common		per		Sales pric	per		
	S	stock	common		!	stock		
Quarter ended:	High	Low	Share	Quarter ended:	High	Low	share	
				March 31,				
March 31, 2011	\$39.91	\$35.65	\$0.45	2010	\$38.83	\$34.26	\$0.44	
June 30, 2011	42.34	38.58	0.45	June 30, 2010	40.08	34.72	0.44	
September 30,				September 30,				
2011	42.40	34.08	0.45	2010	40.00	35.29	0.44	
December 31,				December 31,				
2011 (1)	43.69	37.95	0.55	2010	39.66	34.21	0.44	
			\$1.90				\$1.76	

(1) As a result of the Nicor merger, AGL Resources shareholders of record as of the close of business on December 8, 2011, received a pro rata dividend of \$0.0989 for the stub period, accruing from November 19, 2011. For presentation purposes the amount in the table was rounded to \$0.10.

We have historically paid dividends to common shareholders four times a year: March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1. We have paid 256 consecutive quarterly dividends beginning in 1948. Our common shareholders may receive dividends when declared at the discretion of our Board of Directors. See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Liquidity and Capital Resources – Cash Flow from Financing Activities – Dividends on Common Stock." Dividends may be paid in cash, stock or other form of payment, and payment of future dividends will depend on our future earnings, cash flow, financial requirements and other factors, some of which are noted below. In certain cases, our ability to pay dividends to our common shareholders is limited by our ability to satisfy our obligations under certain financing agreements, including debt-to-capitalization covenants.

Under Georgia law, the payment of cash dividends to the holders of our common stock is limited to our legally available assets and subject to the prior payment of dividends on any outstanding shares of preferred stock. Our assets are not legally available for paying cash dividends if, after payment of the dividend:

- we could not pay our debts as they become due in the usual course of business, or
- our total assets would be less than our total liabilities plus, subject to some exceptions, any amounts necessary to satisfy (upon dissolution) the preferential rights of shareholders whose preferential rights are superior to those of the shareholders receiving the dividends.

## **Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities**

There were no purchases of our common stock by us and any affiliated purchasers during the three months ended December 31, 2011, as set forth in the following table. Stock repurchases may be made in the open market or in private transactions at times and in amounts that we deem appropriate. However, there is no guarantee as to the exact number of additional shares that may be repurchased, and we may terminate or limit the stock repurchase program at any time. We currently anticipate holding the repurchased shares as treasury shares.

					Maximum
				Total	number of
				number of	shares that
				shares	may yet be
				purchased	purchased
	Total	A	verage	as part of	under the
	number of		price	publicly	publicly
	shares	p	aid per	announced	announced
	purchased	common		plans or	plans or
Period	(1)	share		programs	programs
October					
2011	0	\$	0	0	0
November					
2011	0		0	0	0
December					
2011	0		0	0	0
Total					
fourth					
quarter	0	\$	0	0	0
(1) 0 . 14	- 1- 20 200	.1	D		

<sup>(1)</sup> On March 20, 2001, our Board of Directors approved the purchase of up to 600,000 shares of our common stock in the open market to be used for issuances under the Officer Incentive Plan (Officer Plan). We did not purchase any shares for such purposes in the fourth quarter of 2011. As of December 31, 2011, we had purchased a total 383,591 of the 600,000 shares authorized for purchase, leaving 216,409 shares available for purchase under this program.

#### ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data about AGL Resources for the last five years is set forth in the table below. You should read the data in the table in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes set forth in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." Material changes from 2010 to 2011 are primarily due to the Nicor merger on December 9, 2011. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional merger related information.

Dollars and shares in millions, except per						
share amounts	2011 (1)	2010	2009	2008	2007	
Income statement data						
Operating revenues	\$2,338	\$2,373	\$2,317	\$2,800	\$2,494	
Operating expenses						
Cost of goods sold	1,097	1,164	1,142	1,654	1,369	
Operation and maintenance (2)	490	497	497	472	451	
Depreciation and amortization	186	160	158	152	144	
Nicor merger expenses (2)	68	6	0	0	0	
Taxes other than income taxes	57	46	44	44	41	
Total operating expenses	1,898	1,873	1,841	2,322	2,005	
Operating income	440	500	476	478	489	
Other income (expense)	7	(1	) 9	6	4	
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)						
(3)	447	499	485	484	493	
Interest expenses	136	109	101	115	125	
Earnings before income taxes	311	390	384	369	368	
Income taxes	125	140	135	132	127	
Net income	186	250	249	237	241	
Less net income attributable to the						
noncontrolling interest	14	16	27	20	30	
Net income attributable to AGL Resources						
Inc.	\$172	\$234	\$222	\$217	\$211	
Common stock data						
Weighted average common shares						
outstanding basic	80.4	77.4	76.8	76.3	77.1	
Weighted average common shares						
outstanding diluted	80.9	77.8	77.1	76.6	77.4	
Total shares outstanding (4)	117.0	78.0	77.5	76.9	76.4	
Basic earnings per common share						
attributable to AGL Resources Inc.						
common shareholders	\$2.14	\$3.02	\$2.89	\$2.85	\$2.74	
Diluted earnings per common share –	•	·		·	·	
attributable to AGL Resources Inc.						
common shareholders	\$2.12	\$3.00	\$2.88	\$2.84	\$2.72	
Dividends declared per common share (5)	\$1.90	\$1.76	\$1.72	\$1.68	\$1.64	
Dividend payout ratio	89	% 58	% 60	% 59	% 60	%
Dividend yield (6)	4.5	% 4.9	% 4.7	% 5.4	% 4.4	%
Price range:						
High	\$43.69	\$40.08	\$37.52	\$39.13	\$44.67	
Low	\$34.08	\$34.21	\$24.02	\$24.02	\$35.24	
Close (4)	\$42.26	\$35.85	\$36.47	\$31.35	\$37.64	
Market value (4)	\$4,946	\$2,800	\$2,826	\$2,411	\$2,876	
Statements of Financial Position data (4)	, .,v	+ <b></b> ,000	, _,o <b>_</b> o	<del>+</del> =, · · ·	+ =,0 , 0	
Total assets	\$13,913	\$7,520	\$7,079	\$6,710	\$6,258	
Property, plant and equipment – net	7,900	4,405	4,146	3,816	3,566	
Short-term debt	1,338	1,033	602	866	580	
Long-term debt	3,561	1,671	1,974	1,675	1,675	
Total debt	4,899	2,704	2,576	2,541	2,255	
20101 0001	.,0//	2,704	2,570	2,571	2,233	

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

Total equity	3,339		1,836		1,819		1,684		1,708	
Cash flow data										
Net cash flow provided by operating										
activities	\$451		\$526		\$592		\$227		\$377	
Net cash flow used in investing activities	(1,339	)	(442	)	(476	)	(372	)	(253	)
Net cash flow (used in) provided by										
financing activities	933		(86	)	(106	)	142		(122	)
Net borrowings and (payments) of										
short-term debt	91		131		(264	)	286		52	
Financial ratios (4)										
Debt	59	%	60	%	59	%	60	%	57	%
Equity	41	%	40	%	41	%	40	%	43	%
Total	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%
Return on average equity	6.6	%	12.8	%	12.7	%	12.8	%	12.6	%

- (1) Material changes from 2010 to 2011 are primarily due to the Nicor merger on December 9, 2011. The year ending December 31, 2011 includes only 22 days of Nicor activity from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011. See Note 3 for additional merger related information.
- (2) Transaction expenses associated with the Nicor merger were excluded from operation and maintenance expenses.
- (3) This is a non-GAAP measurement. A reconciliation of EBIT to earnings before income taxes and net income is contained in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations AGL Resources-Results of Operations."
  - (4) As of the last day of the fiscal period.
- (5) As a result of the Nicor merger, AGL Resources shareholders of record as of the close of business on December 8, 2011, received a pro rata dividend of \$0.0989 for the stub period, accruing from November 19, 2011. For presentation purposes the amount in the table was rounded to \$0.10.
- (6) Dividends declared per common share during the fiscal period divided by market value per common share as of the last day of the fiscal period.

# ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

**Executive Summary** 

Merger with Nicor On December 9, 2011, we closed the merger with Nicor. We are now the nation's largest natural gas-only distribution company based on customer count. The merger created a combined company with increased scale and scope in both regulated utility and non-regulated businesses as indicated below:

- Seven regulated natural gas distribution companies providing natural gas services to approximately 4.5 million customers in Illinois, Georgia, Virginia, New Jersey, Florida, Tennessee and Maryland
  - Over 1 million retail customers in the unregulated businesses
  - Physical wholesale gas business delivering approximately 5.2 Bcf of natural gas per day
- Natural gas storage facilities that are expected to provide approximately 31.8 Bcf of working gas storage capacity in 2012

As a result of our merger with Nicor some of our businesses have been reclassified to different segments. See Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional segment information including recasted prior period information. The following table provides more information on our segments.

	EBIT (2)					Assets (3)					Capital Expenditures (2)							
	2011		2010		2009		2011		2010		2009		2011		2010		2009	
Distribution																		
operations	80	%	70	%	67	%	79	%	73	%	74	%	85	%	70	%	74	%
Retail																		
operations	18		21		22		4		3		4		1		1		1	
Wholesale																		
services	1		10		10		9		18		16		0		0		0	
Midstream																		
operations	2		1		1		4		6		5		8		25		23	
Cargo																		
shipping	0		n/a		n/a		5		n/a		n/a		0		n/a		n/a	
Other (1)	(1	)	(2	)	0		(1	)	0		1		6		4		2	
Total	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%	100	%

- (1) The 2011 results exclude the effects of the \$68 million of merger expenses which were reported within our other segment.
- (2) The year ending December 31, 2011 only includes 22 days of Nicor activity from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011.
  - (3) The 2011 amounts include Nicor assets as of December 31, 2011.

Over the last three years, on average, we have derived 72% of our operating segments' EBIT from our regulated natural gas distribution business whose rates are approved by state regulatory commissions. We derived our remaining operating segment's EBIT for the last three years principally from businesses that are complementary to our natural gas distribution business. These businesses include the sale of natural gas to retail customers, natural gas asset management and the operation of high-deliverability natural gas underground storage as ancillary activities to our regulated utility franchises.

The increased impact of the rate-regulated distribution operations segment on our overall business is expected to reduce our exposure to market fluctuations.

For additional information on the Nicor merger see Item 1- Business as well as Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Legislative and regulatory update We continue to actively pursue a regulatory strategy that improves customer service and reduces the lag between our investments in infrastructure and the recovery of those investments through various rate mechanisms. If our rate design proposals are not approved, we will continue to work cooperatively with our regulators, legislators and others to create a framework that is conducive to our business goals and the interests of our customers and shareholders.

On December 20, 2011, the Virginia Commission approved an annual increase of \$11 million in base rate revenues and established an authorized return on equity of 10% for Virginia Natural Gas with an overall return on rate base set at 7.38%. Additionally, \$3.1 million of costs previously recovered through base rates will now be recovered through the company's gas cost recovery rate. Customer's bills will be credited to refund the difference between the final approved rates and interim rate increase, which began with usage on and after October 1, 2011. The new rate is expected to increase the average residential customer's monthly bill by less than \$3.50 per month depending on usage.

Customer growth initiatives While there has been some improvement in the economic conditions within the areas we serve, we continue to see higher rates of unemployment, depressed housing markets with high inventories, significantly reduced new home construction and a slow-down in new commercial development. As a result, we have experienced only slight customer gains in our distribution operations and retail operations segments throughout 2011. Our year-over-year consolidated utility customer gain rate was 0.1% in 2011, compared to a loss rate of (0.1)% for 2010. We anticipate overall competition and customer trends in 2012 to be similar to our 2011 results. In addition, for the full year 2011 Nicor Gas increased their customer count by 0.4% compared to 0.2% for 2010.

We use a variety of targeted marketing programs to attract new customers and to retain existing customers. These efforts include working to add residential customers, multifamily complexes and commercial customers who use natural gas for purposes other than space heating, as well as evaluating and launching new natural gas related programs, products and services to enhance customer growth, mitigate customer attrition and increase operating revenues. These programs generally emphasize natural gas as the fuel of choice for customers and seek to expand the use of natural gas through a variety of promotional activities. On October 10, 2011, Georgia Natural Gas was named the exclusive natural gas partner for the Delta Air Lines Inc. Delta SkyMiles Program in Georgia. This is a long-term partnership and we expect it will help retain current customers as well as attract new customers from other Marketers in Georgia.

Natural gas price volatility Volatility in the natural gas market arises from a number of factors such as weather fluctuations or changes in supply or demand for natural gas in different regions of the country. The volatility of natural gas commodity prices has a significant impact on our customer rates, our long-term competitive position against other energy sources and the ability of our wholesale services segment to capture value from location and seasonal spreads. During 2008 and 2009, daily Henry Hub spot market prices for natural gas in the United States were extremely volatile. However, during 2010 and 2011, the volatility of natural gas prices has been significantly lower than it had been for several prior years. This is the result of a robust natural gas supply, the weak economy, mild weather and ample storage. Our natural gas acquisition strategy is designed to secure sufficient supplies of natural gas to meet the needs of our utility customers and to hedge gas prices to effectively manage costs, reduce price volatility and maintain a competitive advantage. Additionally, our hedging strategies and physical natural gas supplies in storage enable us to reduce earnings risk exposure due to higher gas costs.

It is possible that natural gas prices will remain low for an extended period based on current levels of excess supply relative to market demand for natural gas, in part due to abundant sources of new shale natural gas reserves and the lack of demand by commercial and industrial enterprises. However, as economic conditions improve, the demand for natural gas may increase, natural gas prices could rise and higher volatility could return to the natural gas markets. Consequently, we are working to reposition our wholesales services business model with respect to fixed costs and the types of contracts pursued and executed.

Hedges Changes in commodity prices subject a significant portion of our operations to earnings variability. Our non-utility businesses principally use physical and financial arrangements to reduce the risks associated with both weather-related seasonal fluctuations in market conditions and changing commodity prices. These economic hedges may not qualify, or are not designated for, hedge accounting treatment. As a result, our reported earnings for the wholesale services, retail operations and midstream operations segments reflect changes in the fair values of certain derivatives. These values may change significantly from period to period and are reflected as gains or losses within our operating revenues or our OCI for those derivative instruments that qualify and are designated as accounting hedges.

Seasonality The operating revenues and EBIT of our distribution operations, retail operations, wholesale services and cargo shipping segments are seasonal. During the Heating Season, natural gas usage and operating revenues are generally higher because more customers are connected to our distribution systems and natural gas usage is higher in periods of colder weather. Occasionally in the summer, wholesale services operating revenues are impacted due to peak usage by power generators in response to summer energy demands. Seasonality also affects the comparison of certain Statements of Financial Position items such as receivables, unbilled revenue, inventories and short-term debt across quarters. However, these items are comparable when reviewing our annual results.

Additionally, the revenues of our cargo shipping business are generally higher in the fourth quarter as our customers require more tourist-related shipments as the hotels, resorts, and cruise ships typically have increased occupancy rates commencing in the fourth quarter and increasing further into the first quarter and consumer spending increases during traditional holiday periods.

Approximately 71% of these segments' operating revenues and 92% of these segments' EBIT for the year ended December 31, 2011 were generated during the first and fourth quarters of 2011, and are reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2011. Our base operating expenses, excluding cost of goods sold, interest expense and certain incentive compensation costs, are incurred relatively equally over any given year. Thus, our operating results can vary significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of seasonality.

**Results of Operations** 

We generate the majority of our operating revenues through the sale, distribution and storage of natural gas. We include in our consolidated revenues an estimate of revenues from natural gas distributed, but not yet billed, to residential, commercial and industrial customers from the date of the last bill to the end of the reporting period. No individual customer or industry accounts for a significant portion of our revenues. As a result of our merger with Nicor, our results of operations for the year ending December 31, 2011 includes 22 days of Nicor activity from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011. See Note 3 for additional merger related information and Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional information regarding reclassification of our business segments. The following table provides more information regarding the components of our operating revenues.

In millions	2011	2010	2009
Residential	\$ 1,065	\$ 1,083	\$ 1,091
Commercial	467	521	467
Transportation	403	404	378
Industrial	289	205	185
Other	114	160	196
Total			
operating			
revenues	\$ 2,338	\$ 2,373	\$ 2,317

We evaluate segment performance using the measures of operating margin and EBIT, which include the effects of corporate expense allocations. Operating margin is a non-GAAP measure that is calculated as operating revenues minus cost of goods sold and revenue tax expense in distribution operations. Operating margin excludes operation and maintenance expense, depreciation and amortization, taxes other than income taxes, and the gain or loss on the sale of our assets. These items are included in our calculation of operating income as reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Income. EBIT is also a non-GAAP measure that includes operating income and other income and expenses. Items that we do not include in EBIT are financing costs, including interest and debt expense and income taxes, each of which we evaluate on a consolidated basis.

We believe operating margin is a better indicator than operating revenues for the contribution resulting from customer growth in our distribution operations segment since the cost of goods sold and revenue tax expenses can vary significantly and are generally billed directly to our customers. We also consider operating margin to be a better indicator in our retail operations, wholesale services, midstream operations and cargo shipping segments since it is a direct measure of operating margin before overhead costs.

We believe EBIT is a useful measurement of our operating segments' performance because it provides information that can be used to evaluate the effectiveness of our businesses from an operational perspective, exclusive of the costs to finance those activities and exclusive of income taxes, neither of which is directly relevant to the efficiency of those operations. You should not consider operating margin or EBIT an alternative to, or a more meaningful indicator of, our operating performance than operating income, or net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. as determined in accordance with GAAP. In addition, our operating margin and EBIT measures may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. The following table reconciles operating revenue and operating margin to operating income and EBIT to earnings before income taxes and net income, together with other consolidated financial information for the last three years.

In millions	2011		2010		2009	
Operating revenues	\$ 2,338	\$	2,373	\$	2,317	
Cost of goods sold	(1,097	')	(1,164)	1)	(1,142)	2)
Revenue tax expense (1)	(9	)	0		0	
Operating margin	1,232		1,209		1,175	
Operating expenses (2)	(733	)	(703	)	(699	)
Revenue tax expense (1)	9		0		0	
Nicor merger expenses (3)	(68	)	(6	)	0	
Operating income	440		500		476	
Other income (expense)	7		(1	)	9	
EBIT	447		499		485	
Interest expenses	136		109		101	
Earnings before income taxes	311		390		384	
Income tax expenses	125		140		135	

Net income	186	250	249
Less net income attributable to			
the noncontrolling interest	14	16	27
Net income attributable to AGL			
Resources Inc.	\$ 172	\$ 234	\$ 222

- (1) Adjusted for revenue tax expenses for Nicor Gas which are passed directly through to customers.
- (2) Excludes transaction expenses associated with the merger with Nicor of approximately \$68 million (\$55 million net of tax) in 2011 and \$6 million (\$4 million net of tax) in 2010.
- (3) Transaction expenses associated with the Nicor merger are part of operating expenses, but are shown separately to better compare year-over-year results.

In 2011, our net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. decreased by \$62 million or 26% compared to last year. The decrease was primarily the result of approximately \$68 million (\$55 million net of tax) of transaction expenses associated with the merger with Nicor in 2011, which were expensed as incurred. We incurred approximately \$6 million (\$4 million net of tax) of Nicor transaction costs in 2010. Additionally, we experienced reduced EBIT at wholesale services and retail energy operations due to decreased average customer usage, warmer weather, losses associated with pipeline constraints in the Marcellus shale gas region and significantly lower natural gas volatility. This decrease was partially offset by higher EBIT at distribution operations due to increased revenues from new rates at Atlanta Gas Light and increased regulatory infrastructure program revenues at Atlanta Gas Light and Elizabethtown Gas. The decrease in our net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. was also unfavorably impacted by increased interest expenses resulting from higher average debt outstanding, primarily the result of the additional long-term debt issuance used to fund the Nicor merger.

In 2010, our net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. increased by \$12 million from the prior year primarily due to increased EBIT at distribution operations largely due to new rates at Atlanta Gas Light and Elizabethtown Gas as well as the completion of the Hampton Roads project by Virginia Natural Gas. The increase in our net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. was also favorably impacted by increased EBIT at wholesale services and our additional 15% ownership interest in SouthStar, which was effective January 1, 2010. This was partly offset by increased interest expense and decreased EBIT at retail operations, midstream operations and other. The decrease in EBIT at retail operations was mainly attributable to increased operating expenses. The variances for each operating segment are contained within the year-over-year 2011 compared to year-over-year discussion on the following pages.

Interest expense In 2011, our interest expense increased by approximately \$27 million. This increase was primarily the result of our prefunding the cash portion of the merger consideration through the issuance of approximately \$975 million of long-term debt during the year. This increased our annual interest expense by approximately \$17 million. The remaining increase during 2011 related primarily to fees paid on our Term Loan Facility and our Bridge Facility.

The increase in our interest expenses of \$8 million in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily the result of fluctuations in short-term interest rates and higher average debt levels. The following table provides additional detail on interest expense for the last three years and the primary items that affect year-over-year change.

In millions	2011		2010		2009	
Interest expenses	\$ 136	\$	109	\$	101	
Average debt outstanding (1)	\$ 2,652	\$	2,393	\$	2,239	
Average rate (2)	5.1	%	4.6	%	4.5	%

(1) Daily average of all outstanding debt.

(2) Increase in the 2011 average interest rate is due to our senior note issuances during the current year.

Income tax expense Our income tax expense in 2011 decreased by \$15 million or 11% compared to 2010. The decrease was primarily due to lower consolidated earnings as previously discussed. Our effective tax rate was 42.1% in 2011, 37.5% in 2010 and 37.8% in 2009. The increased effective tax rate in 2011 was primarily due to non-deductible merger transaction expenses. Our income tax expense in 2010 increased by \$5 million or 4% compared to 2009 primarily due to higher consolidated earnings.

As a result of the authoritative guidance related to consolidations, income tax expense and our effective tax rate are determined from earnings before income taxes less net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest. For more information on our income taxes, including a reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and our effective tax rate, see Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Operating metrics Selected weather, customer and volume metrics for 2011, 2010 and 2009, which we consider to be some of the key performance indicators for our operating segments, are presented in the following tables. For the businesses that were acquired from the Nicor merger we only include the 22 days of activity from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011. We measure the effects of weather on our business through heating degree days. Generally, increased heating degree days result in greater demand for gas on our distribution systems. However, extended and unusually mild weather during the Heating Season can have a significant negative impact on demand for natural gas. Our customer metrics highlight the average number of customers to which we provide services. This number of customers can be impacted by natural gas prices, economic conditions and competition from alternative fuels.

Volume metrics for distribution operations and retail operations present the effects of weather and our customers' demand for natural gas. Wholesale services' daily physical sales represent the daily average natural gas volumes sold to its customers. Within our midstream operations segment, our natural gas storage businesses seek to have a significant percentage of their working natural gas capacity under firm subscription, but also take into account current

and expected market conditions. This allows our natural gas storage business to generate additional revenue during times of peak market demand for natural gas storage services, but retain some consistency with their earnings and maximize the value of the investments.

					2011		2010		2011		2010		2009	
Weather		• •			VS.		vs.		VS.		vs.		vs.	
Heating deg (1)	gree days		ended aber 31,		2010 colde		2009 colde		norm:		norm colde		norm colde	
	Normal	2011	2010	2009	(warme		(warm		(warm		(warm		(warm	
Georgia	2,679	2,454	3,209	2,803	(24	)%		%	(8	)%	20	%	5	%
Virginia	3,182	2,945	3,601	3,312	(18	)%		%	(7	)%	13	%	4	%
New	0,102	_,> .0	0,001	0,012	(10	,,,		, ,	(,	,,,		, c	<u> </u>	,,,
Jersey	4,639	4,275	4,445	4,755	(4	)%	(7	)%	(8	)%	(4	)%	3	%
Florida	551	310	1,108	548	(72	)%	•	%	(44	)%	101	%	(1	)%
Tennessee	3,085	2,953	3,594	3,154	(18	)%		%	(4	)%	16	%	2	%
Maryland	4,696	4,489	4,679	4,783	(4	)%		)%	•	)%	0	%	2	%
Ohio	4,898	4,656	5,181	4,919	(10	)%		%	(5	)%	6	%	0	%
	1,000	1,000	-,	1,5 -2	(20	,,,	_		(5	,,-				
									2011	1			2009	)
					2011 v	S.	2010 v	/S.	vs.	-	2010	vs.	vs.	
		Ouarte	er ended											
		_	nber 31,		2010		2009		norma	al	norm	al	norm	al
			,		colde	r	colde	r	colde		colde		colde	
	Normal	2011	2010	2009	(warme		(warm		(warm		(warm		(warm	
Georgia	1,036	852	1,187	1,182	(28	)%		%	(18	)%	15	%	14	%
Virginia	1,091	853	1,380	1,065	(38	)%		%	(22	)%	26	%	(2	)%
New	,		,	,	· ·					,				
Jersey	1,620	1,328	1,720	1,618	(23	)%	6	%	(18	)%	6	%	0	%
Florida	174	66	365	158	(82	)%		%	(62	)%	110	%	(9	)%
Tennessee	1,216	1,104	1,382	1,283	(20	)%	8	%	(9	)%	14	%	6	%
Maryland	1,673	1,463	1,822	1,665	(20	)%	9	%	(13	)%	9	%	0	%
Ohio	1,828	1,563	2,028	1,893	(23	)%	7	%	(14	)%	11	%	1	%
Customers	(average er	nd-use - in								201	1 vs.		2010 vs	
thousands)	(average er	ia ase iii		Y	ear ende	d Dec	ember '	31			010		2009	•
tilousulius)				2011	201			200	)9		hange	Ó	% chang	re.
Distribution	n Oneration	ıs		2011	201			200	,,	70 C	nunge		e chang	,
Nicor Gas (				2,188	n/	ล		n/a		n/a	(	%	n/a	%
Atlanta Gas	,			1,541		544		1,549	)	(0.2)			(0.3)	)
Virginia Na				278	27			273		1.1	, ,		0.7	,
Elizabethto				276	27			273		0.7			0.4	
Florida City				103	10			103		0.0			0.0	
Chattanoog				62	62			62		0.0			0.0	
Elkton Gas				6	6	-		6		0.0			0.0	
Total				4,454		264		2,266	5	n/a	ć		(0.1	)%
Total				1, 15 1	2,	201		2,200	,	11/ 4		70	(0.1	) / c
Retail Oper	ations													
Georgia				485	49	96		504		(2	)	%	(2	)%
Ohio and F	lorida (3)			96	77	7		103		25	C	%	(25	)%
Total				581	57	73		607		1	(	%	(6	)%

Volumes In billion cubic feet (Bcf)  Distribution Operations (4)	Year 2011	ended Decem 2010	nber 31, 2009	2011 vs 2010 % chang		2010 v 2009 % chan	)
Firm	247	243	218	2	%	11	%
Interruptible	105	99	98	6	%	1	%
Total	352	342	316	3	%	8	%
Retail Operations							
Georgia firm	35	46	40	(24	)%	15	%
Ohio and Florida	9	10	11	(10	)%	(9	)%
Wholesale Services							
Daily physical sales (Bcf / day) (4)	5.21	4.57	2.96	14	%	54	%
				As of Decer	nber 3	•	
			2011	2010		2009	
Midstream Operations							
Working natural gas capacity			13.5	13.5		7.5	
% of capacity under subscription (5)			68	% 51	%	67	%

- (1) Obtained from weather stations relevant to our service areas at the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Climatic Data Center. Normal represents ten-year averages from January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2011. Does not include any heating degree data for Illinois.
  - (2) Nicor Gas customer data is as of December 31, 2011.
- (3) A portion of the Ohio customers represents customer equivalents, which are computed by the actual delivered volumes divided by the expected average customer usage.
- (4) As of December 31, for each respective year, and represents volume information only from December 10, 2011 through December 31, 2011 for the entities acquired from Nicor.
- (5) The percentage of capacity under subscription does not include 4 Bcf of capacity under contract with Sequent at December 31, 2011 and 2 Bcf of capacity under contract with Sequent at December 31, 2010 and at December 31, 2009.

Segment information Operating margin, operating expenses and EBIT information for each of our segments are contained in the following tables for the last three years.

In millions	2011 Operating margin (1)	Operating expenses	EBIT (1)	2010 Operating margin (1)	Operating expenses	EBIT (1)	2009 Operating margin (1)	Operating expenses	EBIT (1)
Distribution	,	•	` '	,	•	, ,		•	Ì
operations	\$ 963	\$ 557	\$ 412	\$ 879	\$ 531	\$ 352	\$ 840	\$ 522	\$ 327
Retail									
operations	168	75	93	183	80	103	181	76	105
Wholesale									
services	57	52	5	105	57	49	111	64	47
Midstream									
operations	37	28	9	30	24	6	22	19	3
Cargo									
shipping	7	8	0	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Other (2)	0	72	(72)	12	17	(11)	21	18	3
Consolidated	\$ 1,232	\$ 792	\$ 447	\$ 1,209	\$ 709	\$ 499	\$ 1,175	\$ 699	\$ 485

- (1) These are non-GAAP measures. A reconciliation of operating revenue and operating margin to operating income and EBIT to earnings before income taxes and net income is contained in "Results of Operations" herein. Please note that our segments have changed as a result of our merger with Nicor and amounts from the periods presented have been reclassified between the segments to reflect these changes. See Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional segment information.
- (2) The increase in operating expenses for 2011 is primarily due to \$68 million in transaction expenses associated with the merger with Nicor. For more information see Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein. Additionally, includes intercompany eliminations.
- (3) Operating margin and expense for 2011 are adjusted for revenue tax expense for Nicor Gas which is passed directly through to customers.

#### **Distribution Operations**

Our distribution operations segment is the largest component of our business and is subject to regulation and oversight by agencies in each of the seven states we serve. These agencies approve natural gas rates designed to provide us the opportunity to generate revenues to recover the cost of natural gas delivered to our customers and our fixed and variable costs such as depreciation, interest, maintenance and overhead costs, and to earn a reasonable return for our shareholders. With the exception of Atlanta Gas Light, our second largest utility, the earnings of our regulated utilities can be affected by customer consumption patterns that are a function of weather conditions, price levels for natural gas and general economic conditions that may impact our customers' ability to pay for gas consumed. We have various mechanisms, such as weather normalization mechanisms, at all of our utilities, with the exception of Nicor Gas, that limit our exposure to weather changes within typical ranges in all of our utilities' respective service areas.

In millions	2011	2010
EBIT – prior year	\$352	\$327
Operating margin		
Increased margin from Nicor Gas as a result the Nicor merger in December 2011	47	0
Increased revenues from new rates and regulatory infrastructure program revenues at		
Atlanta Gas Light	33	9

Increased revenues from customer growth, higher usage and enhanced infrastructure			
program revenues at Elizabethtown Gas	6	6	
Increased revenues from the Hampton Roads project at Virginia Natural Gas	0	21	
(Decreased) increased revenues from usage at Florida City Gas due to weather	(2	) 3	
Decreased margins from gas storage carrying amounts at Atlanta Gas Light	(2	) (1	)
Other	2	1	
Increase in operating margin	84	39	
Operating expenses			
Increased expenses for Nicor Gas as a result of the Nicor merger in December 2011	31	0	
Increased depreciation expense	10	4	
Increased pension expense	2	4	
(Decreased) increased payroll and incentive compensation expense	(14	) 9	
(Decreased) increased marketing costs	(1	) 1	
Decreased bad debt expenses	(4	) (3	)
Increased (decreased) outside services and other expenses	2	(6	)
Increase in operating expenses	26	9	
Increase (decrease) in other income	2	(5	)
EBIT - current year	\$412	\$352	
·			

#### **Retail Operations**

Our retail operations segment, which consists of SouthStar and several businesses that provide energy-related products and services to retail markets, also is weather sensitive and uses a variety of hedging strategies, such as weather derivative instruments and other risk management tools, to mitigate potential weather impacts.

In millions	2011	2010
EBIT – prior year	\$103	\$105
Operating margin		
(Decreased) increased average customer usage and warmer than prior year weather, net		
of weather derivatives	(15	) 9
Change in LOCOM adjustment	(5	) 6
(Decreased) increased operating margins for Florida, Ohio and interruptible customers	(2	) 1
Change in retail pricing plan mix and decrease in average number of customers	(4	) (12 )
Increased (decreased) contributions from the management and optimization of storage		
and transportation assets, and from retail price spreads	7	(1)
Increased margin as a result of the Nicor merger in December 2011	5	0
Other	(1	) (1 )
(Decrease) increase in operating margin	(15	) 2
Operating expenses		
(Decreased) bad debt expenses	(3	) 0
(Decreased) increased legal expense	(4	) 3
Increased expenses as a result of the Nicor merger in December 2011	3	0
Other	(1	) 1
(Decrease) increase in operating expenses	(5	) 4
EBIT – current year	\$93	\$103

#### Wholesale Services

Our wholesale services segment is involved in asset management and optimization, storage, transportation, producer and peaking services, natural gas supply, natural gas services and wholesale marketing. EBIT for our wholesale services segment is impacted by volatility in the natural gas market arising from a number of factors including weather fluctuations and changes in supply or demand for natural gas in different regions of the country.

In millions	2011	2010	
EBIT – prior year	\$49	\$47	
Operating margin			
Change in storage hedge gains as a result of declining NYMEX natural gas prices	8	28	
Increased (decreased) gains on transportation hedges from the narrowing of			
transportation basis spreads	13	(42	)
Change in commercial activity	(45	) 10	
Change in LOCOM adjustment, net of hedging recoveries	(24	) (2	)
Decrease in operating margin	(48	) (6	)
Operating expenses			
Decreased incentive compensation costs	(5	) (8	)

Other	0	1	
Decrease in operating expenses	(5	) 7	
(Decreased) increased other income	(1	) 1	
EBIT – current year	\$5	\$49	

Change in Commercial activity The reduction in commercial activity in 2011 reflects significantly lower natural gas price volatility impacting daily and intra-day storage and transportation spreads, as well as losses associated with the forward purchase and sale of natural gas generally held for use under forward transportation contracts. Our wholesale services segment also incurred credit losses of \$4 million during 2011 associated with a counterparty that filed for bankruptcy during the early part of the third quarter.

Natural gas shale production in the Northeast, specifically from the Marcellus region, resulted in pipeline capacity constraints. During the second half of 2011, our wholesale services segment experienced constraints for natural gas purchased from producers in the Marcellus shale gas producing region, resulting in the sale of natural gas at a loss, higher transportation costs and the costs to renegotiate certain of Sequent's producer contracts. Total losses related to these constraints during 2011 were approximately \$18 million.

Change in storage and transportation hedges Seasonal (storage) and geographical location (transportation) spreads continue to be significantly lower than in 2010 and overall natural gas price volatility remained low during the second half of 2011. Gains in 2011 and 2010 were primarily due to significantly larger seasonal and geographical location spreads at the time the hedges of our storage and transportation positions were executed and the subsequent downward movement of natural gas prices and collapse of regional transportation spreads during 2011 and 2010.

The following table indicates the components of wholesale services' operating margin for the periods presented.

In millions	2011	2010	2009
Commercial activity recognized	\$32	\$77	\$67
Gain on transportation hedges	14	1	43
Gain on storage hedges	37	29	1
Inventory LOCOM adjustment, net of estimated current period recoveries	(26	) (2	) 0
Operating margin	\$57	\$105	\$111

For more information on Sequent's expected operating revenues from its storage inventory in 2012 and discussion of commercial activity, see description of the inventory roll-out schedule in Item 1 "Business."

#### Midstream Operations

Our midstream operations segment's primary activity is our natural gas storage business, which develops, acquires and operates high-deliverability underground natural gas storage assets. While this business can also generate additional revenue during times of peak market demand for natural gas storage services, the majority of our storage services are covered under medium to long-term contracts at a fixed market rate. For more information on our operating segments, see Item 1, "Business".

2011	2010
\$6	\$3
7	4
(2	) 0
2	4
7	8
7	4
0	(2)
(3	) 3
4	5
\$9	\$6
	\$6  7 (2 2 7  7 0 (3 4

#### Cargo Shipping

Our cargo shipping segment's primary activity is transporting containerized freight in the Bahamas and the Caribbean, a region that has historically been characterized by modest market growth and intense competition. Such shipments consist primarily of southbound cargo such as building materials, food and other necessities for developers, distributors and residents in the region, as well as tourist-related shipments intended for use in hotels and resorts, and

on cruise ships. The balance of the cargo consists primarily of interisland shipments of consumer staples and northbound shipments of apparel, rum and agricultural products. Other related services such as inland transportation and cargo insurance are also provided within the cargo shipping segment.

Our cargo shipping segment also includes an equity investment in Triton, a cargo container leasing business. Triton is a full-service global leasing company and an owner-lessor of marine intermodal cargo containers. Profits and losses are generally allocated to investors capital accounts in proportion to their capital contributions. Our investment in Triton is accounted for under the equity method, and our share of earnings is reported within "Other Income" on our Consolidated Statements of Income. For more information about our investment in Triton, see Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

The cargo shipping business reported an immaterial EBIT for the 22 days following the close of our merger with Nicor for the period ending December 31, 2011.

## Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview The acquisition of natural gas and pipeline capacity, payment of dividends, and working capital requirements are our most significant short-term financing requirements. The need for long-term capital is driven primarily by capital expenditures and maturities of long-term debt. The liquidity required to fund our working capital, capital expenditures and other cash needs is primarily provided by our operating activities. Our short-term cash requirements not met by cash from operations are primarily satisfied with short-term borrowings under our commercial paper programs, which are supported by the AGL Credit Facility and the Nicor Gas Credit Facility. Periodically, we raise funds supporting our long-term cash needs from the issuance of long-term debt or equity securities. We regularly evaluate our funding strategy and profile to ensure that we have sufficient liquidity for our short-term and long-term needs in a cost-effective manner.

Our capital market strategy has continued to focus on maintaining strong Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, ensuring ample cash resources and daily liquidity, accessing capital markets at favorable times as necessary, managing critical business risks and maintaining a balanced capital structure through the appropriate issuance of equity or long-term debt securities.

Our issuance of various securities, including long-term and short-term debt and equity, is subject to customary approval or review by state and federal regulatory bodies including the various commissions of the states in which we conduct business, the SEC and the FERC. Furthermore, a substantial portion of our consolidated assets, earnings and cash flow are derived from the operation of our regulated utility subsidiaries, whose legal authority to pay dividends or make other distributions to us is subject to regulation. Nicor Gas is restricted by regulation in the amount it can dividend or loan to affiliates and is not permitted to make money pool loans to affiliates. Dividends to AGL Resources are allowed only to the extent of Nicor Gas' retained earnings balance, which was \$465 million at December 31, 2011.

We believe the amounts available to us under our senior notes, AGL Credit Facility and Nicor Gas Credit Facility, through the issuance of debt and equity securities, combined with cash provided by operating activities, will continue to allow us to meet our needs for working capital, pension contributions, construction expenditures, anticipated debt redemptions, interest payments on debt obligations, dividend payments, common share repurchases and other cash needs through the next several years. Our ability to satisfy our working capital requirements and our debt service obligations, or fund planned capital expenditures, will substantially depend upon our future operating performance (which will be affected by prevailing economic conditions), and financial, business and other factors, some of which we are unable to control. These factors include, among others, regulatory changes, the price of and demand for natural gas and operational risks.

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately \$71 million of cash and short and long-term investments on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position that were generated from Tropical Shipping. This cash and the investments are not available for use by our other operations, and if we repatriate all or a portion of Tropical Shipping's earnings in the form of a dividend we would be subject to a significant amount of United States income tax. See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional information on our income taxes.

We will continue to evaluate our need to increase available liquidity based on our view of working capital requirements, including the impact of changes in natural gas prices, liquidity requirements established by rating agencies and other factors. See Item 1A, "Risk Factors," for additional information on items that could impact our liquidity and capital resource requirements.

Merger Financing On December 9, 2011, we closed our merger with Nicor at which time each outstanding share of Nicor common stock, other than shares to be cancelled and Dissenting Shares, as defined in the Merger Agreement, was converted into the right to receive consideration of (i) 0.8382 of a share of AGL Resources common stock and (ii) \$21.20 in cash. Fractional shares were paid in cash as were stock options and restricted stock units that were awarded to Nicor employees for pre-merger services. The total value of the consideration paid to Nicor common shareholders was approximately \$2.5 billion based primarily upon the volume-weighted average price of AGL Resources common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on December 8, 2011, and the number of Nicor common shares outstanding as of the Effective Date, as defined in the Merger Agreement. Upon closing the merger, we assumed all of Nicor's outstanding debt, the fair value of which was approximately \$1.0 billion.

During 2011, we secured the permanent debt financing we used to pay the cash portion of the purchase consideration. This included approximately \$200 million from our \$500 million in senior notes that were issued in March 2011, \$500 million in senior notes that were issued in September 2011, and \$275 million in senior unsecured notes that were issued in the private placement market in October 2011.

As a result of the merger with Nicor, we assumed the first mortgage bonds of Nicor Gas, which at December 31, 2011 had principal balances totaling \$500 million and maturity dates between 2016 and 2038. These bonds were recorded at their estimated fair value of \$599 million on the date the merger closed. Additionally, we assumed \$424 million in short-term debt upon closing the merger.

Credit Ratings Our borrowing costs and our ability to obtain adequate and cost effective financing are directly impacted by our credit ratings as well as the availability of financial markets. In addition, credit ratings are important to our counterparties when we engage in certain transactions including over-the-counter derivatives. It is our long-term objective to maintain or improve our credit ratings in order to manage our existing financing costs and enhance our ability to raise additional capital on favorable terms.

Credit ratings and outlooks are opinions subject to ongoing review by the rating agencies and may periodically change. Each rating should be evaluated independently of other ratings. The rating agencies regularly review our performance, prospects and financial condition and reevaluate their ratings of our long-term debt and short-term borrowings, our corporate ratings, including our ratings outlook. There is no guarantee that a rating will remain in effect for any given period of time or that a rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities.

Factors we consider important in assessing our credit ratings include our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position leverage, capital spending, earnings, cash flow generation, available liquidity and overall business risks. We do not have any trigger events in our debt instruments that are tied to changes in our specified credit ratings or our stock price and have not entered into any agreements that would require us to issue equity based on credit ratings or other trigger events. The following table summarizes our credit ratings as of December 31, 2011.

		AGL Resources			Nicor Gas	
	S&P	Moody's	Fitch	S&P	Moody's	Fitch
Corporate						
rating	BBB+	n/a	A-	BBB+	n/a	A
Commercial						
paper	A-2	P-2	F2	A-2	P-2	F-1
Senior						
unsecured	BBB+	Baa1	A-	BBB+	A3	A+
Senior secured	n/a	n/a	n/a	A	A1	AA-
Ratings						
outlook	Stable	Stable	Stable	Stable	Stable	Stable

In December 2011, subsequent to the completion of our merger with Nicor, all three of the rating agencies reassessed their credit ratings for the post-merger company and its subsidiaries and noted the outlook is now stable. Fitch affirmed its ratings for both AGL Resources and Nicor Gas. S&P downgraded the corporate credit rating of AGL Resources from A- to BBB+ while downgrading the corporate credit rating of Nicor Gas from AA to BBB+. Moody's affirmed the senior unsecured and short-term ratings of the legacy subsidiaries of AGL Resources while downgrading the senior unsecured rating of Nicor Gas from A2 to A3 and the commercial paper rating of Nicor Gas from P-1 to P-2.

The primary reason for the downgrade for AGL Resources was the increased financial leverage resulting from the merger and the resulting weakening of our consolidated credit metrics. The downgrade of Nicor Gas was primarily an attempt to conform the Nicor Gas credit ratings to those of the subsidiaries of AGL Resources. These credit rating changes are not expected to materially impact our borrowing costs. It is expected that long-term rating stability will depend on a reduction in leverage through successful merger integration and the realization of operating synergies.

Our credit ratings depend largely on our financial performance, and a downgrade in our current ratings, particularly below investment grade, would increase our borrowing costs and could limit our access to the commercial paper market. In addition, we would likely be required to pay a higher interest rate in future financings, and our potential pool of investors and funding sources could decrease.

Default Provisions Our debt instruments and other financial obligations include provisions that, if not complied with, could require early payment or similar actions. Our credit facilities contain customary events of default, including, but not limited to, the failure to pay any interest or principal when due, the failure to furnish financial statements within the timeframe established by each debt facility, the failure to comply with certain affirmative and negative covenants, cross-defaults to certain other material indebtedness in excess of specified amounts, incorrect or misleading representations or warranties, insolvency or bankruptcy, fundamental change of control, the occurrence of certain Employee Retirement Income Security Act events, judgments in excess of specified amounts and certain impairments to the guarantee.

Our credit facilities contain certain non-financial covenants that, among other things, restrict liens and encumbrances, loans and investments, acquisitions, dividends and other restricted payments, asset dispositions, mergers and consolidations, and other matters customarily restricted in such agreements.

Our credit facilities also includes a financial covenant that requires us to maintain a ratio of total debt to total capitalization of no more than 70% at the end of any fiscal month. This ratio, as defined within our debt agreements, includes standby letters of credit, performance/surety bonds and the exclusion of other comprehensive income pension adjustments. Adjusting for these items, the following table contains our debt-to-capitalization ratios for the periods presented, which are within our required and targeted ranges.

	AGI	L Reso	Nicor Gas				
				I	Decemb	er	
	De	cembe	31,				
	2011		2010		2011		
Debt-to-capitalization							
ratio	58	%	58	%	60	%	

We were in compliance with all of our debt provisions and covenants, both financial and non-financial, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Our ratio of total debt to total capitalization, on a consolidated basis, is typically greater at the beginning of the Heating Season as we make additional short-term borrowings to fund our natural gas purchases and meet our working capital requirements. We intend to maintain our ratio of total debt to total capitalization in a target range of 50% to 60%. Accomplishing this capital structure objective and maintaining sufficient cash flow are necessary to maintain attractive credit ratings. For more information on our default provisions see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein. The components of our capital structure, as calculated from our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, as of the dates indicated, are provided in the following table.

	Decemb	er 31,
	2011	2010
Short-term		
debt	16 %	23 %
Long-term		
debt	43	37
Total debt	59	60
Equity	41	40
Total		
capitalization	100 %	100 %

#### Cash Flows

The following table provides a summary of our operating, investing and financing cash flows for the last three years.

In millions		2011	2010		2009	
Net cash provided by (u	sed in	n):				
Operating activities	\$	451	\$ 526	\$	592	
Investing activities		(1,339)	(442	)	(476	)
Financing activities		933	(86	)	(106	)
Net increase						
(decrease) in cash						
and cash equivalents		45	(2	)	10	
Cash and cash						
equivalent at						
beginning of period		24	26		16	
Cash and cash						
equivalent at end of						
period	\$	69	\$ 24	\$	26	

Cash Flow from Operating Activities We prepare our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows using the indirect method. Under this method, we reconcile net income to cash flows from operating activities by adjusting net income for those items that impact net income but may not result in actual cash receipts or payments during the period. These reconciling items include depreciation and amortization, changes in derivative instrument assets and liabilities, deferred income taxes and changes in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position for working capital from the beginning to the end of the period.

Year-over-year changes in our operating cash flows are primarily due to working capital changes within our distribution operations, retail operations and wholesale services segments resulting from the impact of weather, the price of natural gas, natural gas storage, the timing of customer collections, payments for natural gas purchases and deferred gas cost recoveries. The increase or decrease in the price of natural gas directly impacts the cost of gas stored in inventory.

2011 compared to 2010 In 2011, our net cash flow provided from operating activities was \$451 million, a decrease of \$75 million or 14% from 2010. This decrease was primarily a result of merger-related expenses in 2011 of \$68 million and the payment of \$22 million of Nicor deferred compensation plans and \$12 million of Nicor financial advisor fees. Our gas and trade payables required \$58 million more of cash compared to 2010, primarily related to our subsidiaries acquired as part of the Nicor merger. Additionally, we had a \$69 million decrease in operating cash flow from loaned gas activities associated with park and loan gas transactions in part due to fewer opportunities resulting from a weakening of storage price differentials.

These decreases in our cash flow from operating activities were partially offset by \$125 million increase in cash received from inventories. The \$158 million is primarily due to Nicor Gas net inventory withdrawals of \$89 million in the period after merger closing through December 31, 2011 and by overall lower average cost of gas inventory and lower volumes of gas inventory for our other subsidiaries.

2010 compared to 2009 In 2010, our net cash flow provided from operating activities was \$526 million, a decrease of \$66 million, or 11%, from 2009. This decrease was primarily a result of colder weather in the fourth quarter of 2010 as compared to 2009 within most of our service areas. As a result, the use of working capital for our gas receivables increased \$134 million due to increased volumes sold to our customers.

We also refunded an additional \$38 million to our utility customers for billed commodity costs compared to 2009 as natural gas commodity cost recovery rates charged to customers were reduced as under-recovered amounts were collected in part due to the decline in natural gas prices.

This increased use of operating cash flow was mostly offset by decreased working capital used by Sequent of \$128 million for its energy marketing activities, resulting from the timing of payments for gas purchases relative to collections of accounts receivable and an increase in Sequent's daily physical sales.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities Our net cash used in investing activities consisted primarily of our \$912 million payment for the cash portion of the purchase consideration, net of cash that was acquired in the Nicor merger. Additionally, we incurred PP&E expenditures, the majority of which were within our distribution operations and midstream operations segments. Our estimated PP&E expenditures for 2012 and our actual PP&E expenditures incurred in 2011, 2010 and 2009 are shown within the following categories and are presented in the table below.

- Distribution business primarily includes new construction and infrastructure improvements
- Regulatory infrastructure programs programs that update or expand our distribution systems and liquefied natural gas facilities to improve system reliability and meet operational flexibility and growth. These programs include the pipeline replacement program and STRIDE at Atlanta Gas Light and Elizabethtown Gas' utility infrastructure enhancements program
- Pipeline projects projects include (i) Hampton Roads, a Virginia Natural Gas' pipeline project, which connects its northern and southern systems and (ii) Magnolia Pipeline, which diversifies our sources of natural gas by connecting our Georgia service territory to the Elba Island LNG terminal
- Natural gas storage additional underground natural gas storage at Golden Triangle Storage, Jefferson Island and Central Valley
  - Other primarily includes cargo shipping, information technology and building and leasehold improvements

In millions	2	2012 (1)	2	2011 (2)	2010	2009
Distribution business	\$	376	\$	159	\$ 159	\$ 132
Regulatory infrastructure						
programs		286		192	186	76
Pipeline projects		0		0	3	136
Natural gas storage		66		22	114	95
Other		81		54	48	37
Total	\$	809	\$	427	\$ 510	\$ 476

(1) Estimated PP&E expenditures.

(2) Only includes Nicor expenditures subsequent to the merger date of December 9, 2011.

Our PP&E expenditures were \$427 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$510 million for the same period in 2010. This decrease of \$83 million, or 16%, was primarily due to a \$98 million decrease in expenditures for the construction of the Golden Triangle Storage natural gas storage facility due to completion of base infrastructure spending and completion of the first cavern. This was partially offset by capital expenditures of \$13 million at Nicor Gas and \$6 million at Central Valley that were incurred subsequent to merger closing.

Our PP&E expenditures were \$510 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to \$476 million for the same period in 2009. This increase of \$34 million, or 7%, was primarily due to a \$19 million increase in expenditures for the construction of the Golden Triangle Storage natural gas storage facility, \$26 million in expenditures for Elizabethtown Gas' utility infrastructure enhancements program, \$84 million in expenditures for STRIDE and \$38 million in other capital projects in distribution operations. This was offset by reduced expenditures of \$133 million for the Hampton Roads and Magnolia projects, for which construction was substantially completed in 2009. The higher capital expenditures were further offset by \$73 million in proceeds from the disposition of assets.

Our estimated expenditures for 2012 include discretionary spending for capital projects principally within the distribution business, regulatory infrastructure programs and other categories. We continually evaluate whether to proceed with these projects, reviewing them in relation to factors including our authorized returns on rate base, other returns on invested capital for projects of a similar nature, capital structure and credit ratings, among others. We will make adjustments to these discretionary expenditures as necessary based upon these factors.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities Our capitalization and financing strategy is intended to ensure that we are properly capitalized with the appropriate mix of equity and debt securities. This strategy includes active management of the percentage of total debt relative to total capitalization, appropriate mix of debt with fixed to floating interest rates (our variable debt target is 20% to 45% of total debt), as well as the term and interest rate profile of our debt securities.

On May 4, 2011, we entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of \$250 million to effectively convert a portion of our \$300 million 6.4% fixed-rate senior notes that mature July 2016 to a variable-rate obligation. As of December 31, 2011, we also held forward-starting interest rate swaps totaling \$90 million that were redesignated as cash flow hedges upon the close of the merger. Under the terms of the swaps, we agree to pay a fixed swap rate and receive a floating rate based on LIBOR.

As of December 31, 2011, our variable-rate debt was \$1.7 billion, or 36%, of our total debt, compared to \$892 million, or 33%, as of December 31, 2010. This increase was primarily due to increased commercial paper borrowings as of year-end and the \$250 million interest rate swaps, both of which increased our ratio of variable rate debt. As of December 31, 2011, our commercial paper borrowings of \$1.3 billion were 80% higher than the same time last year, primarily a result of the additional short-term debt that we assumed from the Nicor merger and higher working capital requirements. For more information on our debt, see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Our cash provided by financing activities was \$933 million in 2011 compared to cash used of \$86 million in 2010. The increase in net cash flow provided by financing activities of \$1.0 billion was primarily due to our \$1.3 billion of long-term debt issued, discussed below, and increased commercial paper borrowings of \$91 million in 2011 compared to 2010. This was partially offset by payment for a senior note maturity of \$300 million, decreased distribution to the noncontrolling interest of \$11 million and increased dividends paid on common shares of \$15 million.

Short-term Debt Our short-term debt as of December 31, 2011 was comprised of borrowings under our commercial paper programs and current portions of our senior notes and capital leases.

In millions	ł	ear-end balance tanding (1)	b	y average alance anding (2)	b	inimum valance estanding (2)	b	Largest balance tanding (2)
Commercial paper		<i>U</i> ( )						
- AGL Capital (3)								
(4)	\$	869	\$	324	\$	0	\$	1,179
Commercial paper								
- Nicor Gas (5)		452		456		410		514
Senior notes		15		20		0		300
Capital leases		2		2		2		2
Term loan facility								
(3)		0		12		0		150
Total short-term								
debt	\$	1,338	\$	814	\$	412	\$	2,145
				(1) As o	f De	cember 3	1, 20	11.

- (2) For the year ended December 31, 2011, with the exception of the Nicor Gas commercial paper program, which is for the period December 10, 2011 – December 31, 2011. The minimum and largest balances outstanding for each short-term debt instrument occurred at different times during the year and thus the total balances are not indicative of actual borrowings on any one day during the year.
- (3) During 2011, our short-term debt balances were impacted by our \$300 million senior notes, which matured in January 2011. These senior notes were initially repaid with a \$150 million funding under our Term Loan Facility and borrowings under our AGL Capital commercial paper program. In February 2011, the Term Loan Facility was repaid through additional AGL Capital commercial paper borrowings at which time the Term Loan Facility
- (4) During 2011, we completed \$1,275 million in senior note offerings to repay our maturing long-term debt of \$300 million and for the approximate \$980 million in cash payments made for the Nicor merger consideration. Prior to the closing of the merger, a portion of the proceeds were used to reduce outstanding AGL Capital commercial paper.
- (5) We assumed approximately \$424 million in commercial paper borrowings as of the closing of the Nicor merger.

The largest, minimum and daily average balances borrowed under our commercial paper programs are important when assessing the intra-period fluctuation of our short-term borrowings and potential liquidity risk. Our year-end short-term debt outstanding and our largest short-term debt balance outstanding were significantly higher than our average short-term debt outstanding during 2011 due to our seasonal cash requirements.

Such cash requirements generally increase between June and December as we purchase natural gas in advance of the Heating Season. The timing differences of when we pay our suppliers for natural gas purchases and when we recover our costs from our customers through their monthly bills can significantly affect our cash requirements. Our short-term debt balances are typically reduced during the Heating Season as a significant portion of our current assets, primarily natural gas inventories, are converted into cash.

Additionally, increasing natural gas commodity prices can have a significant impact on our commercial paper borrowings. Based on current natural gas prices and our expected injection plan, a \$1 increase or decrease per thousand cubic feet of natural gas could result in a \$200 million change of working capital requirements during the peak of the Heating Season. This range is sensitive to the timing of storage injections and withdrawals, collateral requirements and our portfolio position.

On November 10, 2011, the existing AGL Credit Facility was amended to increase the available principal to \$1.3 billion in support of the AGL Capital commercial paper program. On December 15, 2011, Nicor Gas entered into a \$700 million revolving credit facility to support the Nicor Gas commercial paper program. The AGL Credit Facility and the Nicor Gas Credit Facility can be drawn upon to meet working capital and other general corporate needs. The interest rates payable on borrowings under these facilities are calculated either at the alternative base rate, plus an applicable margin, or LIBOR, plus an applicable interest margin. The applicable interest margin used in both interest rate calculations will vary according to AGL Capital's and Nicor Gas' current credit ratings. At December 31, 2011, we had no outstanding borrowings under either of these facilities. SouthStar's five-year \$75 million unsecured credit facility expired in November 2011.

The timing of natural gas withdrawals is dependent on the weather and natural gas market conditions, both of which impact the price of natural gas. Increasing natural gas commodity prices can have a significant impact on our commercial paper borrowings. Based on current natural gas prices and our expected purchases during the upcoming injection season, we believe that we have sufficient liquidity to cover our working capital needs for the upcoming Heating Season.

The lenders under our credit facilities and lines of credit are major financial institutions with approximately \$2.2 billion of committed balances and all have investment grade credit ratings as of December 31, 2011. It is possible that one or more lending commitments could be unavailable to us if the lender defaulted due to lack of funds or insolvency. However, based on our current assessment of our lenders' creditworthiness, we believe the risk of lender default is minimal.

Long-term Debt Our long-term debt matures more than one year from December 31, 2011, and consisted of medium-term notes: Series A, Series B, and Series C, which we issued under an indenture during December 1989, senior notes, first mortgage bonds, gas facility revenue bonds and capital leases.

Our long-term cash requirements primarily depend upon the level of capital expenditures, long-term debt maturities and decisions to refinance long-term debt. The following represents our long-term debt activity over the last three years.

		A	mount (in	Term		
	Issuance Date	1	millions)	(in years)	Interest rate	e
Senior notes (1)	March 2011	\$	500	30	5.9	%
Senior notes (2)	September 2011	\$	200	30	5.9	%
Senior notes (2)	September 2011	\$	300	10	3.5	%
Senior notes – Series A						
(2)	October 2011	\$	120	5	1.9	%
Senior notes – Series B						
(2)	October 2011	\$	155	7	3.5	%
Gas facility revenue					reset	
bonds (3)	October 2010	\$	160	11 - 21	daily	
Senior notes (4)	August 2009	\$	300	10	5.25	%

- (1) The net proceeds were used to repay our commercial paper and to repay our \$300 million in senior notes that matured on January 14, 2011. The remaining proceeds were used to pay a portion of the cash consideration and expenses incurred in connection with the Nicor merger.
- (2) The net proceeds were used to pay a portion of the cash consideration and expenses incurred in connection with the Nicor merger.
- (3) We entered into new agreements with remarketing agents to resell the bonds to investors, and established new letters of credit to provide credit enhancement to the bonds.
  - (4) The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of our commercial paper.

Noncontrolling Interest We recorded cash distributions for SouthStar's dividend distributions to Piedmont of \$16 million in 2011, \$27 million in 2010 and \$20 million in 2009 in our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as financing activities. The primary reason for the reduction in the distribution to Piedmont during the current year is due to our increased ownership percentage in SouthStar in 2010. The 2010 distribution was paid on 2009 earnings.

Dividends on Common Stock Our common stock dividend payments were \$148 million in 2011, \$133 million in 2010 and \$127 million in 2009. The increases were generally the result of annual dividend increases of \$0.04 per share for each of the last three years. However, as a result of the Nicor merger, AGL Resources shareholders of record as of the close of business on December 8, 2011, received a pro rata dividend of \$0.0989 per share for the stub period, accruing from November 19, 2011 totaling \$7 million. For information about restrictions on our ability to pay dividends on our common stock, see Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

In addition, in conjunction with the Nicor merger we issued 38.2 million shares of AGL Resources common stock, which is the same class as our previously issued common stock and receives dividends at the same rate as the shares issued prior to the merger. Our common stock outstanding totaled approximately 117.0 million shares at December 31, 2011.

Treasury Shares In February 2006, our Board of Directors authorized a plan to purchase up to 8 million shares of our outstanding common stock over a five-year period. These purchases are intended principally to offset share issuances under our employee and non-employee director incentive compensation plans and our dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plans. Stock purchases under this program may be made in the open market or in private transactions at times and in amounts that we deem appropriate. There is no guarantee as to the exact number of common shares that we will purchase, and we can terminate or limit the program at any time. This program expired in January 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we purchased 65,250 shares of our common stock at a weighted average cost of \$36.25 per common share and an aggregate cost of \$2 million. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we did not purchase shares of our common stock. We currently anticipate holding the purchased shares as treasury shares. For more information on our common share repurchases see Item 5 "Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities."

Shelf Registration On August 17, 2010, we filed a shelf registration with the SEC, which expires in 2013. Debt securities and related guarantees issued under the shelf registration will be issued by AGL Capital under an indenture dated as of February 20, 2001, as supplemented and modified, as necessary, among AGL Capital, AGL Resources and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. The indenture provides for the issuance from time to time of debt securities in an unlimited dollar amount and an unlimited number of series, subject to our AGL Credit Facility and Term Loan Facility financial covenants related to total debt to total capitalization. The debt securities will be guaranteed by AGL Resources.

On February 25, 2009, Nicor Gas filed a shelf registration with a capacity of \$225 million with the SEC, which expires in March, 2012. First mortgage bonds issued under the shelf registration will be issued by Nicor Gas under an indenture dated as of January 1, 1954, as supplemented and modified, as necessary, among Northern Illinois Gas Company doing business as Nicor Gas Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. At December 31, 2011, Nicor Gas had the capacity to issue approximately \$480 million of additional first mortgage bonds under the terms of its indenture.

Off-balance sheet arrangements We have certain guarantees, as further described in Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein. We believe the likelihood of any such payment under these guarantees is remote. No liability has been recorded for these guarantees.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments We have incurred various contractual obligations and financial commitments in the normal course of our operating and financing activities that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on liquidity or the availability of requirements for capital resources. Contractual obligations include future cash payments required under existing contractual arrangements, such as debt and lease agreements. These obligations may result from both general financing activities and from commercial arrangements that are directly supported by related revenue-producing activities. Contingent financial commitments represent obligations that become payable only if certain predefined events occur, such as financial guarantees, and include the nature of the guarantee and the maximum potential amount of future payments that could be required of us as the guarantor. The following table illustrates our expected future contractual obligation payments such as debt and lease agreements, and commitments and contingencies as of December 31, 2011.

In millions Recorded contractual obligations:	Total	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	tl	2017 & nereafter
Long-term debt (1)	\$ 3,431	\$ 0	\$ 225	\$ 0	\$ 200	\$ 545	\$	2,461
Short-term debt (2)	1,338	1,338	0	0	0	0		0
Pipeline replacement								
program costs (3)	276	131	145	0	0	0		0
Environmental remediation								
liabilities (3)	327	37	66	55	45	32		92
Total	\$ 5,372	\$ 1,506	\$ 436	\$ 55	\$ 245	\$ 577	\$	2,553

Unrecorded contractual obligations and commitments (4) (9) (10):

Pipeline charges, storage							
capacity and gas supply (5)	\$2,263	\$781	\$494	\$269	\$164	\$85	\$470
Interest charges (6)	2,581	169	161	158	149	137	1,807
Operating leases (7)	220	32	25	20	19	18	106
Asset management							
agreements (8)	26	11	9	3	2	1	0
Standby letters of credit,							
performance /							
surety bonds (9)	22	18	4	0	0	0	0
Other	14	5	3	2	2	2	0
Total	\$5,126	\$1,016	\$696	\$452	\$336	\$243	\$2,383

- (1) Excludes the \$99 million step up to fair value of first mortgage bonds, \$18 million unamortized debt premium and \$13 million interest rate swaps fair value adjustment.
  - (2) Includes current portion of long-term debt of \$15 million which matures in June 2012.
    - (3) Includes charges recoverable through rate rider mechanisms.
- (4) In accordance with GAAP, these items are not reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
- (5) Includes charges recoverable through a natural gas cost recovery mechanism or alternatively billed to Marketers and demand charges associated with Sequent. The gas supply amount includes amounts for Nicor Gas and

- SouthStar gas commodity purchase commitments of 67 Bcf at floating gas prices calculated using forward natural gas prices as of December 31, 2011, and is valued at \$222 million. As we do for other subsidiaries, we provide guarantees to certain gas suppliers for SouthStar in support of payment obligations.
- (6) Floating rate interest charges are calculated based on the interest rate as of December 31, 2011 and the maturity date of the underlying debt instrument. As of December 31, 2011, we have \$61 million of accrued interest on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position that will be paid in 2012.
- (7) We have certain operating leases with provisions for step rent or escalation payments and certain lease concessions. We account for these leases by recognizing the future minimum lease payments on a straight-line basis over the respective minimum lease terms, in accordance with authoritative guidance related to leases. Our operating leases are primarily for real estate.
  - (8) Represent fixed-fee minimum payments for Sequent's affiliated asset management agreements.
- (9) We provide guarantees to certain municipalities and other agencies and certain gas suppliers of SouthStar in support of payment obligations.
- (10) Based on the current funding status of the plans, we would be required to make a minimum contribution to our pension plans of approximately \$36 million in 2012. We may make additional contributions in 2012.

Substitute natural gas In 2011, Illinois enacted laws that required Nicor Gas and other large gas utilities in Illinois to elect to either file rate cases with the Illinois Commission in 2012, 2014 and 2016 or sign contracts to purchase SNG to be produced from two coal gasification plants proposed to be constructed in Illinois.

On September 30, 2011, Nicor Gas signed an agreement to purchase approximately 25 Bcf of SNG annually from one of the proposed facilities for a 10-year term beginning as early as 2015. The price of the SNG under this contract could potentially be significantly more than market price. The counterparty has announced plans to construct a 60 Bcf per year coal gasification plant in southern Illinois.

On October 11, 2011, the IPA approved the form of a draft 30-year contract for the purchase by us of approximately 20 Bcf per year of SNG from the second proposed plant beginning as early as 2018. In November 2011, Nicor Gas filed a lawsuit against the IPA and the developer of this second proposed plant contending that the draft contract approved by the IPA does not conform to certain requirements of the enabling legislation. The lawsuit is pending in circuit court in DuPage County, Illinois. In accordance with the enabling legislation, the draft contract approved by the IPA for the second proposed plant was submitted to the Illinois Commission for further approvals by that regulatory body. The Illinois Commission issued an order on January 10, 2012 approving a final form of contract for the second plant. The final form of contract approved by the Illinois Commission modified the draft contract submitted by the IPA in various respects. Both we and the developer of the plant have filed applications for rehearing with the Illinois Commission seeking changes to the final form of contract it approved.

The price of the SNG that may be produced from both of the coal gasification plants may significantly exceed market prices and is dependent upon a variety of factors, including plant construction costs, and is currently not estimable. Illinois laws provided that prices paid for SNG purchase from the plants are to be considered prudent and not subject to review or disallowance by the Illinois Commission. For additional information regarding the SNG plant legislation see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Standby letters of credit and performance / surety bonds. We also have incurred various financial commitments in the normal course of business. Contingent financial commitments represent obligations that become payable only if certain predefined events occur, such as financial guarantees, and the maximum potential amount of future payments that could be required of us as the guarantor. We would expect to fund these contingent financial commitments with operating and financing cash flows.

Pension and other retirement obligations. Generally, our funding policy is to contribute annually an amount that will at least equal the minimum amount required to comply with the Pension Protection Act. Additionally, we calculate any required pension contributions using the traditional unit credit cost method. However, additional voluntary contributions are made from time to time as considered necessary. Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to date, but also for those expected to be earned in the future. The contributions represent the portion of the other retirement costs we are responsible for under the terms of our plan and minimum funding required by state regulatory commissions.

The state regulatory commissions in all of our jurisdictions, except Illinois, have phase-ins that defer a portion of the retirement benefit expenses for retirement plans other than pensions for future recovery. We recorded a regulatory asset for these future recoveries of \$291 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$9 million as of December 31, 2010. In addition, we recorded a regulatory liability of \$19 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$6 million as of December 31, 2010 for our expected expenses under the AGL Postretirement Plan. In Illinois, all accrued retirement plan expenses are recovered through base rates. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional information about our pension and other retirement plans.

In 2011, we contributed \$56 million to our qualified pension plans. In 2010, we contributed \$31 million to these qualified pension plans. Based on the current funding status of these plans, we would be required to make a minimum contribution to the plans of approximately \$36 million in 2012. We may make additional contributions in 2012 in order to preserve the current level of benefits under these plans and in accordance with the funding requirements of the Pension Protection Act.

#### Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Those judgments and estimates have a significant effect on our financial statements because they result primarily from the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We frequently re-evaluate our judgments and estimates that are based upon historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.

We believe that of our significant accounting policies, described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein, the following policies represent those that may involve a higher degree of uncertainty, judgment and complexity; these include Regulatory Infrastructure Program Liabilities, Environmental Remediation Liabilities, Derivatives and Hedging Activities, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Contingencies, Pension and Other Retirement Plans and Income Taxes.

#### Regulatory Infrastructure Program Liabilities

We record regulatory assets and liabilities in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position in accordance with authoritative guidance related to regulated entities. We record regulatory assets for costs that have been deferred for which future recovery is probable through either rate riders or base rates specifically authorized by a state regulatory commission. We record regulatory liabilities when it is probable that revenues will be reduced for amounts that will be credited to customers through the rate making process.

By order of the Georgia Commission, our wholly owned subsidiary, Atlanta Gas Light began a pipeline replacement program to replace all bare steel and cast iron pipe in its system by December 2013. The order provides for recovery of all prudent costs incurred in the performance of the program, which Atlanta Gas Light has recorded as a regulatory asset. Atlanta Gas Light will recover from end-use customers, through billings to Marketers, the costs related to the program net of any cost savings from the program. All such amounts will be recovered through a combination of straight-fixed-variable rates and a pipeline replacement revenue rider. The regulatory asset has two components (i) the costs incurred to date that have not yet been recovered through rate riders, and (ii) the future expected costs to be recovered through rate riders.

The determination of future expected costs associated with our pipeline replacement program liabilities involves judgment. To the extent that circumstances associated with regulatory balances change, the regulatory balances are adjusted accordingly. Factors that must be considered in estimating the future expected costs are:

- projected capital expenditure spending, including labor and material costs
- the remaining pipeline footage to be replaced for remainder of the program
  - changes in the regulatory environment or our completive position
    - passage of new legislation
    - changes in accounting guidance

We recorded a long-term liability of \$145 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$166 million as of December 31, 2010, which represented engineering estimates for remaining capital expenditure costs in the pipeline replacement program. As of December 31, 2011, we had recorded a current liability of \$131 million, representing expected pipeline replacement program expenditures for the next 12 months. We report these estimates on an undiscounted basis. If Atlanta Gas Light's pipeline replacement program expenditures, subject to future recovery, were \$10 million higher or lower its incremental expected annual revenues would have changed by approximately \$1 million. Details of our regulatory assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

#### **Environmental Remediation Liabilities**

We are subject to legislation and regulation by federal, state and local authorities with respect to environmental matters. Additionally, we owned and operated a number of MGP sites at which hazardous substances may be present. In accordance with GAAP, we have established reserves for environmental remediation obligations when it is probable that a liability exists and the amount or range of amounts can be reasonably estimated. We historically reported estimates of future environmental remediation costs based on probabilistic models of potential costs. We presently report estimates of future remediation costs on an undiscounted basis. These estimates contain various engineering uncertainties, and we continuously attempt to refine these estimates. However, we have not yet performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites in Illinois, which will be completed in 2012.

In Georgia and Florida, we have confirmed 14 former MGP sites where Atlanta Gas Light, or its predecessors, owned or operated all or part of these sites. Atlanta Gas Light's environmental remediation liability is included in its corresponding regulatory asset. Our recovery of these environmental remediation costs is subject to review by the

Georgia Commission, which may seek to disallow the recovery of some expenses.

We have identified 26 sites in Illinois for which we may have some responsibility. Most of these sites are not presently owned by us. In accordance with Illinois Commission authorization, we have been recovering, and expect to continue to recover, these costs from our customers, subject to annual prudence reviews.

We have identified 6 former operating sites in New Jersey, where Elizabethtown Gas is currently conducting remediation activities with oversight from the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection. The New Jersey BPU has authorized Elizabethtown Gas to recover prudently incurred remediation costs for the New Jersey properties through its remediation adjustment clause.

We also own remediation sites in other states. One site, in Elizabeth City, North Carolina, is subject to an order by the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources. There are no cost recovery mechanisms for the environmental remediation sites in North Carolina.

We cannot perform precise engineering soil and groundwater cleanup estimates for certain of our former MGP sites. As we continue to conduct the actual remediation and enter into cleanup contracts, we are increasingly able to provide conventional engineering estimates of the likely costs of many elements of the remediation program and the liabilities may increase as estimates are refined and remediation efforts proceed. The following table provides more information on our former operating sites:

			Expected
	Cost		costs over
	estimate	Amount	next twelve
In millions	range	recorded	months
	\$134 -		
Illinois	\$216	\$134	\$19
Georgia and Florida	42 - 98	58	7
New Jersey	124 - 174	124	9
North Carolina	10 - 16	11	2
	\$310 -		
Total	\$504	\$327	\$37

(1) Our ERC liabilities are customarily reported estimates of future remediation costs for our former operating sites that are contaminated based on probabilistic models of potential costs and on an undiscounted basis. However, we have not yet performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites in Illinois, which will be completed in 2012.

In accordance with GAAP we have recorded the lower end of the range. Beyond 2012, these costs cannot be estimated and considerable variability remains in available estimates. Details of our environmental remediation costs are discussed in Note 2 and Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

#### Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The authoritative guidance to determine whether a contract meets the definition of a derivative instrument, contains an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, or qualifies for hedge accounting treatment are numerous and complex. The treatment of a single contract may vary from period to period depending upon accounting elections, changes in our assessment of the likelihood of future hedged transactions or new interpretations of accounting guidance. As a result, judgment is required in determining the appropriate accounting treatment. In addition, the estimated fair value of derivative instruments may change significantly from period to period depending upon market conditions, and changes in hedge effectiveness may impact the accounting treatment.

The authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging requires that every derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded on the Statements of Financial Position as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. However, if the derivative transaction qualifies for and is designated as a normal purchase and normal sale, it is exempted from the fair value accounting treatment and is subject to traditional accrual accounting. We utilize market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs of the valuation technique.

The guidance requires that changes in the derivatives' fair value are recognized concurrently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. If the derivatives meet those criteria, the guidance allows a derivatives' gains and losses to offset related results on the hedged item in the income statement in the case of a fair value hedge, or to record the gains and losses in OCI until the hedged transaction occurs in the case of a cash flow hedge. Additionally, the guidance requires that a company formally designate a derivative as a hedge as well as document and assess the effectiveness of derivatives associated with transactions that receive hedge accounting treatment.

Nicor Gas and Elizabethtown Gas utilize derivative instruments for the purchase of natural gas for customers. These derivatives are reflected at fair value and are not designated as hedges. Realized gains or losses on such instruments are included in the cost of gas delivered and are passed through directly to customers, subject to review by the applicable state regulatory commissions, and therefore have no direct impact on earnings. Unrealized changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities.

We use derivative instruments primarily to reduce the impact to our results of operations due to the risk of changes in the price of natural gas. The fair value of natural gas derivative instruments we use to manage exposures arising from changing natural gas prices reflects the estimated amounts that we would receive or pay to terminate or close the contracts at the reporting date, taking into account the current unrealized gains or losses on open contracts.

Additionally, as required by the authoritative guidance, we are required to classify our derivative assets and liabilities based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. The determination of the fair value of our derivative instruments incorporates various factors required under the guidance. These factors include:

- the credit worthiness of the counterparties involved and the impact of credit enhancements (such as cash deposits and letters of credit)
  - events specific to a given counterparty
  - the impact of our nonperformance risk on our liabilities.

We have recorded derivative instrument assets of \$314 million at December 31, 2011 and \$228 million at December 31, 2010. Additionally, we have recorded derivative liabilities of \$110 million at December 31, 2011 and \$48 million at December 31, 2010. We recorded gains on our Consolidated Statements of Income of \$24 million in 2011 and losses of \$46 million in 2010 and \$15 million in 2009.

If there is a significant change in the underlying market prices or pricing assumptions we use in pricing our derivative assets or liabilities, we may experience a significant impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Our derivative and hedging activities are described in further detail in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein and Item 1, "Business".

#### Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations. Our goodwill assets increased from \$418 million to \$1.8 billion and our intangible assets increased from \$2 million to \$105 million as a result of the Nicor merger. Our intangible assets at December 31, 2010 were \$3 million, but tas a result of amortization during 2011 were \$2 million as of the date of the Nicor merger. The fair values of intangible assets were assigned to the trade names and customer relationships at Nicor's unregulated operations using a combination of the valuation approaches, including cost savings, multi-period excess earnings and relief from royalty approaches.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, we evaluate our goodwill balances for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. These indicators include, but are not limited to, a significant change in operating performance, the business climate, legal or regulatory factors, or a planned sale or disposition of a significant portion of the business. We test goodwill impairment utilizing a fair value approach at a reporting unit level which generally equates to our operating segments as discussed in Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its fair value.

Our goodwill impairment analysis for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 indicated that the fair value of each reporting unit is substantially in excess of carrying value, and are not at risk of failing step one of the impairment evaluation. As a result, we did not recognize any goodwill impairment charges and do not anticipate taking goodwill impairment charges in the foreseeable future. Goodwill recorded from the Nicor merger totaled \$1.4 billion, of which \$1.2 billion was assigned to distribution operations, \$124 million to retail operations, \$77 million to cargo shipping, \$2 million to midstream operations, \$2 million to wholesale services and \$8 million to other. For additional information see Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

Intangible assets from the Nicor merger totaled to \$103 million, of which \$85 million was assigned to retail operations and \$18 million to cargo shipping. In accordance with the authoritative guidance, we amortize intangible assets over their useful lives as we currently have no indefinite-lived intangible assets. These assets are reviewed for impairment when indicators arise. When such events or circumstances are present, we assess the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value will be recovered through the expected future cash flows. In the event the sum of the expected future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, an impairment loss equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its fair value is recorded. No impairment has been recognized.

#### Contingencies

Our accounting policies for contingencies cover a variety of business activities, including contingencies for potentially uncollectible receivables, rate matters, and legal and environmental exposures. We accrue for these contingencies when our assessments indicate that it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset will not be recovered,

and an amount can be reasonably estimated in accordance with authoritative guidance related to contingencies. We base our estimates for these liabilities on currently available facts and our estimates of the ultimate outcome or resolution of the liability in the future.

Actual results may differ from estimates, and estimates can be, and often are, revised either negatively or positively, depending on actual outcomes or changes in the facts or expectations surrounding each potential exposure. Changes in the estimates related to contingencies could have a negative impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position. Our contingencies are further discussed in Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

#### Pension and Other Retirement Plans

Our pension and other retirement plan costs and liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by numerous assumptions and estimates. We annually review the estimates and assumptions underlying our pension and other retirement plan costs and liabilities and update them when appropriate. The critical actuarial assumptions used to develop the required estimates for our pension and other retirement plans include the following key factors:

- assumed discount rates
- expected return on plan assets
- the market value of plan assets
  - assumed mortality table
  - assumed health care costs
- assumed compensation increases
  - assumed rates of retirement
  - assumed rates of termination

The discount rate is utilized in calculating the actuarial present value of our pension and other retirement obligations and our annual net pension and other retirement costs. When establishing our discount rate, with the assistance of our actuaries, we consider certain market indices, including the Citigroup Pension Liability rate, the Moody's Corporate AA long-term bond rate, other high-grade bond indices and a single equivalent discount rate, which is derived by applying the appropriate spot rates based on high quality (AA or better) corporate bonds, to the forecasted future cash flows in each year.

The expected long-term rate of return on assets is used to calculate the expected return on plan assets component of our annual pension and other retirement plans costs. We estimate the expected return on plan assets by evaluating expected bond returns, equity risk premiums, asset allocations, the effects of active plan management, the impact of periodic plan asset rebalancing and historical performance. We also consider guidance from our investment advisors in making a final determination of our expected rate of return on assets. To the extent the actual rate of return on assets realized over the course of a year is greater than or less than the assumed rate, that year's annual pension or other retirement plan cost is not affected. Rather, this gain or loss reduces or increases future pension or other retirement plan costs.

Equity market performance and corporate bond rates have a significant effect on our reported results. Plan assets for the Nicor Gas pension plan are measured at fair value. For the AGL pension plan, market performance also effects our market-related value of plan assets (MRVPA), which is a calculated value and differs from the actual market value of plan assets. The MRVPA recognizes differences between the actual market value and expected market value of our plan assets and is determined by our actuaries using a five-year moving weighted average methodology. Gains and losses on plan assets are spread through the MRVPA based on the five-year moving weighted average methodology, which affects the expected return on plan assets component of pension expense.

In addition, differences between actuarial assumptions and actual plan results are deferred and amortized into cost when the accumulated differences exceed 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation (PBO) or the MRVPA for the AGL pension plan and fair value of the assets for the Nicor Gas pension plan. If necessary, the excess is amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees.

During 2011, we recorded net periodic benefit costs of \$22 million related to our defined pension and other retirement benefit plans. We estimate that in 2012, we will record net periodic pension and other retirement benefit costs in the range of \$54 million to \$57 million (net of capitalization), a \$32 million to \$35 million increase compared to 2011. Approximately \$25 million to \$27 million (net of capitalization) of the increase relates to the Nicor Gas retirement plans, which were acquired through the merger with Nicor. Accordingly, excluding the impacts of the additional costs from the Nicor Gas retirement plans, we anticipate that our net periodic pension and other retirement benefit costs to increase by \$5 million to \$7 million. Nicor Gas had recorded \$19 million in net periodic benefit costs in 2011 prior to the completion of the merger. In determining our estimated expenses for 2012, our actuarial consultant assumed the following expected return on plan assets and discount rates

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

	Pension	Other
	plans	retirement
		plans
Discount rate	4.60 %	4.50 %
Expected return on	8.25%	6.8% -
plan assets	- 8.50 %	8.50 %

The actuarial assumptions we use may differ materially from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal and retirement rates, and longer or shorter life spans of participants. The following table illustrates the effect of changing the critical actuarial assumptions for our pension and other retirement plans while holding all other assumptions constant.

		In m	illions
		Increase	
	Percentage-point	(decrease)	Increase
	change in	in PBO/	(decrease)
Actuarial assumptions	assumption	APBO	in cost
Expected long-term return			
on plan assets	+/- 1 %	\$ 0/0	\$ (5) / 5
		(161)	
Discount rate	+/- 1 %	/ 178	(6) / 6

See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional information on our pension and other retirement plans.

#### **Income Taxes**

We account for income taxes in accordance with the authoritative guidance related to income taxes, which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and liabilities. The guidance also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Deferred tax liabilities are estimated based on the expected future tax consequences of items recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, during the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result, we recognize tax liabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. After application of the federal statutory tax rate to book income, judgment is required with respect to the timing and deductibility of expense in our income tax returns.

A deferred income tax liability is not recorded on undistributed foreign earnings that are expected in our judgment to be indefinitely reinvested offshore. We consider, among other factors, actual cash investments offshore as well as projected cash requirements in making this determination. Changes in our investment or repatriation plans or circumstances could result in a different deferred income tax liability.

For state income tax and other taxes, judgment is also required with respect to the apportionment among the various jurisdictions. A valuation allowance is recorded if we expect that it is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will not be realized. In addition, we operate within multiple tax jurisdictions and we are subject to audit in these jurisdictions. These audits can involve complex issues, which may require an extended period of time to resolve. We maintain a liability for the estimate of potential income tax exposure and in our opinion adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years.

We had a \$3 million valuation allowance on \$204 million of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2011, reflecting the expectation that most of these assets will be realized. Our gross long-term deferred tax liability totaled \$1,646 million at December 31, 2011. See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein for additional information on our taxes.

We are required to determine whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on our tax return should be recorded in our consolidated financial statements. Under this guidance, we may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

Additionally, we recognize accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions in interest expense and penalties in operating expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. As of December 31, 2011, we did not have a liability recorded for payment of interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

#### **Accounting Developments**

On May 12, 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidance related to fair value measurements. The guidance expands the qualitative and quantitative disclosures for Level 3 significant unobservable inputs, permits the use of premiums and discounts to value an instrument if it is standard practice and limits best use valuation to non-financial assets and liabilities. This guidance will be effective for us beginning January 1, 2012. We do not expect the guidance to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidance related to comprehensive income. The guidance eliminates the option to present other comprehensive income in the Statements of Equity, but instead allows companies to elect to present net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement (Statements of Comprehensive Income) or in two consecutive statements. This guidance does not change any of the components of net income or other comprehensive income and earnings per share will still be calculated based on net income. This guidance will be effective for us beginning January 1, 2012, and will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On September 15, 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidance related to goodwill impairment testing. The guidance provides us with the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If we determine that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then performing the normally required two-step quantitative impairment test is unnecessary. However, if we conclude otherwise, we are then required to proceed with the quantitative testing. The guidance allows us to bypass the qualitative assessment for any reporting unit in any period and proceed directly to quantitative testing and resume performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period. This guidance is effective for us on January 1, 2012, but early adoption is permitted. We adopted the guidance early and relied upon a qualitative assessment when performing our annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2011.

#### ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to risks associated with natural gas prices, interest rates, credit and fuel prices. Natural gas price risk is defined as the potential loss that we may incur as a result of changes in the fair value of natural gas. Interest rate risk results from our portfolio of debt and equity instruments that we issue to provide financing and liquidity for our business. Credit risk results from the extension of credit throughout all aspects of our business but is particularly concentrated at Atlanta Gas Light in distribution operations and in wholesale services. Our fuel price risk is primarily in cargo shipping, which is partially reduced through fuel surcharges. Our use of derivative instruments is governed by a risk management policy, approved and monitored by our Risk Management Committee (RMC), which prohibits the use of derivatives for speculative purposes.

Our RMC is responsible for establishing the overall risk management policies and monitoring compliance with, and adherence to, the terms within these policies, including approval and authorization levels and delegation of these levels. Our RMC consists of members of senior management who monitor open natural gas price risk positions and other types of risk, corporate exposures, credit exposures and overall results of our risk management activities. It is chaired by our chief risk officer, who is responsible for ensuring that appropriate reporting mechanisms exist for the RMC to perform its monitoring functions.

#### Natural Gas Price Risk

Distribution Operations Our utilities, excluding Atlanta Gas Light, are authorized to use natural gas cost recovery mechanisms that allow them to adjust their rates to reflect changes in the wholesale cost of natural gas and to ensure they recover 100% of the costs incurred in purchasing gas for their customers. Since Atlanta Gas Light does not sell natural gas directly to its end-use customers, it has no natural gas price risk.

Nicor Gas and Elizabethtown Gas enter into derivative instruments to hedge the impact of market fluctuations in natural gas prices for customers. These derivatives are reflected at fair value and are not designated as hedges. Realized gains or losses on such instruments are included in the cost of gas delivered and are passed through directly to customers and therefore have no direct impact on earnings. Unrealized changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Retail Operations We routinely utilize various types of derivative instruments to mitigate certain natural gas price and weather risk inherent in the natural gas industry. These instruments include a variety of exchange-traded and OTC energy contracts, such as forward contracts, futures contracts, options contracts and swap agreements. This includes the active management of storage positions through a variety of hedging transactions for the purpose of managing exposures arising from changing natural gas prices. We use these hedging instruments to lock in economic margins (as spreads between wholesale and retail natural gas prices widen between periods) and thereby minimize its exposure to declining operating margins.

Wholesale Services We routinely use various types of derivative instruments to mitigate certain natural gas price risks inherent in the natural gas industry. These instruments include a variety of exchange-traded and OTC energy contracts, such as forward contracts, futures contracts, options contracts and financial swap agreements.

Midstream Operations Central Valley and Golden Triangle Storage use derivative instruments to reduce their exposure to the risk of changes in the price of natural gas that will be purchased in future periods for pad gas, conditioning gas and additional volumes of gas used to de-water the cavern (de-water gas) during the construction of storage facilities. Pad gas includes volumes of non-working natural gas used to maintain the operational integrity of the caverns. Conditioning gas is used to ready a field for use and will be sold in connection with placing the storage facility into service. De-water gas is used to remove water from the cavern in anticipation of commercial service and will be sold after completion of de-watering. We also use derivative instruments for asset optimization purposes.

Consolidated The following tables include the fair values and average values of our consolidated derivative instruments as of the dates indicated. We base the average values on monthly averages for the 12 months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

	Derivative					
	instruments averag					
	values (1) at					
	December 31,					
In millions	2011	2010				
Asset	\$ 211	\$ 226				
Liability	76	70				

(1) Excludes cash collateral amounts.

	Derivative							
	instruments fair							
	values netted wit							
	cash collateral							
	Decen	nber 31,						
In millions	2011	2010						
Asset	\$ 314	\$ 228						
Liability	110	48						

The following tables illustrate the change in the net fair value of our derivative instruments during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and provide details of the net fair value of contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

In millions	2011		2010		2009	
Net fair value of derivative						
instruments outstanding at beginning						
of period	\$ 75	\$	121	\$	65	
Derivative instruments realized or						
otherwise settled during period	(74	)	(117	)	(54	)
Net fair value of derivative						
instruments acquired during period	(5	)	0		50	
Change in net fair value of derivative						
instruments	61		71		60	
Net fair value of derivative						
instruments outstanding at end of						
period	57		75		121	
Netting of cash collateral	147		105		57	
Cash collateral and net fair value of						
derivative instruments outstanding at						
end of period (1)	\$ 204	\$	180	\$	178	

(1) Net fair value of derivative instruments outstanding includes \$3 million premium and associated intrinsic value at December 31, 2011, less than \$1 million at December 31, 2010 and \$2 million at December 31, 2009 associated with weather derivatives.

The sources of our net fair value at December 31, 2011, are as follows.

		Prices actively		ignifican other bservable			
		quoted		inputs			
	(1	Level 1)	) (	(Level 2)			
In millions		(1)		(2)			
Mature through 2012	\$	(90	) \$	126			
Mature 2013 – 2014		(15	)	36			
Mature 2015 – 2017		(2	)	2			
Total derivative instruments (3)	\$	(107	) \$	164			

<sup>(1)</sup> Valued using NYMEX futures prices.

- (2) Valued using basis transactions that represent the cost to transport natural gas from a NYMEX delivery point to the contract delivery point. These transactions are based on quotes obtained either through electronic trading platforms or directly from brokers.
  - (3) Excludes cash collateral amounts.

Value-at-risk Our open exposure is managed in accordance with established policies that limit market risk and require daily reporting of potential financial exposure to senior management, including the chief risk officer. Because we generally manage physical gas assets and economically protect our positions by hedging in the futures markets, our open exposure is generally immaterial, permitting us to operate within relatively low VaR limits. We employ daily risk testing, using both VaR and stress testing, to evaluate the risks of our open positions. Our VaR is determined on a 95% confidence interval and a 1-day holding period. In simple terms, this means that 95% of the time, the risk of loss from a portfolio of positions is expected to be less than or equal to the amount of VaR calculated.

We actively monitor open commodity positions and the resulting VaR. We also continue to maintain a relatively matched book, where our total buy volume is close to our sell volume, with minimal open natural gas price risk. Based on a 95% confidence interval and employing a 1-day holding period, SouthStar's portfolio of positions for the 12 months ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were less than \$0.1 million and Sequent had the following VaRs.

In millions	2011	2010	2009	
Period end	\$ 2.2	\$ 1.6	\$ 2.4	
12-month average	1.6	1.3	1.8	
High	3.1	3.0	3.3	
Low	0.8	0.7	0.7	

#### Fuel Price Risk

Cargo Shipping Tropical Shipping's objective is to reduce its exposure to higher fuel costs through fuel surcharges. However, these fuel surcharges do not entirely remove our risk in periods of increasing fuel prices and volatility, or increased competition.

#### **Interest Rate Risk**

Interest rate fluctuations expose our variable-rate debt to changes in interest expense and cash flows. Our policy is to manage interest expense using a combination of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. Based on \$1.7 billion of variable-rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2011, a 100 basis point change in market interest rates would have resulted in an increase in pretax interest expense of \$17 million on an annualized basis.

We have \$300 million of 6.4% senior notes due in July 2016. In May 2011, we entered into interest rate swaps related to these senior notes to effectively convert \$250 million from a fixed rate to a variable rate obligation. The interest rate resets quarterly based on LIBOR plus 3.9%.

As of December 31, 2011, we also held forward-starting interest rate swaps totaling \$90 million that were redesignated as cash flow hedges upon the close of the merger. Under the terms of the swaps, we agree to pay a fixed swap rate and receive a floating rate based upon LIBOR.

Interest rate swaps help us achieve our desired mix of variable to fixed rate debt (i.e. variable debt target of 20% to 45% of total debt). Any gain or loss on these interest rate swaps are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income until settlement, at which point they are amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt. For additional information, see Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8 herein.

## Credit Risk

Distribution Operations Atlanta Gas Light has a concentration of credit risk as it bills eleven certificated and active Marketers in Georgia for its services. The credit risk exposure to Marketers varies with the time of the year, with exposure at its lowest in the nonpeak summer months and highest in the peak winter months. Marketers are responsible for the retail sale of natural gas to end-use customers in Georgia. These retail functions include customer service, billing, collections, and the purchase and sale of the natural gas commodity. The provisions of Atlanta Gas Light's tariff allow Atlanta Gas Light to obtain security support in an amount equal to a minimum of two times a Marketer's highest month's estimated bill from Atlanta Gas Light. For 2011, the four largest Marketers based on customer count, which includes SouthStar, accounted for approximately 30% of our consolidated operating margin and 38% of distribution operations' operating margin.

Several factors are designed to mitigate our risks from the increased concentration of credit that has resulted from deregulation. In addition to the security support described above, Atlanta Gas Light bills intrastate delivery service to Marketers in advance rather than in arrears. We accept credit support in the form of cash deposits, letters of credit/surety bonds from acceptable issuers and corporate guarantees from investment-grade entities. The RMC reviews on a monthly basis the adequacy of credit support coverage, credit rating profiles of credit support providers and payment status of each Marketer. We believe that adequate policies and procedures have been put in place to properly quantify, manage and report on Atlanta Gas Light's credit risk exposure to Marketers.

Atlanta Gas Light also faces potential credit risk in connection with assignments of interstate pipeline transportation and storage capacity to Marketers. Although Atlanta Gas Light assigns this capacity to Marketers, in the event that a Marketer fails to pay the interstate pipelines for the capacity, the interstate pipelines would in all likelihood seek repayment from Atlanta Gas Light.

Our gas distribution businesses offer options to help customers manage their bills, such as energy assistance programs for low-income customers and a budget payment plan that spreads gas bills more evenly throughout the year. Customer credit risk has been substantially mitigated at Nicor Gas by the bad debt rider approved by the Illinois

Commission on February 2, 2010, which provides for the recovery from (or refund to) customers of the difference between Nicor Gas' actual bad debt experience on an annual basis and the benchmark bad debt expense included in its rates for the respective year. For Virginia Natural Gas and Chattanooga Gas, we are allowed to recover the gas portion of bad debt write-offs through their gas recovery mechanisms.

Nicor Gas faces potential credit risk in connection with its natural gas supply sales and procurement activities to the extent a counterparty defaults on a contract to pay for or deliver at agreed-upon terms and conditions. To manage this risk, Nicor Gas maintains credit policies to determine and monitor the creditworthiness of its counterparties. In doing so, Nicor Gas seeks guarantees or collateral, in the form of cash or letters of credit, limits its exposure to any one counterparty and enters into netting arrangements to mitigate counterparty credit risk.

Certain of our derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related or other contingent features that could increase the payments for collateral we post in the normal course of business when our financial instruments are in net liability positions. As of December 31, 2011 for agreements with such features, our distribution operations derivative instruments with liability fair values totaled approximately \$52 million for which we had posted \$17 million of collateral to our counterparties. If it was assumed that we had to post the maximum contractually specified collateral or settle the liability, we would have been required to pay approximately \$33 million at December 31, 2011.

Retail Operations We obtain credit scores for our firm residential and small commercial customers using a national credit reporting agency, enrolling only those customers that meet or exceed our credit threshold. We consider potential interruptible and large commercial customers based on a review of publicly available financial statements and review of commercially available credit reports. Prior to entering into a physical transaction, we also assign physical wholesale counterparties an internal credit rating and credit limit based on the counterparties' Moody's, S&P and Fitch ratings, commercially available credit reports and audited financial statements.

Wholesale Services We have established credit policies to determine and monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties, as well as the quality of pledged collateral. We also utilize master netting agreements whenever possible to mitigate exposure to counterparty credit risk. When we are engaged in more than one outstanding derivative transaction with the same counterparty and we also have a legally enforceable netting agreement with that counterparty, the "net" mark-to-market exposure represents the netting of the positive and negative exposures with that counterparty and a reasonable measure of our credit risk. We also use other netting agreements with certain counterparties with whom we conduct significant transactions. Master netting agreements enable us to net certain assets and liabilities by counterparty. We also net across product lines and against cash collateral provided the master netting and cash collateral agreements include such provisions.

Additionally, we may require counterparties to pledge additional collateral when deemed necessary. We conduct credit evaluations and obtain appropriate internal approvals for our counterparty's line of credit before any transaction with the counterparty is executed. In most cases, the counterparty must have an investment grade rating, which includes a minimum long-term debt rating of Baa3 from Moody's and BBB- from S&P. Generally, we require credit enhancements by way of guaranty, cash deposit or letter of credit for transaction counterparties that do not have investment grade ratings.

We have a concentration of credit risk as measured by its 30-day receivable exposure plus forward exposure. As of December 31, 2011, excluding \$11 million of customer deposits, our top 20 counterparties represented approximately 60% of the total counterparty exposure of \$504 million, derived by adding together the top 20 counterparties' exposures, exclusive of customer deposits, and dividing by the total of our counterparties' exposures.

As of December 31, 2011, our counterparties, or the counterparties' guarantors, had a weighted average S&P equivalent credit rating of BBB+, which is consistent with the prior year. The S&P equivalent credit rating is determined by a process of converting the lower of the S&P or Moody's ratings to an internal rating ranging from 9 to 1, with 9 being equivalent to AAA/Aaa by S&P and Moody's and 1 being D or Default by S&P and Moody's. A counterparty that does not have an external rating is assigned an internal rating based on the strength of the financial ratios of that counterparty. To arrive at the weighted average credit rating, each counterparty is assigned an internal ratio, which is multiplied by their credit exposure and summed for all counterparties. The sum is divided by the aggregate total counterparties' exposures, and this numeric value is then converted to an S&P equivalent. The following table shows our third-party natural gas contracts receivable and payable positions.

	As of December 31,									
		Gross rece	eival	bles		es				
In millions		2011		2010		2011		2010		
Netting agreements in place:										
Counterparty is investment										
grade	\$	395	\$	515	\$	255	\$	341		
Counterparty is										
non-investment grade		23		11		47		40		
Counterparty has no external										
rating		184		260		288		363		
No netting agreements in place:										
Counterparty is investment										
grade		4		2		0		0		
Counterparty has no external										
rating		1		0		0		0		
Amount recorded on										
Statements of Financial										
Position	\$	607	\$	788	\$	590	\$	744		

We have certain trade and credit contracts that have explicit minimum credit rating requirements. These credit rating requirements typically give counterparties the right to suspend or terminate credit if our credit ratings are downgraded to non-investment grade status. Under such circumstances, we would need to post collateral to continue transacting business with some of its counterparties. If such collateral were not posted, our ability to continue transacting business with these counterparties would be impaired. If our credit ratings had been downgraded to non-investment grade status, the required amounts to satisfy potential collateral demands under such agreements with our counterparties would have totaled \$15 million at December 31, 2011, which would not have a material impact to our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

## ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AGL Resources Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of AGL Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded Nicor from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2011. We have also excluded Nicor from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Nicor is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues represent 47% and 9%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Atlanta, Georgia February 22, 2012

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

On December 9, 2011, we completed our merger with Nicor. As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, management has elected to exclude Nicor from management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. Assets and revenues of Nicor represent 47% and 9%, respectively, of our total assets and total revenues as reported in our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by COSO, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011, in providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing herein.

February 22, 2012

/s/ John W. Somerhalder II John W. Somerhalder II Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Andrew W. Evans
Andrew W. Evans
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

AGL Resources Inc. Consolidated Statements of Financial Position - Assets

	As of De	ecember 31,
In millions	2011	2010
Current assets		
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)	\$69	\$24
Short-term investments (Note 2)	53	0
Receivables		
Energy marketing receivables	607	788
Gas	364	204
Unbilled revenues	216	173
Other	112	13
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts	15	16
Total receivables (Note 2)	1,284	1,162
Inventories		
Natural gas stored underground	702	607
Other	48	32
Total inventories (Note 2)	750	639
Derivative instruments – current portion (Note 2, Note 4 and Note 5)	248	182
Recoverable regulatory infrastructure program costs – current portion (Note 2)	48	48
Recoverable environmental remediation costs – current portion (Note 2 and Note 11)	7	7
Recoverable postretirement benefits - current (Note 2 and Note 6)	29	0
Prepaid expenses	164	66
Other current assets	94	38
Total current assets	2,746	2,166
Long-term assets and other deferred debits		
Property, plant and equipment	9,779	6,266
Less accumulated depreciation	1,879	1,861
Property, plant and equipment – net (Note 2)	7,900	4,405
Goodwill (Note 2 and Note 3)	1,813	418
Intangible assets (Note 2 and Note 3)	105	3
Recoverable regulatory infrastructure program costs (Note 2)	305	244
Recoverable environmental remediation costs (Note 2 and Note 11)	351	164
Recoverable postretirement benefits – long-term (Note 2 and Note 6)	262	0
Long-term investments (Note 2)	128	11
Derivative instruments (Note 2, Note 4 and Note 5)	66	46
Other	237	63
Total long-term assets and other deferred debits	11,167	5,354
Total assets	\$13,913	\$7,520

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

AGL Resources Inc. Consolidated Statements of Financial Position - Liabilities and Equity

	As of December 31,					
In millions, except share amounts	2011	2010				
Current liabilities						
Energy marketing trade payable (Note 2)	\$590	\$744				
Short-term debt (Note 8)	1,323	733				
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)	15	300				
Accounts payable – trade	294	178				
Accrued regulatory infrastructure program costs – current portion (Note 2)	131	62				
Customer credit balances and deposits	152	52				
Accrued wages and salaries	52	51				
Accrued taxes	49	48				
Derivative instruments – current portion (Note 2, Note 4 and Note 5)	99	44				
Accrued interest (Note 11)	61	40				
Accrued natural gas costs (Note 2)	53	23				
Accrued environmental remediation liabilities – current portion (Note 2 and Note 11)	37	14				
Other current liabilities	228	143				
Total current liabilities	3,084	2,432				
Long-term liabilities and other deferred credits						
Long-term debt (Note 4 and Note 8)	3,561	1,671				
Accumulated deferred income taxes (Note 2 and Note 12)	1,445	768				
Accrued pension obligations (Note 4 and Note 6)	238	186				
Accumulated removal costs (Note 2)	1,321	182				
Accrued regulatory infrastructure program costs (Note 2)	145	166				
Accrued environmental remediation liabilities (Note 2 and Note 11)	290	129				
Accrued other retirement benefit costs (Note 4 and Note 6)	320	36				
Derivative instruments (Note 2, Note 4 and Note 5)	11	4				
Other long-term liabilities and other deferred credits	159	110				
Total long-term liabilities and other deferred credits	7,490	3,252				
Total liabilities and other deferred credits	10,574	5,684				
Commitments, guarantees and contingencies (see Note 11)						
Equity						
Common shareholders' equity						
Common stock, \$5 par value; 750 million shares authorized	586	391				
Additional paid in capital	1,989	631				
Retained earnings	967	943				
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)	(217	) (150				
Treasury shares	(7	) (2				
Total common shareholders' equity (Note 9)	3,318	1,813				
Noncontrolling interest (Note 10)	21	23				
Total equity	3,339	1,836				
Total liabilities and equity	\$13,913	\$7,520				

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

# AGL Resources Inc. Consolidated Statements of Income

	Years ended December 31,									
In millions, except per share amounts	2011	2010	2009							
Operating revenues (Note 2)	\$2,338	\$2,373	\$2,317							
Operating expenses										
Cost of goods sold (Note 2)	1,097	1,164	1,142							
Operation and maintenance	490	497	497							
Depreciation and amortization (Note 2)	186	160	158							
Nicor merger expenses (Note 3)	68	6	0							
Taxes other than income taxes	57	46	44							
Total operating expenses	1,898	1,873	1,841							
Operating income	440	500	476							
Other income (expense)										
Other income (expense), net	7	(1	) 9							
Interest expenses, net	(136	) (109	) (101 )							
Total other expense	(129	) (110	) (92 )							
Earnings before income taxes	311	390	384							
Income tax expenses (Note 12)	125	140	135							
Net income	186	250	249							
Less net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest (Note 10)	14	16	27							
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	\$172	\$234	\$222							
Per common share data (Note 2)										
Basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc.										
common shareholders (Note 2)	\$2.14	\$3.02	\$2.89							
Diluted earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc.										
common shareholders (Note 2)	\$2.12	\$3.00	\$2.88							
Cash dividends declared per common share	\$1.90	\$1.76	\$1.72							
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (Note 2)										
Basic	80.4	77.4	76.8							
Diluted	80.9	77.8	77.1							

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

# AGL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

		Years	ende	d Decem	ber 31,		
In millions	2011			2010		200	09
Comprehensive income attributable to AGL Resources							
Inc. (net of tax)							
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	\$ 172		\$	234		\$	222
Other comprehensive income (loss),net of tax							
Retirement plans (Note 4 and Note 6)							
Unrealized (loss) gain arising during the period	(65	)		(28	)		17
Cash flow hedges (Note 5)							
Derivative instruments unrealized losses arising							
during the period	(5	)		(14	)		(12
Reclassification of realized derivative losses to net							
income	3			9			13
Other comprehensive (loss) income	(67	)		(33	)		18
Comprehensive income (Note 9)	\$ 105		\$	201		\$	240
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to							
noncontrolling interest (net of tax)							
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (Note							
9)	\$ 14		\$	16		\$	27
Cash flow hedges (Note 5)							
Derivative instruments unrealized losses arising during							
the period	(1	)		(1	)		(7
Reclassification of realized derivative losses to in net							
income	1			2			7
Other comprehensive income	0			1			0
Comprehensive income (Note 9)	\$ 14		\$	17		\$	27
Total comprehensive income (net of tax)							
Net income	\$ 186		\$	250		\$	249
Other comprehensive income (loss),net of tax							
Retirement benefit plans (Note 4 and Note 6)							
Unrealized (loss) gain arising during the period	(65	)		(28	)		17
Cash flow hedges (Note 5)							
Derivative instruments unrealized losses arising during							
the period	(6	)		(15	)		(19
Reclassification of realized derivative losses to net							
income	4			11			20
Other comprehensive (loss) income	(67	)		(32	)		18
Comprehensive income (Note 9)	\$ 119		\$	218		\$	267

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

# AGL RESOURCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

# AGL Resources Inc. Shareholders

	AGE Resources Inc. Shareholders  Accumulated										
			ed	1							
			Additional		other						
	Commo	on stock	paid-in-	Retained	comprehens	sive	Treasur	Nonco	ntrollin	g	
In millions, except											
per share amounts	Shares	Amount	capital	Earnings	loss		shares	int	terest	Total	
As of December 31,											
2008	76.9	\$ 390	\$ 676	\$ 763	\$ (134	)	\$ (43	) \$	32	\$ 1,684	4
Net income	0.0	0	0	222	0		0		27	249	
Other											
comprehensive											
income (Note 9)	0.0	0	0	0	18		0	(	0	18	
Dividends on											
common stock											
(\$1.72 per share)	0.0	0	0	(132)	0		5		0	(127	)
Distributions to	0.0	, , ,	Ü	(132 )			J			(12)	
noncontrolling											
interests (Note 10)	0.0	0	0	0	0		0		(20)	(20	)
Issuance of treasury	0.0	U	U	O	U		U		(20)	(20	,
shares (Note 9)	0.6	0	(4)	(5)	0		17		0	8	
Stock-based	0.0	U	(4 )	(3 )	·		1 /		J	O	
compensation											
expense (net of tax)											
(Note 7)	0.0	0	7	0	0		0		0	7	
As of December 31,	0.0	U	1	U	U		U		J	/	
2009	77.5	\$ 390	\$ 679	\$ 848	\$ (116	`	\$ (21	) \$	39	\$ 1,819	0
Net income	0.0	0	0	234	0	)	0	/	16	250	9
Other	0.0	U	U	234	U		U		10	230	
comprehensive											
(loss) income (Note	0.0	0	0	0	(22	`	0		1	(22	`
9) Distilanda an	0.0	0	0	0	(33	)	0		1	(32	)
Dividends on											
common stock	0.0	0	0	(106.)	0		2		0	(100	
(\$1.76 per share)	0.0	0	0	(136)	0		3		0	(133	)
Purchase of											
additional 15%											
ownership interest											
in SouthStar (Note		_		_			_				
10)	0.0	0	(51)	0	(1	)	0		(6)	(58	)
Distributions to											
noncontrolling											
interests (Note 10)	0.0	0	0	0	0		0		(27)	(27	)
Purchase of											
treasury shares											
(Note 9)	(0.2)	0	0	0	0		(7	)	0	(7	)

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

Issuance of treasury							_				_			
shares (Note 9)	0.7	1	(5	)	(3	)	0		22		0		15	
Stock-based compensation expense (net of tax)														
(Note 7)	0.0	0	8		0		0		1		0		9	
As of December 31,														
2010	78.0	391	\$		\$		\$ (150	)	\$ •	) \$	23	\$	1,83	6
Net income	0.0	0	0		172		0		0		14		186	
Other														
comprehensive														
(loss) income (Note			_											
9)	0.0	0	0		0		(67	)	0		0		(67	)
Dividends on common stock														
(\$1.90 per share)	0.0	0	0		(148	)	0		0		0		(148	5 )
Distributions to														
noncontrolling														
interests (Note 10)	0.0	0	0		0		0		0		(16	)	(16	)
Benefit, dividend reinvestment and stock purchase														
plans	0.8	4	18		0		0		(3	)	0		19	
Purchase of														
treasury shares														
(Note 9)	0.0	0	0		0		0		(2	)	0		(2	)
Issuance of shares for Nicor merger														
(Note 3)	38.2	191	1,332	2	0		0		0		0		1,52	.3
Stock-based compensation expense (net of tax)														
(Note 7)	0.0	0	8		0		0		0		0		8	
As of December 31, 2011	117.0	\$ 586	\$ 1,989	9	\$ 967		\$ (217	)	\$ (7	) \$	21	9	3,33	9
							•	-					*	

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

# AGL Resources Inc. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In millions	Ye. 2011	ars e	ended Dec 2010	embe	mber 31, 2009		
Cash flows from operating activities	2011		2010		2009		
Net income	\$186		\$250		\$249		
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flow provided by	φ100		φ <i>23</i> 0		ψ 4 <del>4</del> 7		
operating activities							
Depreciation and amortization (Note 2)	186		160		158		
Deferred income taxes (Note 12)	214		92		105		
Change in derivative instrument assets and liabilities (Note 4 and Note 5)	(24	)	(2	`	11		
Changes in certain assets and liabilities (Note 4 and Note 3)	(24	)	(2	)	11		
	27		17		(01	`	
Energy marketing receivables and trade payables, net (Note 2)			47		(81	)	
Inventories (Note 2)	158	`	33		(9	)	
Accrued expenses	(77	)	7	\	19		
Trade payables, other than energy marketing	(70	)	(12	)	1		
Accrued natural gas costs (Note 2)	(3	)	(14	)	24		
Receivables, other than energy marketing (Note 2)	45	_	(26	)	108	`	
Prepaid expenses	(98	)	6	\	(21	)	
Other – net	(93	)	(15	)	28		
Net cash flow provided by operating activities	451		526		592		
Cash flows from investing activities	/0.4. <b>a</b>						
Acquisition of Nicor Inc, net of cash acquired (Note 3)	(912	)	0		0		
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (Note 2)	(427	)	(510	)	(476	)	
Proceeds from the disposition of assets	0		73		0		
Other	0		(5	)	0		
Net cash flow used in investing activities	(1,339	)	(442	)	(476	)	
Cash flows from financing activities							
Issuances of senior notes (Note 8)	1,014		0		297		
Payment of senior notes (Note 8)	(300	)	0		0		
Issuances of private placement bonds (Note 8)	275		0		0		
Proceeds from term loan facility	150		0		0		
Payments of term loan facility	(150	)	0		0		
Benefit, dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan	19		8		8		
Net payments and borrowings of short-term debt	91		131		(264	)	
Issuances of variable rate gas facility revenue bonds (Note 8)	0		160		0		
Payments of gas facility revenue bonds (Note 8)	0		(160	)	0		
Purchase of treasury shares (Note 9)	(2	)	(7	)	0		
Distribution to noncontrolling interest (Note 10)	(16	)	(27	)	(20	)	
Purchase 15% ownership in SouthStar from Piedmont (Note 10)	0		(58	)	0		
Dividends paid on common shares (Note 9)	(148	)	(133	)	(127	)	
Net cash flow provided by (used in) by financing activities	933		(86	)	(106	)	
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	45		(2	)	10		
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	24		26		16		

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$69	\$24	\$26
Cash paid during the period for			
Interest	\$116	\$107	\$93
Income taxes	\$12	\$58	\$50
Non cash transactions			
Merger with Nicor, common stock issued 38.2 million shares, value	\$1,523	\$0	\$0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 – Organization and Basis of Presentation

#### General

AGL Resources Inc. is an energy services holding company that conducts substantially all its operations through its subsidiaries. Unless the context requires otherwise, references to "we," "us," "our," the "company", or "AGL Resources" mear consolidated AGL Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries.

## **Business Combinations**

On December 9, 2011, we closed our merger with Nicor and created a combined company with increased scale and scope in the distribution, storage and transportation of natural gas. See Note 3 for additional information.

## **Basis of Presentation**

Our consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ended December 31, 2011 are prepared in accordance with GAAP and under the rules of the SEC. Our consolidated financial statements include our accounts, the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries, the accounts of our majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries and the accounts of our variable interest entity for which we are the primary beneficiary. For unconsolidated entities that we do not control, but exercise significant influence over, we use the equity method of accounting and our proportionate share of income or loss is recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Income. See Note 10 for additional information. We have eliminated intercompany profits and transactions in consolidation except for intercompany profits where recovery of such amounts are probable under the affiliates' rate regulation process.

Certain amounts from prior periods have been reclassified and revised to conform to the current period presentation. The reclassifications and revisions had no material impact on our prior period balances.

Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies and Methods of Application

## Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on deposit, money market accounts and certificates of deposit of domestic subsidiaries with original maturities of three months or less.

## Receivables and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Our receivables primarily consist of natural gas sales and transportation services billed to residential, commercial, industrial and other customers. We bill customers monthly, and our accounts receivable are due within 30 days. For the majority of our receivables, we establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based on our collection experience and other factors. For receivables where we are aware of a specific customer's inability or reluctance to pay, we record an allowance for doubtful accounts against amounts due to reduce the net receivable balance to the amount we reasonably expect to collect. However, if circumstances change, our estimate of the recoverability of accounts receivable could change as well. Circumstances that could affect our estimates include, but are not limited to, customer credit issues, the level of natural gas prices, customer deposits and general economic conditions. Customers' accounts are written off once we deem them to be uncollectible.

Nicor Gas Credit risk exposure at Nicor Gas is mitigated by the bad debt rider approved by the Illinois Commission on February 2, 2010. The bad debt rider provides for the recovery from (or refund to) customers of the difference between Nicor Gas' actual bad debt experience on an annual basis and the benchmark bad debt expense included in its rates for the respective year. For more information on the bad debt rider, see discussion in Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.

Atlanta Gas Light Concentration of credit risk occurs at Atlanta Gas Light for amounts billed for services and other costs to its customers, which consist of eleven Marketers in Georgia. The credit risk exposure to Marketers varies seasonally, with the lowest exposure in the nonpeak summer months and the highest exposure in the peak winter months. Marketers are responsible for the retail sale of natural gas to end-use customers in Georgia. The functions of the retail sale of gas include customer service, billings, collections, and the purchase and sale of natural gas. Atlanta Gas Light's tariff allows it to obtain security support in an amount equal to no less than two times a Marketer's highest month's estimated bill from Atlanta Gas Light.

#### Investments

Our investments in marketable securities are categorized at the date of acquisition as trading, held-to-maturity, or available-for-sale. Trading securities, which include money market funds, are carried at fair value and are classified as current assets unless held to satisfy a long-term obligation. We classify money market funds held by our non-United States subsidiaries as short-term investments and all others are classified as cash equivalents. Debt securities are categorized as held-to-maturity when our intent and ability is to hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are included in either short-term or long-term investments based upon their contractual maturity date. We carry held-to-maturity securities at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in common equity as a component of accumulated OCI. Available-for-sale securities are classified as noncurrent assets unless the intent is to sell the security within 12 months. The specific identification method is used to determine realized gains or losses on the sale of marketable securities. Investments in equity securities that do not have a readily determinable fair value and do not qualify for the equity method are carried at cost.

Our investments in debt and equity securities at December 31 are as follows:

In millions	2011
Money	
market funds	\$ 59
Corporate	
bonds	6
Other	
investments	7
Total	\$ 72

Investments in debt and equity securities are classified on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at December 31 as follows:

In millions	2011
Cash	
equivalents	\$ 9
Short-term	
investments	53
Long-term	
investments	10
Total	\$ 72

Investments categorized as trading (including money market funds) totaled \$59 million at December 31, 2011. Corporate bonds and certain other investments are categorized as held-to-maturity. The contractual maturities of the held-to-maturity investments at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

	Years to maturity				
	Less				
	than				
	1	1-5	5-10		
In millions	year	years	years	Total	
Held-to-maturity					
investments	\$ 2	\$ 5	\$ 1	\$8	

Our investments also include certain investments, including certificates of deposit and bank accounts, maintained to fulfill statutory or contractual requirements. These investments totaled \$2 million at December 31, 2011. In addition, we hold a \$3 million investment in a port facility development venture carried at cost. Gains or losses included in earnings resulting from the sale of investments were not significant.

## Inventories

Except for Nicor Gas, distribution operations records natural gas stored underground at WACOG. Nicor Gas' inventory is carried at cost on a last-in-first-out (LIFO) basis. For our wholesale services and retail operations businesses, we account for natural gas inventory at the lower of WACOG or market price.

Based on the average cost of gas purchased in December 2011, the estimated replacement cost of Nicor Gas' inventory at December 31, 2011 exceeded the LIFO cost by \$189 million. During the 22 days of December 2011, Nicor Gas had an immaterial LIFO liquidation.

Our retail operations and wholesale services segments evaluate the weighted-average cost of their natural gas inventories against market prices to determine whether any declines in market prices below the WACOG are other-than-temporary. For any declines considered to be other-than-temporary, we record adjustments to reduce the weighted-average cost of the natural gas inventory to market price. Consequently, as a result of declining natural gas prices, Retail operations and wholesale services charged LOCOM adjustments to cost of goods sold, to reduce the value of their inventories to market value in the following amounts.

In millions	2011	2010	2009
Retail			
operations	\$ 5	\$ 0	\$ 6
Wholesale			
services	31	8	8

In Georgia's competitive environment, Marketers including SouthStar, sell natural gas to firm end-use customers at market-based prices. Part of the unbundling process, which resulted from deregulation and provides this competitive environment, is the assignment to Marketers of certain pipeline services that Atlanta Gas Light has under contract. Atlanta Gas Light assigns, on a monthly basis, the majority of the pipeline storage services that it has under contract to Marketers, along with a corresponding amount of inventory.

## Energy Marketing Receivables and Payables

Our wholesale services segment provides services to retail and wholesale marketers and utility and industrial customers. These customers, also known as counterparties, utilize netting agreements, which enable wholesale services to net receivables and payables by counterparty. Wholesale services also nets across product lines and against cash collateral, provided the master netting and cash collateral agreements include such provisions. The amounts due from or owed to wholesale services' counterparties are settled net, but are recorded on a gross basis in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as energy marketing receivables and energy marketing payables.

Our wholesale services segment has some trade and credit contracts that have explicit minimum credit rating requirements. These credit rating requirements typically give counterparties the right to suspend or terminate credit if our credit ratings are downgraded to non-investment grade status. Under such circumstances, wholesale services would need to post collateral to continue transacting business with some of its counterparties. No collateral has been posted under such provisions since our credit ratings have always exceeded the minimum requirements. As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the collateral that wholesale services would have been required to post if our credit ratings had been downgraded to non-investment grade status would not have had a material impact to our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. However, if such collateral were not posted, wholesale services' ability to continue transacting business with these counterparties would be negatively impacted.

Wholesale services has a concentration of credit risk for services it provides to marketers and to utility and industrial counterparties. This credit risk is measured by 30-day receivable exposure plus forward exposure, which is generally concentrated in 20 of its counterparties. We evaluate the credit risk of our counterparties using a S&P equivalent credit rating, which is determined by a process of converting the lower of the S&P or Moody's rating to an internal rating ranging from 9.00 to 1.00, with 9.00 being equivalent to AAA/Aaa by S&P and Moody's and 1.00 being equivalent to D or Default by S&P and Moody's. For a customer without an external rating, we assign an internal rating based on our analysis of the strength of its financial ratios. The following table provides additional information about wholesale services' credit exposure at December 31, 2011, excluding \$11 million of customer deposits.

Dollars in	Total	# of top	Concentration
millions	(1)	counterparties	risk %
Credit		_	
exposure	\$ 304	20	60 %

(1) Our counterparties or the counterparties' guarantors had a weighted average S&P equivalent rating of BBB+ at December 31, 2011.

The weighted average credit rating is obtained by multiplying each customer's assigned internal rating by its credit exposure and then adding the individual results for all counterparties. That total is divided by the aggregate total exposure. This numeric value is converted to an S&P equivalent.

We have established credit policies to determine and monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties, including requirements for posting of collateral or other credit security, as well as the quality of pledged collateral. Collateral or credit security is most often in the form of cash or letters of credit from an investment-grade financial institution, but may also include cash or United States government securities held by a trustee. When wholesale services is engaged in more than one outstanding derivative transaction with the same counterparty and it also has a legally enforceable netting agreement with that counterparty, the "net" mark-to-market exposure represents the netting of the positive and negative exposures with that counterparty and a reasonable measure of our credit risk. Wholesale services also uses other netting agreements with certain counterparties with whom it conducts significant transactions.

## Fair Value Measurements

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, short and long-term investments, derivative assets and liabilities, accounts payable, short-term debt, retirement plan assets, other current assets and liabilities and accrued interest approximate fair value. See Note 4 for additional fair value disclosures.

As defined in the authoritative guidance related to fair value measurements and disclosures, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). We utilize market data or assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. We primarily apply the market approach for recurring fair value measurements to utilize the best available information. Accordingly, we use valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. We are able to classify fair value balances based on the observance of those inputs. The guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined by the guidance are as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Our Level 1 items consist of exchange-traded derivatives, money market funds and retirement plan assets.

Level 2 Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial and commodity instruments that are valued using valuation methodologies. These methodologies are primarily industry-standard methodologies that consider various assumptions, including quoted forward prices for commodities, time value, volatility factors, and current market and contractual prices for the underlying instruments, as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument, can be derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace. We obtain market price data from multiple sources in order to value some of our Level 2 transactions and this data is representative of transactions that occurred in the market place. As we aggregate our disclosures by counterparty, the underlying transactions for a given counterparty may be a combination of exchange-traded derivatives and values based on other sources. Instruments in this category include shorter tenor exchange-traded and non-exchange-traded derivatives such as OTC forwards and options and retirement plan assets.

Level 3 Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies that result in management's best estimate of fair value. Level 3 instruments include those that may be more structured or otherwise tailored to customers' needs. Our Level 3 assets and liabilities are primarily related to our retirement plan assets as described in Note 4 and Note 6. However, we have nonretirement plan Level 3 assets and liabilities that are described further in Note 3, Note 4 and Note 5. Transfers into and out of Level 3 reflect the liquidity at the relevant natural gas trading locations and dates which affects the significance of unobservable inputs used in the valuation applied to natural gas derivatives. Transfers for retirement plan assets are described further in Note 4. We determine both transfers into and out of Level 3 using values at the end of the interim period in which the transfer occurred.

The authoritative guidance related to fair value measurements and disclosures also includes a two-step process to determine if the market for a financial asset is inactive and a transaction is not distressed. Currently, this authoritative guidance does not affect us, as our derivative instruments are traded in active markets.

## **Derivative Instruments**

Fair Value Hierarchy As required by the authoritative guidance, derivative assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. The determination of the fair values incorporates various factors required under the guidance. These factors include not only the credit standing of the counterparties involved and the impact of credit enhancements (such as cash deposits, letters of credit and priority interests), but also the impact of our nonperformance risk on our liabilities. To mitigate the risk that a counterparty to a derivative instrument defaults on settlement or otherwise fails to perform under contractual terms, we have established procedures to monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties, seek guarantees or collateral back-up in the form of cash or letters of credit and, in most instances, enter into netting arrangements. See Note 4 for additional fair value disclosures.

Netting of Cash Collateral and Derivative Assets and Liabilities under Master Netting Arrangements We maintain accounts with brokers to facilitate financial derivative transactions in support of our energy marketing and risk management activities. Based on the value of our positions in these accounts and the associated margin requirements, we may be required to deposit cash into these broker accounts.

Under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging we have elected to net derivative assets and liabilities under master netting arrangements. With that election, we are also required to offset, on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position cash collateral held in our broker accounts with the associated fair value of the instruments in the accounts. See Note 5 for additional information about our cash collateral.

## Natural Gas Derivative Instruments

The fair value of natural gas derivative instruments we use to manage exposures arising from changing natural gas prices reflects the estimated amounts that we would receive or pay to terminate or close the contracts at the reporting date, taking into account the current unrealized gains or losses on open contracts. We use external market quotes and indices to value substantially all of our derivative instruments. See Note 5 for additional derivative disclosures.

Distribution Operations Nicor Gas, subject to review by the Illinois Commission, and Elizabethtown Gas, in accordance with a directive from the New Jersey BPU, enter into derivative instruments to hedge the impact of market fluctuations in natural gas prices. In accordance with the authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging, such derivative transactions are accounted for at fair value each reporting period in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. In accordance with regulatory requirements realized gains and losses related to these derivatives are reflected in natural gas costs and ultimately included in billings to customers. Thus, hedge accounting is not elected and, in accordance with accounting guidance pertaining to rate-regulated entities, unrealized changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are deferred or accrued as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Nicor Gas also enters into swap agreements to reduce the earnings volatility of certain forecasted operating costs arising from fluctuations in natural gas prices, such as the purchase of natural gas for use in its operations. These derivative instruments are carried at fair value. To the extent hedge accounting is not elected, changes in such fair values are immediately recorded in the current period as operation and maintenance expense.

Retail Operations We have designated a portion of these derivative instruments, consisting of financial swaps to manage the risk associated with forecasted natural gas purchases and sales, as cash flow hedges under the authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging. We record derivative gains or losses arising from cash flow hedges in OCI and reclassify them into earnings in the same period as the settlement of the underlying hedged item.

We currently have minimal hedge ineffectiveness defined as when the gains or losses on the hedging instrument do not offset the losses or gains on the hedged item. This cash flow hedge ineffectiveness is recorded in cost of goods sold in our Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which it occurs. We have not designated the remainder of our derivative instruments as hedges under the authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging and, accordingly, we record changes in the fair value of such instruments within cost of goods sold in our Consolidated Statements of Income in the period of change.

We enter into weather derivative contracts as economic hedges of operating margins in the event of warmer-than-normal weather in the Heating Season. We account for these contracts using the intrinsic value method under the authoritative guidance related to financial instruments. These weather derivative instruments do not qualify for accounting hedge designation and changes in value are reflected in cost of goods sold on our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Wholesale Services We purchase natural gas for storage when the difference in the current market price we pay to buy and transport natural gas plus the cost to store the natural gas is less than the market price we can receive in the future, resulting in a positive net operating margin. We use NYMEX futures contracts and other OTC derivatives to sell natural gas at that future price to substantially lock in the operating margin we will ultimately realize when the stored natural gas is sold. These futures contracts meet the definition of derivatives under the authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging and are accounted for at fair value in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, with changes in fair value recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Income in the period of change. These futures contracts are not designated as hedges as may be permitted under the guidance.

The purchase, transportation, storage and sale of natural gas are accounted for on a weighted average cost or accrual basis, as appropriate, rather than on the fair value basis we utilize for the derivatives used to mitigate the natural gas price risk associated with our storage portfolio. This difference in accounting can result in volatility in our reported earnings, even though the economic margin is essentially unchanged from the date the transactions were consummated.

Midstream Operations During the construction of the storage caverns, Golden Triangle Storage uses derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to the risk of changes in the price of natural gas that will be purchased in future periods for pad gas.

Golden Triangle Storage's derivative instruments have been used to economically hedge operational purchases and sales and do not qualify as cash flow hedges. The pad gas is considered to be a component of the storage cavern's construction costs; as a result, any derivative gains or losses arising from the cash flow hedges will remain in accumulated OCI until the pad gas is sold, which will not occur until the storage caverns are decommissioned. The fair value of these derivative instruments currently have minimal hedge ineffectiveness which is recorded in cost of goods sold in our Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which it occurs. Golden Triangle Storage began entering into these derivative transactions during 2009.

# Debt

We estimate the fair value of debt using a discounted cash flow technique that incorporates a market interest yield curve with adjustments for duration, optionality and risk profile. In determining the market interest yield curve, we consider our currently assigned ratings for unsecured debt and the secured rating for the Nicor Gas first mortgage bonds.

# Property, Plant and Equipment

A summary of our PP&E by classification as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is provided in the following table.

In millions	2011		2010	
Transmission and				
distribution	\$	7,579	\$	4,955
Cargo shipping		146		n/a
Storage		931		580
Other		747		484
Construction work in				
progress		376		247
Total gross PP&E		9,779		6,266
Less accumulated				
depreciation		1,879		1,861
Total net PP&E	\$	7,900	\$	4,405

Distribution Operations PP&E consists of property and equipment that is in use, being held for future use and under construction. We report PP&E at its original cost, which includes:

- material and labor
- contractor costs
- construction overhead costs
- an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) which represents the estimated cost of funds, from both debt and equity sources, used to finance the construction of major projects and is capitalized in rate base for ratemaking purposes when the completed projects are placed in service
- Nicor Gas' pad gas the portion considered to be non-recoverable is recorded as depreciable PP&E while the portion considered to be recoverable is recorded as non-depreciable PP&E

We recognize no gains or losses on depreciable utility property that is retired or otherwise disposed, as required under the composite depreciation method. Such gains and losses are ultimately refunded to or recovered from customers through future rate adjustments.

Retail Operations, Wholesale Services, Midstream Operations, Cargo Shipping and Other PP&E includes property that is in use and under construction, and we report it at cost. We record a gain or loss for retired or otherwise disposed-of property. Natural gas in salt-dome storage at Jefferson Island and Golden Triangle Storage that is retained as pad gas is classified as non-depreciable PP&E and is valued at cost. Central Valley has two types of pad gas in its reservoir storage facility. The first is non-depreciable PP&E, which is valued at cost, and the second is non-recoverable to which we have no contractual ownership.

## **Depreciation Expense**

We compute depreciation expense for distribution operations by applying composite, straight-line rates (approved by the state regulatory agencies) to the investment in depreciable property. More information on our rates used and the rate method is provided in the following table.

2011 2010 2009

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

2.6	%	2.5	%	2.5	%
2.5	%	2.8	%	3.4	%
2.5	%	2.4	%	3.1	%
2.4	%	2.3	%	2.1	%
3.9	%	3.7	%	3.9	%
4.1	%	n/a		n/a	
2.5	%	3.0	%	2.6	%
	2.5 2.5 2.4 3.9	2.5 % 2.5 % 2.4 % 3.9 % 4.1 %	2.5 % 2.8  2.5 % 2.4  2.4 % 2.3  3.9 % 3.7  4.1 % n/a	2.5 % 2.8 %  2.5 % 2.4 %  2.4 % 2.3 %  3.9 % 3.7 %  4.1 % n/a	2.5       %       2.8       %       3.4         2.5       %       2.4       %       3.1         2.4       %       2.3       %       2.1         3.9       %       3.7       %       3.9         4.1       %       n/a       n/a

<sup>(1)</sup> Average composite straight-line depreciation rates for depreciable property, excluding transportation equipment (2) Composite straight-line depreciation rates

We compute depreciation expense on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets.

In years	Estimated useful life
<b>.</b>	
Transportation	
equipment (1)	
Cargo	20 - 25
shipping-	
vessels	
Cargo	8 - 18
shipping-	
freight	
equipment	
and freight	
handling	
equipment	
Storage	40
caverns	
Other	up to 40
	(1)

<sup>(1)</sup> May be depreciated in excess of useful life and recovered in rates.

# **AFUDC** and Capitalized Interest

Four of our utilities are authorized by applicable state regulatory agencies or legislatures to capitalize the cost of debt and equity funds as part of the cost of construction projects in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Nicor Gas does not have authorized AFUDC rates, but rather capitalizes AFUDC at the current actual cost of debt. The capital expenditures of our two other utilities do not qualify for AFUDC treatment. More information on our authorized AFUDC rates is provided in the following table.

	2011	2010	2009
Atlanta Gas			
Light (1)	8.109	% 8.10%	8.53%
Chattanooga			
Gas (2)	7.419	% 7.41 %	7.89%
Elizabethtown			
Gas (3)	0.539	% 0.40%	0.41%
Virginia			
Natural Gas			
(4)	7.389	% 0 %	9.24%
AFUDC (in			
millions) (5)	\$ 6	\$ 3	\$ 13

- (1) New rate as of November 1, 2010.
  - (2) New rate as of June 1, 2010.
- (3) Variable rate is determined by FERC method of AFUDC accounting.
- (4) Approved only for Hampton Roads construction project which ended in 2009. Virginia Natural Gas received no AFUDC interest for 2010 or 2011.
  - (5) Expense recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Within our midstream operations segment, we have recorded capitalized interest as part of the cost of the Golden Triangle Storage and Central Valley construction projects in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, and within interest expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income, in the amounts of \$1 million in 2011, \$5 million in 2010 and \$3 million in 2009.

#### Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations. The fair values assigned to the trade name and customer relationship intangible assets at Nicor's unregulated operations were determined using a combination of the cost savings, the multi-period excess earnings and the relief-from-royalty approaches.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, we evaluate our goodwill balances for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. These indicators include, but are not limited to, a significant change in operating performance, the business climate, legal or regulatory factors, or a planned sale or disposition of a significant portion of the business. We test goodwill impairment utilizing a fair value approach at a reporting-unit level which generally equates to our operating segments as discussed in Note 13. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. See Note 3 for a rollforward of total goodwill by operating segment.

Our goodwill impairment analysis for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was performed during the fourth quarter of each year and indicated that the fair value of each reporting unit is substantially in excess of carrying value, and the reporting units are not at risk of failing Step 1 of the impairment evaluation. As a result, we did not recognize any goodwill impairment charges.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, we amortize intangible assets over their useful lives. These assets are reviewed for impairment when indicators arise, at which time we assess the recoverability of such assets by determining whether the carrying value will be recovered through expected future cash flows. In the event the sum of the expected future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, an impairment loss equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its fair value is recorded. No impairment has been recognized. We currently have no material indefinite lived intangible assets.

## Taxes

The reporting of our assets and liabilities for financial accounting purposes differs from the reporting for income tax purposes. The principal differences between net income and taxable income relate to the timing of deductions, primarily due to the benefits of tax depreciation since we generally depreciate assets for tax purposes over a shorter period of time than for book purposes. The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items. We report the tax effects of depreciation and other differences in those items as deferred income tax assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position in accordance with authoritative guidance related to income taxes.

Income Taxes We have two categories of income taxes in our Consolidated Statements of Income: current and deferred. Current income tax expense consists of federal and state income tax less applicable tax credits related to the current year. Deferred income tax expense generally is equal to the changes in the deferred income tax liability and regulatory tax liability during the year.

Investment and Other Tax Credits Deferred investment tax credits associated with distribution operations are included as a regulatory liability in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. These investment tax credits are being amortized over the estimated life of the related properties as credits to income in accordance with regulatory requirements.

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities As noted above, we report some of our assets and liabilities differently for financial accounting purposes than we do for income tax purposes. We report the tax effects of the differences in those items as deferred income tax assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. We measure these deferred income tax assets and liabilities using enacted income tax rates.

Regulatory Income Tax Liability For our regulated utilities we also measure deferred income tax assets and liabilities using enacted income tax rates. Thus, when the statutory income tax rate declines before a temporary difference has fully reversed, the deferred income tax liability must be reduced to reflect the newly enacted income tax rates. In accordance with authoritative guidance related to rate-regulated entities, the amount of such a reduction is transferred to our regulatory income tax liability, which we are amortizing over the lives of the related properties as the temporary difference reverses or approximately 30 years.

A deferred income tax liability is not recorded on undistributed foreign earnings that are expected to be indefinitely reinvested offshore. We consider, among other factors, actual cash investments offshore as well as projected cash requirements in making this determination. Changes in our investment or repatriation plans or circumstances could result in a different deferred income tax liability.

Tax Benefits The authoritative guidance related to income taxes requires us to determine whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on our tax return should be recorded in our consolidated financial statements. Under this guidance, we may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. This guidance also addresses derecognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim periods.

Uncertain Tax Positions We recognize accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions in interest expense and penalties in operating expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. As of December 31, 2011, we did not have a liability recorded for payment of interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

Tax Collections We do not collect income taxes from our customers on behalf of governmental authorities. We collect and remit various taxes on behalf of various governmental authorities. We record these amounts in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. In other instances, we are allowed to recover from customers other taxes that are imposed upon us. We record such taxes as operating expense and record the corresponding customer charges as revenue. These taxes were immaterial for all periods presented.

#### Revenues

Distribution operations We record revenues when services are provided to customers. Those revenues are based on rates approved by the state regulatory commissions of our utilities.

As required by the Georgia Commission, in July 1998, Atlanta Gas Light began billing Marketers in equal monthly installments for each residential, commercial and industrial customer's distribution costs. As required by the Georgia Commission, effective February 1, 2001, Atlanta Gas Light implemented a seasonal rate design for the calculation of each residential customer's annual straight-fixed-variable (SFV) capacity charge, which is billed to Marketers and reflects the historic volumetric usage pattern for the entire residential class. Generally, this change results in

residential customers being billed by Marketers for a higher capacity charge in the winter months and a lower charge in the summer months. This requirement has an operating cash flow impact but does not change revenue recognition. As a result, Atlanta Gas Light continues to recognize its residential SFV capacity revenues for financial reporting purposes in equal monthly installments.

All of our utilities, with the exception of Atlanta Gas Light, have rate structures include volumetric rate designs that allow recovery of costs through gas usage. Revenues from sales and transportation services are recognized in the same period in which the related volumes are delivered to customers. Revenues from residential and certain commercial and industrial customers are recognized on the basis of scheduled meter readings. Additionally, revenues are recorded for estimated deliveries of gas not yet billed to these customers, from the last bill date to the end of the accounting period. These are included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as unbilled revenue. For other commercial and industrial customers and all wholesale customers, revenues are based on actual deliveries to the end of the period.

The tariffs for Virginia Natural Gas, Elizabethtown Gas and Chattanooga Gas contain WNA's that partially mitigate the impact of unusually cold or warm weather on customer billings and operating margin. The WNA's purpose is to reduce the effect of weather on customer bills by reducing bills when winter weather is colder than normal and increasing bills when weather is warmer than normal. In addition, the tariffs for Chattanooga Gas and Elkton Gas contain revenue normalization mechanisms that mitigate the impact of conservation and declining customer usage.

Retail operations Revenues from sales and transportation services are recognized in the same period in which the related volumes are delivered to customers. Sales revenues from residential and certain commercial and industrial customers are recognized on the basis of scheduled meter readings. In addition, revenues are recorded for estimated deliveries of gas not yet billed to these customers, from the most recent meter reading date to the end of the accounting period. These are included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as unbilled revenue. For other commercial and industrial customers and all wholesale customers, revenues are based on actual deliveries during the period.

We recognize revenue on 12-month utility-bill management contracts as the lesser of cumulative earned or cumulative billed amounts. We recognize revenue for warranty and repair contracts on a straight-line basis over the contract term. Revenue for maintenance services is recognized at the time such services are performed.

Wholesale services We record wholesale services' revenues when services are provided to customers. Profits from sales between segments are eliminated in the other segment and are recognized as goods or services sold to end-use customers. Transactions that qualify as derivatives under authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings in the period of change and characterized as unrealized gains or losses. Gains and losses on derivatives held for energy trading purposes are required to be presented net in revenue.

Midstream operations We record operating revenues at Jefferson Island and Golden Triangle Storage in the period in which actual volumes are transported and storage services are provided. The majority of our storage services are covered under medium to long-term contracts at fixed market-based rates. We recognize our park and loan revenues ratably over the life of the contract.

Cargo shipping Revenues and related delivery costs are recognized at the time vessels depart from port. Insurance premiums are recognized when the vessel carrying the insured cargo reaches its port of destination and the insured cargo is released to the consignee. The portion of premiums not earned at the end of the year is recorded as unearned premiums.

## Cost of goods sold

Excluding Atlanta Gas Light, we charge our utility customers for natural gas consumed using natural gas cost recovery mechanisms set by the state regulatory agencies. Under these mechanisms, all prudently incurred natural gas costs are passed through to customers without markup, subject to regulatory review. Therefore, in accordance with the authoritative guidance for rate-regulated entities, we defer or accrue (that is, include as an asset or liability in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and exclude from or include in the Statements of Consolidated Income, respectively) the difference between the actual cost of goods sold incurred and the amount of commodity revenue earned in a given period, such that no operating margin is recognized related to these costs. The deferred or accrued amount is either billed or refunded to our customers prospectively through adjustments to the commodity rate. Deferred natural gas costs are reflected as regulatory assets identified as recoverable natural gas costs, and accrued natural gas costs are reflected as regulatory liabilities which are identified as accrued natural gas costs within our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. For more information, see "Regulatory Assets and Liabilities" in Note 2.

Our retail operations customers are charged for natural gas consumed. We also include within our cost of goods sold costs of fuel and lost and unaccounted for gas, adjustments to reduce the value of our inventories to market value and for gains and losses associated with certain derivatives.

## Repair and maintenance expense

We record expense for repair and maintenance costs as incurred. This includes expenses for planned major maintenance, such as dry-docking the vessels owned by our cargo shipping business.

## Operating leases

We have certain operating leases with provisions for step rent or escalation payments and certain lease concessions. We account for these leases by recognizing the future minimum lease payments on a straight-line basis over the respective minimum lease terms, in accordance with authoritative guidance related to leases. This accounting treatment does not affect the future annual operating lease cash obligations. For more information, see "Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies" in Note 11.

#### Earnings Per Common Share

We compute basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders by dividing our income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. by the daily weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders reflect the potential reduction in earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders that could occur when potentially dilutive common shares are added to common shares outstanding. The increase in weighted average shares is due to the issuance of 38.2 million shares in connection with the Nicor merger on December 9, 2011. The effect of the additional shares was reduced as the shares were only outstanding for 22 days. We had 117.0 million shares outstanding as of December 31, 2011.

We derive our potentially dilutive common shares by calculating the number of shares issuable under restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options. The vesting of shares of the restricted stock and restricted stock units depends on the satisfaction of certain performance criteria. The future issuance of shares underlying the outstanding stock options depends on whether the exercise prices of the stock options are less than the average market price of the common shares for the respective periods. The following table shows the calculation of our diluted shares attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders for the periods presented, if performance units currently earned under the plan ultimately vest and if stock options currently exercisable at prices below the average market prices are exercised:

In millions (except per share amounts)	2011	2010	2009
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	\$172	\$234	\$222
Denominator:			
Basic weighted-average number of shares outstanding (1)	80.4	77.4	76.8
Effect of dilutive securities	0.5	0.4	0.3
Diluted weighted-average number of shares outstanding	80.9	77.8	77.1
Basic and diluted earnings per share			
Basic	\$2.14	\$3.02	\$2.89
Diluted	\$2.12	\$3.00	\$2.88

<sup>(1)</sup> Daily weighted average shares outstanding.

The following table contains the weighted average shares attributable to outstanding stock options that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. because their effect would have been anti-dilutive, as the exercise prices were greater than the average market price:

	Decem		
In millions	2011	2010	2009
Twelve months			
ended	0.0	0.8	2.0

The decrease in the number of shares that were excluded from the computation for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is the result of an increase in the average market value of our common shares for the years ended December 31, 2011 compared to 2010 and 2009.

#### Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

We account for the financial effects of regulation in accordance with authoritative guidance related to regulated entities whose rates are designed to recover the costs of providing service. In accordance with this guidance, incurred

costs and estimated future expenditures that would otherwise be charged to expense in the current period are capitalized as regulatory assets when it is probable that such costs or expenditures will be recovered in rates in the future. Similarly, we recognize regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through future rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures that have not yet been incurred. Generally, regulatory assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the period authorized by the regulatory commissions. Our regulatory assets and liabilities and associated assets and liabilities as of December 31, are summarized in the following table.

In millions	2011	2010
Regulatory assets - current		
Recoverable regulatory infrastructure program		
costs	\$ 48	\$ 48
Recoverable ERC	7	7
Recoverable seasonal rates	10	11
Recoverable retirement benefit costs	29	0
Other	37	26
Total regulatory assets - current	131	92
Regulatory assets - long-term		
Recoverable regulatory infrastructure		
program costs	305	244
Recoverable retirement benefit costs	262	9
Recoverable ERC	351	164
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt	21	11
Other	140	25
Total regulatory assets - long-term	1,079	453
Total regulatory assets	\$ 1,210	\$ 545
Regulatory liabilities - current		
Accumulated removal costs	\$ 14	\$ 0
Accrued natural gas costs	53	23
Bad debt rider	30	0
Other	15	8
Total regulatory liabilities - current	112	31
Regulatory liabilities - long-term		
Accumulated removal costs	1,321	182
Regulatory income tax liability	27	15
Bad debt rider	14	0
Unamortized investment tax credit	32	12
Other	11	16
Total regulatory liabilities - long-term	1,405	225
Total regulatory liabilities	\$ 1,517	\$ 256
Other Total regulatory liabilities - long-term	\$ 11 1,405	\$ 16 225

The increase of \$665 million in regulatory assets includes \$545 million related to the addition of Nicor Gas' regulatory assets and the increase of \$1,261 million in regulatory liabilities includes \$1,330 million related to the addition of Nicor Gas' regulatory liabilities.

Our regulatory assets are probable or recovery specifically authorized by a state regulatory commission. Base rates are designed to provide both a recovery of cost and a return on investment during the period rates are in effect. As such, all of our regulatory assets recoverable through base rates are subject to review by the respective state regulatory commission during future rate proceedings. We are not aware of any evidence that these costs will not be recoverable through either rate riders or base rates, and we believe that we will be able to recover such costs, consistent with our historical recoveries. In the event that the provisions of authoritative guidance related to regulated operations were no longer applicable, we would recognize a write-off of regulatory assets that would result in a charge to net income, and be classified as an extraordinary item.

Additionally, while some regulatory liabilities would be written-off, others would continue to be recorded as liabilities but not as regulatory liabilities. Although the natural gas distribution industry is competing with alternative fuels,

primarily electricity, our utility operations continue to recover their costs through cost-based rates established by the state regulatory commissions. As a result, we believe that the accounting prescribed under the guidance remains appropriate. It is also our opinion that all regulatory assets are recoverable in future rate proceedings, and therefore we have not recorded any regulatory assets that are recoverable but are not yet included in base rates or contemplated in a rate rider. The regulatory liabilities that do not represent revenue collected from customers for expenditures that have not yet been incurred are refunded to ratepayers through a rate rider or base rates. If the regulatory liability is included in base rates, the amount is reflected as a reduction to the rate base in setting rates.

The majority of our regulatory assets listed in the preceding table are included in base rates except for the recoverable regulatory infrastructure program costs, recoverable ERC, the bad debt rider and accrued natural gas costs, which are recovered through specific rate riders on a dollar-for-dollar basis. The rate riders that authorize the recovery of regulatory infrastructure program costs and natural gas costs include both a recovery of cost and a return on investment during the recovery period. Nicor Gas' rate riders for environmental costs and energy efficiency costs also provide a return on investment during the period of recovery. However, there is no interest associated with the under or over collections of bad debt expense.

The Illinois Commission presently does not allow Nicor Gas the opportunity to earn a return on its recoverable retirement benefit costs. Such cost are expected to be recovered over a period of 9 to 11 years. The regulatory assets related to debt are also not included in rate base, but the costs are recovered over the term of the debt through the authorized rate of return component of base rates.

Environmental Remediation Costs Our ERC liabilities are estimates of future remediation costs for investigation and clean up of our former operating sites that are contaminated. Our estimates are based on probabilistic models of potential costs, on an undiscounted basis. As cleanup options and plans mature and cleanup contracts are entered into, we are able to provide conventional engineering estimates of the likely costs of remediation at our former sites. These estimates contain various engineering uncertainties, but we continuously attempt to refine and update them. These liabilities do not include other potential expenses, such as unasserted property damage claims, personal injury or natural resource damage claims, unbudgeted legal expenses or other costs for which we may be held liable but for which we cannot reasonably estimate an amount. However, we have not yet performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites in Illinois, which will be completed in 2012.

Our paid and accrued ERCs are deferred in a corresponding regulatory asset until the costs are recovered from customers. We primarily recover these deferred costs through three rate riders that authorize dollar-for-dollar recovery. The ERC rate rider for Atlanta Gas Light only allows for recovery of the costs incurred over the subsequent five-year period. ERC associated with the investigation and remediation of Nicor Gas and Elizabethtown Gas remediation sites located in the states of Illinois and New Jersey are recovered under remediation adjustment clauses that include carrying cost on unrecovered expenditures. For more information on our ERC liabilities, see Note 11.

Bad Debt Rider Nicor Gas' bad debt rider provides for the recovery from (or refund to) customers of the difference between Nicor Gas' actual bad debt experience on an annual basis and the benchmark bad debt expense included in its rates for the respective year. The benchmark, against which 2011 actual bad debt experience is compared, is approximately \$63 million. Nicor Gas' actual 2011 bad debt expense was \$31 million, resulting in a refund to customers of \$32 million which will be refunded between June 2012 and May 2013. The prior year's bad debt rider is recorded within operating expenses on our Consolidated Statements of Income and the over, or under, recovery is recorded as a regulatory asset or liability on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Other Regulatory Assets and Liabilities Our recoverable retirement benefit plan costs are recoverable through base rates over the next 2 to 21 years based on the remaining recovery period as designated by the applicable state regulatory commissions. Recoverable seasonal rates reflect the difference between the recognition of a portion of Atlanta Gas Light's residential base rates revenues on a straight-line basis as compared to the collection of the revenues over a seasonal pattern. These amounts are fully recoverable through base rates within one year.

Accumulated Removal Costs In accordance with regulatory treatment, our depreciation rates are comprised of two cost components – historical cost, net of estimated salvage, and the estimated cost of removal, or retirement, of certain regulated properties. We collect these costs in base rates through straight-line depreciation expense, with a corresponding credit to accumulated depreciation. Because the accumulated estimated removal costs meet the requirements of authoritative guidance related to regulated operations, we have accounted for them as a regulatory liability and have reclassified them from accumulated depreciation to accumulated removal costs in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. In the rate setting process, the liability for these accumulated removal costs are treated as a reduction to the net rate base upon which our regulated utilities have the opportunity to earn their allowed rate of return. Our accumulated removal costs increased \$1.1 billion from December 31, 2010, principally related to Nicor Gas.

Regulatory Infrastructure Programs By order of the Georgia Commission (through a joint stipulation and a subsequent settlement agreement between Atlanta Gas Light and the Georgia Commission), Atlanta Gas Light began a pipeline replacement program to replace all bare steel and cast iron pipe in its system by December 2013. If Atlanta Gas Light does not perform in accordance with this order, it will be assessed certain nonperformance penalties. As of 2011, we have completed the replacement of all our cast iron pipes, and the remaining replacements are on schedule.

The order provides for recovery of all prudent costs incurred in the performance of the program, which Atlanta Gas Light has recorded as a regulatory asset. Atlanta Gas Light will recover from end-use customers, through billings to

Marketers, the costs related to the program net of any cost savings from the program. All such amounts will be recovered through a combination of straight-fixed-variable rates and a pipeline replacement revenue rider. The regulatory asset has two components:

- the costs incurred to date that have not yet been recovered through the rate rider
  - the future expected costs to be recovered through the rate rider

Atlanta Gas Light has recorded a noncurrent regulatory asset of \$48 million, which represents the expected future collection of both expenditures already incurred and expected future capital expenditures to be incurred through the remainder of the program. Atlanta Gas Light has also recorded a non-current asset of \$305 million, which represents the expected amount to be collected from customers over the next 12 months. The amounts recovered from the pipeline replacement revenue rider during the last three years were:

- \$48 million in 2011
- \$45 million in 2010
- \$41 million in 2009

As of December 31, 2011, Atlanta Gas Light had recorded a current liability of \$131 million representing expected program expenditures for the next 12 months and a noncurrent liability of \$145 million, representing expected program expenditures through the end of the program in 2013.

Atlanta Gas Light capitalizes and depreciates the capital expenditure costs incurred from the pipeline replacement program over the life of the assets. Operation and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Recoveries, which are recorded as revenue, are based on a formula that allows Atlanta Gas Light to recover operation and maintenance costs in excess of those included in its current base rates, depreciation expense and an allowed rate of return on capital expenditures. In the near term, the primary financial impact to Atlanta Gas Light from the pipeline replacement program is reduced cash flow from operating and investing activities, as the timing related to cost recovery does not match the timing of when costs are incurred. However, Atlanta Gas Light is allowed the recovery of carrying costs on the under-recovered balance resulting from the timing difference.

The Georgia Commission has also approved Atlanta Gas Light's STRIDE program, which is comprised of the ongoing pipeline replacement program, the new Integrated System Reinforcement Program (i-SRP) and the new Integrated Customer Growth Program (i-CGP). The purpose of the i-SRP is to upgrade Atlanta Gas Light's distribution system and liquefied natural gas facilities in Georgia, improve its system reliability and operational flexibility, and create a platform to meet long-term forecasted growth. Atlanta Gas Light will be required to file an updated ten-year forecast of infrastructure requirements under the i-SRP along with a new three-year construction plan every three years for review and approval by the Georgia Commission.

Under i-CGP, the Georgia Commission authorized Atlanta Gas Light to extend its pipeline facilities to serve customers without pipeline access and create new economic development opportunities in Georgia. The i-CGP was approved as a three-year pilot program under STRIDE, and all related costs will be recovered through a surcharge.

In 2009, the New Jersey BPU approved an enhanced infrastructure program for Elizabethtown Gas, which was created in response to the New Jersey Governor's request for utilities to assist in the economic recovery by increasing infrastructure investments. In May 2011, the New Jersey BPU approved Elizabethtown Gas' request to spend an additional \$40 million under this program before the end of 2012. Costs associated with the investment in this program are recovered through periodic adjustments to base rates. We expect to file for an extension of the program in 2012.

#### Accounting for Retirement Benefit Plans

The authoritative guidance related to retirement benefits requires that we recognize all obligations related to defined benefit retirement plans and quantify the plans' funded status as an asset or a liability on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. The guidance further requires that we measure the plans' assets and obligations that determine our funded status as of the end of the fiscal year. We are also required to recognize as a component of OCI the changes in funded status that occurred during the year that are not yet recognized as part of net periodic benefit cost as explained in authoritative guidance related to retirement benefits. Because substantially all of its retirement costs are

recoverable through base rates, Nicor Gas generally defers any charge or credit to a regulatory asset or liability until the period in which the costs are included in base rates, in accordance with the authoritative guidance for rate-regulated entities. The assets of our retirement plans were accounted for at fair value and are classified in the fair value hierarchy in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

## Non-Wholly Owned Entities

We hold ownership interests in a number of business ventures with varying ownership structures. We evaluate all of our partnership interests and other variable interests to determine if each entity is a variable interest entity (VIE), as defined in the authoritative accounting guidance. If a venture is a VIE for which we are the primary beneficiary, we consolidate the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the entity. We reassess our conclusion as to whether an entity is a VIE upon certain occurrences which are deemed reconsideration events under the guidance. For entities that are not determined to be VIEs, we evaluate whether we have control or significant influence over the joint venture to determine the appropriate consolidation and presentation. Generally, entities under our control are consolidated, and entities over which we can exert significant influence, but do not control, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

We have concluded that the only venture that we are required to consolidate as a VIE, as we are the primary beneficiary, is SouthStar. We recognize on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, Piedmont's share of the non-wholly owned entity as a separate component of equity entitled "noncontrolling interest." Piedmont's share of current operations is reflected in "net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest" on our Consolidated Statements of Income. The authoritative guidance has no effect on our calculation of basic or diluted earnings per common share amounts, which are based upon net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. For additional information, see Note 10.

We also invest in partnerships and limited liability companies that are accounted for under the equity method, but are not joint ventures. In accordance with the authoritative guidance, all such investments are required to use the equity method unless our interest is so minor that there is virtually no influence over operating and financial policies.

Investments accounted for under the equity method are included in long-term investments on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, and the equity income is recorded in equity investment income on our Consolidated Statements of Income and was immaterial for all periods presented. For additional information, see Note 10.

#### Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the related disclosures. We based our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, and we evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis. Our estimates may involve complex situations requiring a high degree of judgment either in the application and interpretation of existing literature or in the development of estimates that impact our financial statements. The most significant estimates relate to our pipeline replacement program accruals, environmental liability accruals, uncollectible accounts and other allowance for contingent losses, goodwill and intangible assets, retirement plan obligations, derivative and hedging activities and provisions for income taxes. Our actual results could differ from our estimates.

## Note 3 – Merger with Nicor

On December 9, 2011, we completed our merger with Nicor. In accordance with the Merger Agreement, each share of Nicor common stock outstanding at the Effective Date, other than shares cancelled and Dissenting Shares, as defined in the Merger Agreement, was converted into purchase consideration of (i) 0.8382 of a share of AGL Resources common stock and (ii) \$21.20 in cash. Fractional shares were not issued in connection with the merger as Nicor shareholders who would have been entitled to receive a fraction of a share of AGL Resources common stock received cash settlements. Additionally, cash was paid to repurchase stock options and restricted stock units that were awarded for pre-merger services. Nicor's previous shareholders own approximately 33% of the combined company. The value of the consideration paid to Nicor shareholders was calculated as follows:

In millions, except per share price	
Nicor shares outstanding at the Effective Date	45.5
Exchange ratio	0.8382
Number of shares of AGL Resources common stock issued	38.2
Volume-weighted average price of AGL Resources common stock on December 8, 2011	\$39.90
Cost of equity issued	\$1,523
Nicor shares outstanding at the Effective Date	45.5
Cash payment per share of Nicor common stock	\$21.20
Cash paid for Nicor common shares outstanding	\$966
Cash paid to repurchase outstanding equity awards	\$14
Cost of debt issued	\$980
Total purchase consideration	\$2,503

The preliminary allocation of the total consideration transferred in the merger to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed includes adjustments for the fair value of Nicor's assets and liabilities, and was performed by a third-party independent valuation specialist. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price is presented in the following table.

In millions		
Current assets	\$ 932	
Property,		
plant and		
equipment	3,202	
Goodwill	1,395	
	791	

Other	
noncurrent	
assets,	
excluding	
goodwill	
Current	
liabilities	(1,170)
Long-term	
debt	(599
Other	
noncurrent	
liabilities	(2,048)

consideration \$ 2,503

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were determined based on the accounting guidance for fair value measurements under GAAP, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The estimated fair value measurements assume the highest and best use of the assets by market participants, considering the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible at the measurement date. Modifications to the purchase price allocation may occur as a result of continuing review of the assumptions and estimates underlying the preliminary fair value adjustments of environmental site remediation and other adjustments.

79

Total purchase

The excess of the purchase price paid over the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recognized as goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes. A preliminary rollforward of total goodwill recognized by segment in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position is as follows:

	Distribution	Retail	Wholesale	Midstream	Cargo		
In millions	Operations	Operations	Services	Operations	Shipping	Other	Consolidated
As of December							
31, 2010	\$404	\$0	\$0	\$14	\$0	\$0	\$ 418
Merger with							
Nicor	1,182	124	2	2	77	8	1,395
As of December							
31, 2011	\$1,586	\$124	\$2	\$16	\$77	\$8	\$ 1,813

The preliminary valuation of the additional intangible assets recorded as result of the merger is as follows:

In millions Trade names:	iminary luation	Weighted-average amortization period
<b>Retail Operations</b>	\$ 33	15 years
Cargo Shipping	15	15 years
Customer relationships:		
<b>Retail Operations</b>	52	10 years
Cargo Shipping	3	18 years
Total	\$ 103	

The fair value measurements of intangible assets were primarily based on significant unobservable inputs and thus represent level 3 measurements as defined in accounting guidance for fair value measurements.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the acquired receivables recorded in connection with the merger:

In millions		
Nicor		
accounts		
receivable at		
December 9,		
2011	\$ 4	400
Cash flows		
not expected		
to be		
collected	,	24
Fair value of		
acquired		
receivables	\$ .	376

In connection with the merger, AGL Resources recorded merger transaction costs of approximately \$68 million (\$55 million net of tax) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$6 million (\$4 million net of tax) for the same period in 2010. These costs were expensed as incurred and separately stated in our Consolidated Statements of Income. The merger transaction costs recognized for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 includes \$34 million (\$31 million net of tax) of change in control and other benefit payments.

The amounts of revenue and earnings of Nicor included in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the period subsequent to the December 9, 2011 closing date are as follows:

	De	ecembe	er
In millions,	10	), 2011	-
except per share	De	ecembe	r
amounts	3	1, 2011	
Total revenues	\$	209	
Net income (1)	\$	(24	)
Basic earnings			
per common			
share	\$	(0.30)	)
Diluted earnings			
per common			
share	\$	(0.30)	)
		(1) I	nc

Pro forma financial information The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects our consolidated results of operations as if the merger with Nicor had taken place on January 1, 2010. The unaudited pro forma information has been calculated after conforming our accounting policies and adjusting Nicor's results to reflect the depreciation and amortization that would have been charged assuming fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment, debt and intangible assets had been applied on January 1, 2010, together with the consequential tax effects.

AGL Resources and Nicor together incurred approximately \$86 million of costs directly related to the merger in the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and \$10 million for the same period in 2010. These expenses are excluded from the pro forma earnings presented below.

The unaudited pro forma financial information has been presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of results of operations that would have been achieved had the pro forma events taken place on the dates indicated, or the future consolidated results of operations of the combined company.

	12 months ended					
	December 31					
In millions, except						
per share amounts	20	)11		2010		
Total revenues	\$	4,715	\$	5,083		
Net income						
attributable to						
parent	\$	313	\$	343		
Basic earnings per						
common share	\$	2.69	\$	2.97		
Diluted earnings per						
common share	\$	2.68	\$	2.96		

Note 4 – Fair Value Measurements

#### **Derivative Instruments**

The following table summarizes, by level within the fair value hierarchy, our derivative assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

In millions	December 31, 2011		December 3	1, 2010
Natural gas derivatives	Assets (1)	Liabilities	Assets (1)	Liabilities
Quoted prices in active markets (Level 1)	\$38	\$(145	) \$22	\$(71)
Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	229	(68	) 153	(29)
Netting of cash collateral	32	115	53	52
Total carrying value (2) (3)	\$299	\$(98	) \$228	\$(48)
Interest rate derivatives				
Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	\$13	\$(13	) \$0	\$0

- (1) \$3 million of premium at December 31, 2011 and less than \$1 million at December 31, 2010 associated with weather derivatives have been excluded as they are accounted for based on intrinsic value.
  - (2) There were no material unobservable inputs (level 3) for any of the periods presented.
  - (3) There were no material transfers between Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 for any of the periods presented.

## Money Market Funds

At December 31, 2011, we held \$59 million in money market funds which are recorded at fair value and classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

## Retirement benefit plans

The target asset allocation of the Nicor Companies Pension and Retirement Plan (Nicor Gas Retirement Plan) is approximately 60% equity and 40% fixed income. The AGL Resources Inc. Retirement Plan (AGL Retirement Plan), the Employees' Retirement Plan of NUI Corporation (NUI Retirement Plan), the Health and Welfare Plan for Retirees and Inactive Employees of AGL Resources Inc. (AGL Postretirement Plan) target asset allocations are approximately 80% equity and 20% fixed income. The plans investments policy provides for some variation in these targets. The actual asset allocations of our retirement plans are presented in the following table by Level within the fair value hierarchy.

	December 31, 2011											
		P	ension pla	ans (1)				Oth	er retire	ment plans		
	Leve	l Level	l Leve	el	% of		Leve	l Leve	l Lev	el	%	of
In millions	1	2	3	Total	total		1	2	3	Total	tot	al
Cash	\$13	\$0	\$0	\$13	2	%	\$1	\$0	\$0	\$1	2	%
<b>Equity Securities</b>												
U.S. large cap (2)	95	134	0	229	30	%	0	34	0	34	56	%
U.S. small cap (2)	53	25	0	78	10	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
International												
companies (3)	0	107	0	107	14	%	0	10	0	10	16	%
Emerging markets												
(4)	0	25	0	25	3	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Fixed income												
securities												
Corporate bonds (5)	0	191	0	191	25	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Other (or gov't/muni	ĺ											
bonds)	0	28	0	28	4	%	0	16	0	16	26	%
Other types of												
investments												
Global hedged												
equity (6)	0	0	30	30	4	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Absolute return (7)	0	0	34	34	5	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Private capital (8)	0	0	25	25	3	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Total assets at fair												
value	\$161	\$510	\$89	\$760	100	%	\$1	\$60	\$0	\$61	10	) %
% of fair value												
hierarchy	21	% 67	% 12	% 100	%		2	% 98	% 0	% 100	%	

				I	Decemb	er 3	31, 2010					
		Pension plans (1)					Other retirement plans					
	Level	Level	Level		% of	•	Level	Level	Level		% o	f
In millions	1	2	3	Total	total		1	2	3	Total	total	1
Cash	\$7	\$0	\$0	\$7	2	%	\$1	\$0	\$0	\$1	1	%
<b>Equity Securities</b>												
U.S. large cap (2)	91	0	0	91	26	%	0	36	0	36	57	%
U.S. small cap (2)	51	0	0	51	15	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
International												
companies (3)	0	43	0	43	12	%	0	12	0	12	19	%
Emerging markets												
(4)	0	16	0	16	4	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Fixed income												
securities												
Corporate bonds (5)	0	56	0	56	16	%	0	15	0	15	23	%
Other types of												
investments												
Global hedged												
equity (6)	0	0	35	35	10	%	0	0	0	0	0	%
Absolute return (7)	0	0	30	30	9	%	0	0	0	0	0	%

Private capital (8)	0	0	22	22	6	<b>%</b> 0	0	0	0	0	%
Total assets at fair											
value	\$149	\$115	\$87	\$351	100	% \$1	\$63	\$0	\$64	100	%
% of fair value											
hierarchy	42	% 33	% 25	% 100	%	1	% 99	% O	% 100 %		

- (1) Includes \$6 million at December 31, 2011 and \$7 million at December 31, 2010 of medical benefit (health and welfare) component for 401h accounts to fund a portion of the other retirement benefits.
  - (2) Includes funds that invest primarily in United States common stocks.
  - (3) Includes funds that invest primarily in foreign equity and equity-related securities.
    - (4) Includes funds that invest primarily in common stocks of emerging markets.
  - (5) Includes funds that invest primarily in investment grade debt and fixed income securities.
- (6) Includes funds that invest in limited / general partnerships, managed accounts, and other investment entities issued by non-traditional firms or "hedge funds."
  - (7) Includes funds that invest primarily in investment vehicles and commodity pools as a "fund of funds."
- (8) Includes funds that invest in private equity and small buyout funds, partnership investments, direct investments, secondary investments, directly / indirectly in real estate and may invest in equity securities of real estate related companies, real estate mortgage loans, and real-estate mezzanine loans.

The following is a reconciliation of our retirement plan assets in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs – Level 3

	December 31, 2011							
	Global hedged	Absolute	Private					
In millions	equity	return	capital	Total				
Assets:								
Beginning balance	\$35	\$30	\$22	\$87				
Gains included in changes in net assets	(1	) 1	5	5				
Purchases	2	3	1	6				
Sales	(6	) 0	(3	) (9	)			
Ending balance	\$30	\$34	\$25	\$89				

December	31	2010
December	$\mathcal{I}_{\mathbf{I}}$	2010

In millions	Global hedged equity	Absolute return	Private capital	Equity securitie internatio compani	es – onal	
Assets:						
Beginning balance	\$33	\$26	\$13	\$ 5	\$77	
Transfers out of Level 3 (1)	0	0	0	(4	) (4	)
Gains included in changes in net assets	2	2	2	0	6	
Purchases	0	14	8	0	22	
Issuances	0	0	0	0	0	
Sales	0	(12	) (1	) (1	) (14	)
Settlements	0	0	0	0	0	
Ending balance	\$35	\$30	\$22	\$ 0	\$87	

- (1) Transferred to Level 2 as a result of change in investment vehicle and pricing inputs becoming directly observable. Transfers out of Level 3 are determined using values at the end of the period in which the transfer occurs.
- (2) There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for any of the periods presented.

#### Debt

Our long-term debt is recorded at amortized cost, with the exception of Nicor Gas' first mortgage bonds, which are recorded at acquisition date fair value. We estimate the fair value of our debt using a discounted cash flow technique that incorporates a market interest yield curve with adjustments for duration, optionality and risk profile. The following table presents the amortized cost and fair value of our long-term debt for the following periods.

	As of December				
	31,				
In millions	2011	2010			
Long-term debt					
amortized cost					
(1)	\$ 3,576	\$ 1,971			
Long-term debt					
fair value (1)	\$ 3,938	\$ 2,122			

(1) December 31, 2011 includes the debt assumed in the Nicor merger with a carrying value of \$500 million, as well as \$15 million of medium-term notes that are due in June 2012. December 31, 2010 includes \$300 million of senior notes repaid in January 2011.

Note 5 – Derivative Instruments

#### **Derivative Instruments**

Our risk management activities are monitored by our Risk Management Committee, which consists of members of senior management and is charged with reviewing and enforcing our risk management activities and policies. Our use of derivative instruments, including physical transactions, is limited to predefined risk tolerances associated with pre-existing or anticipated physical natural gas sales and purchases and system use and storage. We use the following types of derivative instruments and energy-related contracts to manage natural gas price, interest rate, weather, automobile fuel price and foreign currency risks:

- forward contracts
- futures contracts
- options contracts
- financial swaps
- treasury locks
- weather derivative contracts
- storage and transportation capacity transactions
  - foreign currency forward contracts

Certain of our derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related or other contingent features that could increase the payments for collateral we post in the normal course of business when our financial instruments are in net liability positions. As of December 31, 2011 for agreements with such features, derivative instruments with liability fair values totaled approximately \$110 million for which we had posted no collateral to our counterparties. In addition, our energy marketing receivables and payables, which also have credit-risk-related or other contingent features, are discussed in Note 2. Our derivative instrument activities are included within operating cash flows as an adjustment to net income of \$(24) million in 2011, \$(2) million in 2010 and \$11 million in 2009.

On May 4, 2011, we entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of \$250 million to effectively convert a portion of our fixed-rate interest obligation on the \$300 million 6.40% senior notes due July 15, 2016 to a

variable-rate obligation. We pay a floating interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR plus 3.9%. We designated these interest rate swaps as fair value hedges. We also held forward-starting interest rate swaps with a notional amount totaling \$90 million at December 31, 2011, that were redesignated as cash flow hedges upon the close of the merger. Under the terms of the swaps, we agree to pay a fixed swap rate and receive a floating rate based on a variable three-month LIBOR rate. We designated these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges. The fair values of our interest rate swaps were reflected as a long-term derivative asset of \$13 million and a short-term liability of \$13 million at December 31, 2011. For more information on our debt, see Note 8.

The table below summarizes the various ways in which we account for our derivative instruments and the impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements:

Accounting	Recognition as	nd Measurement
Treatment	Statement of Financial Position	Income Statement
Cash flow hedge	Derivative carried at fair value	Ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the
		derivative instrument is recognized in earnings
	Effective portion of the gain or loss on the	Effective portion of the gain or loss on the
	derivative instrument is reported initially as a	derivative instrument is reclassified out of
	component of accumulated other comprehensive	eaccumulated OCI (loss) and into earnings when
	income (loss)	the forecasted transaction affects earnings
Fair value hedge	Derivative carried at fair value	Gains or losses on the derivative instrument and
		the hedged item are recognized in earnings. As a
	Changes in fair value of the hedged item are	result, to the extent the hedge is effective, the
	recorded as adjustments to the carrying amount	t gains or losses will offset and there is no impact
	of the hedged item	on earnings. Any hedge ineffectiveness will
		impact earnings.
Not designated as	Derivative carried at fair value	Realized and unrealized gains or losses on the
hedges		derivative instrument are recognized in earnings
	Nicor Gas' and Elizabethtown Gas' unrealized	The gain or loss on these derivative instruments
	gains and losses on derivative instruments are	is reflected in natural gas costs and is ultimately
	deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities until	included in billings to customers
	included in natural gas costs	

#### Quantitative Disclosures Related to Derivative Instruments

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, our derivative instruments were comprised of both long and short natural gas positions. A long position is a contract to purchase natural gas, and a short position is a contract to sell natural gas. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had net long natural gas contracts outstanding in the following quantities:

#### Natural gas contracts

	Distribution Operations (3)		All O	ther
	December		December	
	31, 2011	December	31, 2011	December
In Bcf	(1)	31, 2010	(1)	31, 2010
Hedge designation:				
Cash flow	0	0	5	4
Not designated	48	18	138	202
Total	48	18	143	206
Hedge position:				
Short	0	0	(1,680)	(1,605)
Long	48	18	1,823	1,811
Net long position	48	18	143	206

- (1) Approximately 97% of these contracts have durations of two years or less and the remaining 3% expire in 3 to 6 years.
- (2) Volumes related to Nicor Gas exclude variable-priced contracts, which are accounted for as derivatives, but whose fair values are not directly impacted by changes in commodity prices.

Derivative Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

In accordance with regulatory requirements, gains and losses on derivative instruments used at Nicor Gas and Elizabethtown Gas in our distribution operations segment were reflected in accrued natural gas costs within our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. The following amounts represent realized losses for the year ended December 31.

In millions	2011	2010
Nicor Gas	\$3	n/a
Elizabethtown Gas	\$27	\$35

The following table presents the fair value and Statements of Financial Position classification of our derivative instruments:

	December 31,				
In millions	Statement of financial position location (1) (2)	2011		2010	
Designated as cash flow and fair value h					
C					
Asset Instruments					
	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities –				
Current natural gas contracts	current portion	\$9		\$3	
Noncurrent natural gas contracts	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities	0		0	
Interest rate swap agreements	Derivative instruments assets – long-term portion			0	
Liability Instruments	Delivative instruments assets Tong term portion	10		· ·	
Elasinty instruments	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities –				
Current natural gas contracts	current portion	(12	)	(5	)
Current natural gas contracts	Derivative instruments liabilities – long-term	(12	,	(3	,
Interest rate swap agreements	portion	(13	)	0	
Total	portion	(3	)	(2	)
Total		(3	,	(2	,
Not designated as cash flow hedges					
That designated as easil from neages					
Asset Instruments					
risset instruments	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities –				
Current natural gas contracts	current portion	728		541	
Noncurrent natural gas contracts	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities	137		105	
Tioneditent natural gas contracts	Don't and the instruments assets and machines	107		100	
Liability Instruments					
Elaomity moraments	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities –				
Current natural gas contracts	current portion	(689	)	(489	)
Noncurrent natural gas contracts	Derivative instruments assets and liabilities	(116	)	(80	
Total	Derivative instruments assets and natificies	60	,	77	,
Total derivative instruments		\$57		\$75	
	Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, Sor				

<sup>(1)</sup> These amounts are netted within our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Some of our derivative instruments have asset positions which are presented as a liability in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, and we have derivative instruments that have liability positions which are presented as an asset in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

## Derivative Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Income

The following table presents the gain or (loss) on derivative instruments in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

December 31,
In millions 2011 2010 2009

December 31.

<sup>(2)</sup> As required by the authoritative guidance related to derivatives and hedging, the fair value amounts above are presented on a gross basis. As a result, the amounts above do not include cash collateral held on deposit in broker margin accounts of \$147 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$105 million as of December 31, 2010. Accordingly, the amounts above will differ from the amounts presented on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and the fair value information presented for our derivative instruments in the recurring fair values table of Note 4.

#### Designated as cash flow hedges

Natural gas contracts – loss recognized in OCI				
Natural gas contracts – loss reclassified from OCI into cost of goods so	old			
for settlement of hedged item	\$(6	) \$(16	) \$(31	)
Interest rate swaps – ineffectiveness recorded as an offset to interest				
expense	3	0	0	
Not designated as hedges				
Natural gas contracts – fair value adjustments recorded in operating				
revenues (1)	40	(1	) 21	
Natural gas contracts – net gain fair value adjustments recorded in cost				
of goods sold (2)	0	(2	) 1	
Natural gas contracts – net loss fair value adjustments recorded in				
operation and maintenance expense	(4	) 0	0	
Total gains (losses) on derivative instruments	\$33	\$(19	) \$(9	)
		•		

- (1) Associated with the fair value of existing derivative instruments at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
- (2) Excludes losses recorded in cost of goods sold associated with weather derivatives of \$9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, \$27 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 and \$6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Any amounts recognized in operating income, related to ineffectiveness or due to a forecasted transaction that is no longer expected to occur, were immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Our expected net loss to be reclassified from OCI into cost of goods sold, operation and maintenance expense, and operating revenues and recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Income over the next 12 months is \$2 million. These pre-tax deferred losses are recorded in OCI related to natural gas derivative contracts associated with retail operations' and with Nicor Gas' system use. The expected losses are based upon the fair values of these financial instruments at December 31, 2011.

#### Note 6 - Employee Benefit Plans

#### Oversight of Plans

The Retirement Plan Investment Committee (the Committee) appointed by our Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the investments of our defined benefit retirement plans. Further, we have an Investment Policy (the Policy) for our pension and other retirement benefit plans whose goal is to preserve these plans' capital and maximize investment earnings in excess of inflation within acceptable levels of capital market volatility. To accomplish this goal, the plans' assets are managed to optimize long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and diversification.

We will continue to diversify retirement plan investments to minimize the risk of large losses in a single asset class. We do not have a concentration of assets in a single entity, industry, country, commodity or class of investment fund. The Policy's permissible investments include domestic and international equities (including convertible securities and mutual funds), domestic and international fixed income (corporate and United States government obligations), cash and cash equivalents and other suitable investments.

Equity market performance and corporate bond rates have a significant effect on our reported funded status. Changes in the projected benefit obligation (PBO) and accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) are mainly driven by the assumed discount rate. Additionally, equity market performance has a significant effect on our market-related value of plan assets (MRVPA), which is used by the AGL Retirement Plan, and on the actual fair market value of plan assets, which is used by the Nicor Gas Retirement Plan (our two largest pension plans), to determine the expected return on the plan assets component of net annual pension cost. The MRVPA is a calculated value and differs from the actual market value of plan assets. Gains and losses on plan assets are spread through the MRVPA based on the five-year moving weighted average methodology.

Nicor Gas' pension and other retirement benefit costs have historically been considered in rate proceedings in the period they are accrued. As a regulated utility, Nicor Gas expects to continue rate recovery of the eligible costs of these defined benefit retirement plans and, accordingly, associated changes in the funded status of Nicor Gas' plans have been deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until recognized in net income, instead of being recorded in accumulated OCI. However, to the extent Nicor Gas' employees perform services for affiliates, and to the extent such employees are eligible to participate in these plans, the affiliates are charged for the cost of these benefits and changes in the funded status that are expected to be recovered from affiliates in the future are recorded in accumulated OCI.

#### Pension Benefits

We sponsor three tax-qualified defined benefit retirement plans for our eligible employees, the Nicor Gas Retirement Plan, the AGL Retirement Plan and the NUI Retirement Plan. A defined benefit plan specifies the amount of benefits an eligible participant eventually will receive using information about the participant.

The Nicor Gas Retirement Plan is a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees of Nicor Gas hired prior to 1998. Pension benefits are based on years of service and the highest average salary for management employees and job level for collectively bargained employees (referred to as pension bands). The benefit obligation related to collectively bargained benefits considers the past practice of regular benefit increases.

We generally calculate the benefits under the AGL Retirement Plan based on age, years of service and pay. The benefit formula for the AGL Retirement Plan is a career average earnings formula, except for participants who were employees as of July 1, 2000, and who were at least 50 years of age as of that date. For those participants, we used a final average earnings benefit formula, and used this benefit formula for such participants until December 31, 2010, at which time any of those participants who were still actively employed accrue future benefits under the career average

earnings formula.

Effective January 1, 2012, the AGL Retirement Plan was frozen with respect to participation for non-union employees hired on or after that date. Such employees will be entitled to employer provided benefits under their defined contribution plan, that exceed defined contribution benefits for employees who participate in the defined benefit plan.

The NUI Retirement Plan covers substantially all of NUI Corporation's employees who were employed on or before December 31, 2005, except Florida City Gas union employees, who until February 2008 participated in a union-sponsored multiemployer plan. Pension benefits are based on years of credited service and final average compensation as of the plan freeze date. Effective January 1, 2006, participation and benefit accrual under the NUI Retirement Plan were frozen. As of that date, former participants in that plan became eligible to participate in the AGL Retirement Plan. Florida City Gas union employees became eligible to participate in the AGL Retirement Plan in February 2008.

#### Other Defined Benefit Retirement Benefits

We sponsor two defined benefit retirement health care plans for our eligible employees, the Health and Welfare Plan for Retirees and Inactive Employees of AGL Resources Inc. (AGL Welfare Plan) and the Nicor Gas Welfare Benefit Plan. Eligibility for these benefits is based on age and years of service.

The AGL Welfare Plan includes medical coverage for all eligible AGL Resources employees who were employed as of June 30, 2002, if they reach retirement age while working for us. In addition, the AGL Welfare Plan provides life insurance for all employees if they have ten years of service at retirement. The state regulatory commissions have approved phase-in plans that defer a portion of the related benefits expense for future recovery.

Nicor Gas provides health care and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees under the Nicor Gas Welfare Benefit Plan that includes a limit on its share of cost for employees hired after 1982.

We recorded a regulatory asset for anticipated future recoveries of \$291 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$9 million as of December 31, 2010. In addition, we recorded a regulatory liability of \$19 million as of December 31, 2011 and \$6 million as of December 31, 2010 for our expected expenses under the AGL Welfare Plan and the Nicor Gas Welfare Benefit Plan. We expect to pay \$21 million of insurance claims for these plans in 2012, but we do not anticipate making any additional contributions.

Effective December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 was signed into law. This act provides for a prescription drug benefit under Medicare Part D as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. We determined that the Nicor Gas prescription drug benefits of its plan are actuarially equivalent and accordingly have reflected the effects of the subsidy in the determination of the benefit obligation and annual net benefit.

Effective July 1, 2009, Medicare eligible retirees covered by the AGL Welfare Plan, including all of those at least age 65, receive benefits through our contribution to a retiree health reimbursement arrangement account.

Effective January 1, 2010, enhancements were made to the pre-65 medical coverage of the AGL Welfare Plan by removing the current cap on our expected costs and implementing a new cap determined by the new retiree premium schedule based on salary level and years of service. Due to the cap, there is no impact on the periodic benefit cost or on our accumulated projected benefit obligation for the AGL Welfare Plan for a change in the assumed healthcare cost trend.

We also have a separate unfunded supplemental retirement healthcare plan that provides health care and life insurance benefits to employees of discontinued businesses. This plan is noncontributory with defined benefits. Net plan expenses were immaterial in 2011. The PBO associated with this plan was \$3 million December 31, 2011.

#### Contributions

Our employees generally do not contribute to these pension and other retirement plans, however, Nicor Gas and pre-65 AGL retirees make nominal contributions to their health care plan. We fund the qualified pension plans by contributing at least the minimum amount required by applicable regulations and as recommended by our actuary. However, we may also contribute in excess of the minimum required amount. As required by The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Act), we calculate the minimum amount of funding using the traditional unit credit cost method.

The Act contained new funding requirements for single employer defined benefit pension plans and established a 100% funding target (over a 7-year amortization period) for plan years beginning after December 31, 2007. If certain

conditions were met, the Worker, Retiree and Employer Recovery Act of 2008 allowed us to measure our required minimum contributions based on a funding target of 100% in 2010 and 2011. In 2011 we contributed \$56 million to the AGL Retirement Plan and the NUI Retirement Plan. In 2010 we contributed \$31 million to the AGL Retirement Plan and the NUI Retirement Plan. No contributions were made to the Nicor Gas Retirement Plan in 2011. For more information on our 2012 contributions to our pension plans, see Note 11.

#### Assumptions

We consider a number of factors in determining and selecting assumptions for the overall expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. We consider the historical long-term return experience of our assets, the current and expected allocation of our plan assets, and expected long-term rates of return. We derive these expected long-term rates of return with the assistance of our investment advisors and generally base these rates on the various asset classes, our expected investments of plan assets and asset management. We base our expected allocation of plan assets on a diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities, real estate, private equity securities and alternative asset classes.

We consider a variety of factors in determining and selecting our assumptions for the discount rate at December 31. We based our discount rate on a yield curve provided by our actuaries that is derived from a portfolio of high quality (rated AA or better) corporate bonds and the equivalent annuity cash flows separately for each pension plan.

The following motor process decide our pension and	Pension plans			Other retirement plans			3	
Dollars in millions	2011	•	2010		2011		2010	
Change in plan assets								
Fair value of plan assets, January 1,	\$344	\$	303		\$71		\$63	
Plan assets acquired in Nicor merger	388		0		0		0	
Actual return on plan assets	(7	)	37		(3	)	8	
Employer contributions	58		31		8		7	
Benefits paid	(28	)	(27	)	(9	)	(7	)
Plan curtailment and settlements	(1	)	0		0		0	
Fair value of plan assets, December 31,	\$754	\$	344		\$67		\$71	
Change in benefit obligation								
Benefit obligation, January 1,	\$531	\$	463		\$107		\$101	
Benefit obligations acquired in Nicor merger	345		0		273		0	
Service cost	14		11		1		0	
Interest cost	29		27		6		6	
Actuarial loss	78		57		18		7	
Medicare Part D reimbursements	0		0		1		0	
Benefits paid	(28	)	(27	)	(9	)	(7	)
Plan curtailment and settlements	(1	)	0		0		0	
Benefit obligation, December 31,	\$968	\$	531		\$397		\$107	
Funded status at end of year	\$(214	) \$	(187	)	\$(330	)	\$(36	)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Statements of								
Financial Position consist of								
Long-term asset	\$26	\$	0		\$0		\$0	
Current liability	(2	)	(1	)	(14	)	0	
Long-term liability	(238	)	(186	)	(316	)	(36	)
Total liability at December 31,	\$(214	) \$	(187	)	\$(330	)	\$(36	)
Accumulated benefit obligation (2)	\$910	\$	506		n/a		n/a	
Supplemental information for underfunded pension plans								
included above as of December 31, 2011:								
Aggregate benefit obligation	\$604	\$	531		n/a		n/a	
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation	570		506		n/a		n/a	
Aggregate fair value of plan assets	\$363	\$	344		n/a		n/a	
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations								
Discount rate	4.6		5.4	%	4.5	%	5.2	%
Rate of compensation increase	3.7		3.7	%	3.7	%	3.7	%
Pension band increase (1)	2.0	%	n/a		n/a		n/a	

<sup>(1)</sup> Only applicable to the Nicor Gas pension plan

The components of our pension and other retirement benefit costs are set forth in the following table.

		Pension pla	ans	(	Other retiremen	nt plans
Dollars in millions	2011	2010	2009	2011	2010	2009
Net benefit cost						
Service cost	\$14	\$11	\$8	\$1	\$0	\$0

<sup>(2)</sup> ABO differs from the projected benefit obligation in that the ABO excludes the effect of salary and wage increases.

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

Interest cost	29		27		26		6		6		6	
Expected return on plan assets	(33	)	(28	)	(29	)	(5	)	(5	)	(4	)
Net amortization of prior												
service cost	(2	)	(2	)	(2	)	(4	)	(4	)	(4	)
Recognized actuarial loss	14		10		9		2		2		2	
Net periodic benefit cost	\$22		\$18		\$12		\$0		\$(1	)	\$0	
Assumptions used to												
determine benefit costs												
Discount rate (1)	5.4	%	6.0	%	6.2	%	5.2	%	5.8	%	6.2	%
Expected return on plan assets												
(1)	8.5	%	8.8	%	9.0	%	8.2	%	8.8	%	9.0	%
Rate of compensation												
increase(1)	3.7	%	3.7	%	3.7	%	3.7	%	3.7	%	3.7	%
Pension band increase (1) (2)	2.0	%	n/a		n/a		n/a		n/a		n/a	
(1) Rates are presented on a weighted average basis												
(2) Only applicable to the Nicor Gas pension plan.												

A portion of the net benefit cost or credit related to these plans has been capitalized as a cost of constructing gas distribution facilities and the remainder is included in gas distribution operation and maintenance expense, net of amounts charged to affiliates.

Assumptions used to determine the 2011 health care benefit cost for the Nicor Gas Welfare Benefit Plan were as follows:

	2011
Health care	
cost trend rate	
assumed for	
next year	8.60 %
Ultimate rate	
to which the	
cost trend rate	
is assumed to	
decline	4.50 %
Year that	
reaches	
ultimate trend	
rate	2030

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates for the Nicor Gas Welfare Benefit Plan would have the following effects:

	I	Effect			
		on			
	S	ervice			
		and	E	ffect o	n
Dollars in	ir	terest	t	enefit	
millions	cost		ob	obligation	
1% Health care					
cost trend rate					
increase	\$	0	\$	26	
1% Health care					
cost trend rate					
decrease		0		(22	)

As a result of a cap on expected cost for the AGL Welfare Plan, a one-percentage-point increase or decrease in the assumed health care trend does not materially affect periodic benefit cost or accumulated benefit obligation of the Plan.

The following table presents the amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in net regulatory assets and accumulated OCI as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	Net regul	atory assets	Accum	ulated OCI		Total
	Pension	Other retirement	Pension	Other retirement	Pension	Other retirement
In millions	plan	plans	plan	plans	plan	plans
December 31, 2011:						
Prior service cost (credit)	\$1	\$1	\$(13	) \$(4	) \$(12	) \$(3)

Net loss	162	118	312	51	474	170	
Total	\$163	\$119	\$299	\$47	\$462	\$167	
December 31, 2010:							
Prior service credit	\$0	\$0	\$(15	) \$(8	) \$(15	) \$(8	)
Net loss	0	0	226	35	226	35	
Total	\$0	\$0	\$211	\$27	\$211	\$27	

The 2012 estimated amortization out of regulatory assets or accumulated OCI for these plans are set forth in the following table.

	Net Regulatory Asset		Accum	nulated OCI	Total		
		Other		Other		Other	
	Pension	retirement	Pension	retirement	Pension	retiremen	ıt
In millions	plans	plans	plans	plans	plans	plans	
Amortization of prior service							
credit	\$0	\$0	\$(2	) \$(3	) \$(2	) \$(3	)
Amortization of net loss	14	8	20	3	33	11	

The following table presents the gross benefit payments expected for the years ended December 31, 2012 through 2021 for our pension and other retirement plans. There will be benefit payments under these plans beyond 2021.

	Pension	Other retirement	Expected Medicare
In millions	plans	plans	subsidy
2012	\$ 56	\$ 23	\$ 2
2013	55	23	2
2014	59	24	2
2015	62	25	2
2016	64	26	2
2017-2021	367	144	12

## **Employee Savings Plan Benefits**

We sponsor defined contribution benefit plans that allow eligible participants to make contributions to their accounts up to specified limits. Under these plans, our matching contributions to participant accounts were \$7 million in 2011, \$7 million in 2010 and \$7 million in 2009.

Note 7 – Stock-based and Other Incentive Compensation Plans and Agreements

#### General

We currently sponsor the following stock-based and other incentive compensation plans and agreements:

	Shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options, warrants and rights (1)	Shares available for future issuance	Details
Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (2)	866,249	4,787,707	Shares available for future issuance may be issued in the form of grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), shares of restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance cash awards to key employees.
Long-Term Incentive Plan (1999) (2)	1,362,032	0	Plan previously provided for grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options, shares of restricted stock and performance units to key employees. No future grants will be made except for reload options that may be granted under the plan's outstanding options.
Officer Incentive Plan	5,000	0	Grants of nonqualified stock options and shares of restricted stock to new-hire officers.
2006 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan	not applicable	119,954	Plan previously provided for grants of stock to non-employee directors in connection with non-employee director compensation (for annual retainer, chair retainer and for initial election or appointment). No future grants will be made under this plan.
1996 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan	7,173	0	Plan previously provided for grants of nonqualified stock options and stock to non-employee directors in connection with non-employee director compensation (for annual retainer and for initial election or appointment). The plan was amended in 2002 to eliminate the granting of stock options. No future grants will be made under this plan.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan	not applicable	332,205 (1) As of Decem	Nonqualified, broad-based employee stock purchase plan for eligible employees.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes 1,664,133 shares previously available under the Nicor Inc. 2006 Long term incentive plan, as amended, that were assumed and not available under the Omnibus Perfomance Plan, pursuant to NYSE rules.

## Accounting Treatment and Compensation Expense

We measure and recognize stock-based compensation expense over the required service period in our financial statements based on the estimated fair value at the date of grant for our stock-based awards using the modified prospective, which include:

- stock options
- stock awards
- performance units (restricted stock units and performance cash units).

Performance-based stock awards and performance units contain market conditions. Stock options, restricted stock awards and performance units also contain a service condition.

We estimate forfeitures over the required service period when recognizing compensation expense. These estimates are adjusted to the extent that actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to materially differ, from such estimates. The authoritative guidance requires excess tax benefits to be reported as a financing cash inflow. The difference between the proceeds from the exercise of our stock-based awards and the par value of the stock is recorded within premium on common stock.

We grant incentive and nonqualified stock options with a strike price equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant. Fair market value is defined under the terms of the applicable plans as the most recent closing price per share of AGL Resources common stock as reported in The Wall Street Journal. Stock options generally have a three-year vesting period. The following table provides additional information on compensation costs and income tax benefits and excess tax benefits related to our cash and stock-based compensation awards.

In millions	2011	2010	2009
Compensation costs			
(1)	\$ 14	\$ 11	\$ 11
Income tax benefits			
(1)	1	2	2
Excess tax benefits			
(2)	1	2	2

- (1) Recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
- (2) Recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

## Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Options

Nonqualified options generally expire 10 years after the date of grant. Participants realize value from option grants only to the extent that the fair market value of our common stock on the date of exercise of the option exceeds the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant.

As of December 31, 2011, we had an immaterial amount of unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. Cash received from stock option exercises for 2011 was \$11 million, and the income tax benefit from stock option exercises was \$1 million. Intrinsic value for options is defined as the difference between the current market value and the grant price. The following tables summarize activity related to stock options for key employees and non-employee directors.

#### **Stock Options**

•	Number of options	Weighted average exercise price		Weighted average remaining life (in years)	Aggregate intrinsic value (in millions)	
Outstanding – December 31,						
2008	2,475,989	\$	34.52			
Granted	250,440		31.09			
Exercised	(119,126)		27.20			
Forfeited	(55,735)		36.50			
Outstanding – December 31,						
2009	2,551,568	\$	34.48			
Granted	0		0			
Exercised	(296,008)		31.33			
Forfeited	(26,448 )		37.85			
Outstanding – December 31,						
2010	2,229,112	\$	34.85	5.2		
Granted	1,685		42.19	1.6		
Exercised	(383,646)		31.11	3.0		
Forfeited	(23,997)		37.70	5.4		
Outstanding – December 31,						
2011	1,823,154	\$	35.61	4.6	\$	12
Exercisable – December 31, 2011	1,747,656	\$	35.81	4.5	\$	11
Exercisable – December 31, 2010	1,799,334	\$	34.92	4.9	\$	4

Exercisable – December 31, 2009

1,767,248

\$ 33.94

5.3

\$ 6

**Unvested Stock Options** 

				Weighted				
			average					
	Number of	Weighted average exercise		remaining	Weighted			
	unvested			vesting	average fair			
	options		price	period(in years)		value		
Outstanding – December 31, 2010	429,778	\$	34.58	0.5	\$	3.11		
Granted	1,685		42.19	0.0	\$	3.00		
Forfeited	(3,190	)	31.09	0.6	\$	1.24		
Vested	(352,775	)	35.40	0.0	\$	3.51		
Outstanding – December 31, 2011	75,498	\$	31.09	0.1	\$	1.24		

Information about outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2011, is as follows.

			Options outstanding Weighted average remaining contractual		Weighted	Options E		ole Weighted
Rai	nge of	Number of	life		average	Number of		average
Exe	ercise Prices	options	(in years)	ex	ercise price	options	ex	ercise price
\$	17.55 to \$21.92	6,410	0.1	\$	21.28	6,410	\$	21.28
\$	21.93 to \$26.30	10,763	1.0		23.82	10,763		23.82
\$	26.31 to \$30.69	84,375	1.6		26.93	84,375		26.93
\$	30.70 to \$35.08	443,664	5.0		32.23	368,166		32.46
\$	35.09 to \$39.46	1,234,766	4.7		37.41	1,234,766		37.41
\$	39.47 to \$43.85	43,176	5.0		41.09	43,176		41.09
	tstanding - c. 31, 2011	1,823,154	4.6	\$	35.61	1,747,656	\$	35.81

We measure compensation expense related to stock options based on the fair value of these awards at their date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following table shows the ranges for per share value and information about the underlying assumptions used in developing the grant date value for each of the grants made during 2011 and 2009. There were no options granted in 2010.

		2011		2009	
Expected life (years)		7		7	
United States Constant Maturity Treasury Rate	9				
used for risk-free interest rate %		2.51	%	2.30	%
Weighted average expected volatility %		14.81	%	12.9	%
Weighted average dividend yield %		4.3	%	5.5	%
Fair value of options granted - per share	\$	3.00	\$	1.24	

With the implementation of our share repurchase program in 2006, we use shares purchased under this program to satisfy share-based exercises to the extent that repurchased shares are available. Otherwise, we issue new shares from our authorized common stock.

#### Performance Units

The compensation cost of restricted stock unit awards is equal to the grant date fair value of the awards, recognized over the required service period, determined according to the authoritative guidance related to stock compensation.

The dollar value of performance cash unit awards is equal to the grant date fair value of the awards measured against progress towards the performance measure, recognized over the required service period, determined according to the authoritative guidance related to stock compensation. No other assumptions are used to value these awards. In general, a performance unit is an award of the right to receive (i) an equal number of shares of our common stock, which we refer to as a restricted stock unit or (ii) cash, subject to the achievement of certain pre-established performance criteria, which we refer to as a performance cash unit. Performance units are subject to certain transfer restrictions and forfeiture upon termination of employment.

Restricted Stock Units In general, a restricted stock unit is an award that represents the opportunity to receive a specified number of shares of our common stock, subject to the achievement of certain pre-established performance criteria. In 2011, we granted to a select group a total of 134,510 restricted stock units, of which 126,920 of these units were outstanding as of December 31, 2011. These restricted stock units had a performance measurement period that ended December 31, 2011, which was achieved, and a performance measure related to a basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders goal that was met.

Performance Cash Awards In general, a performance cash award represents the opportunity to receive cash, subject to the achievement of certain pre-established performance criteria. In 2011, we did not grant any performance cash awards. These awards have a performance measure that is related to annual growth in basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders and the average dividend yield. Accruals in connection with these grants are as follows:

		Accrued at	Maximum
	Measurement	Dec. 31,	aggregate
In millions	period end date	2011	payout
Year of grant	-		
2009 (1)	Dec. 31, 2011	\$ 1	\$ 4

(1) Adjusted to reflect the effect of economic value created during the performance measurement period by our wholesale services segment.

#### Performance Share Unit Awards

A performance share unit award represents the opportunity to receive cash and shares subject to the achievement of certain pre-established performance criteria. In 2011 we granted performance share unit awards to a select group of officers. These awards have a performance measure that relates to the company's relative total shareholder return relative to a group of peer companies. Accruals in connection with these grants are as follows:

		Accrued at	Maximum	
	Measurement	Dec. 31,	aggregate	
In millions	period end date	2011	payout	
Granted in 2010	Dec. 31, 2012	\$ 4	\$ 12	
Granted in 2011	Dec. 31, 2013	\$ 2	\$ 13	

#### Stock and Restricted Stock Awards

The compensation cost of both stock awards and restricted stock awards is equal to the grant date fair value of the awards, recognized over the required service period and is determined in accordance with the authoritative guidance related to stock compensation. No other assumptions are used to value the awards. We refer to restricted stock as an award of our common stock that is subject to time-based vesting or achievement of performance measures. Restricted stock awards are subject to certain transfer restrictions and forfeiture upon termination of employment.

Stock Awards – Non-Employee Directors Non-employee director compensation may be paid in shares of our common stock in connection with initial election, the annual retainer, and chair retainers, as applicable. Stock awards for non-employee directors are 100% vested and nonforfeitable as of the date of grant. The following table summarizes activity during 2011, related to stock awards for our non-employee directors.

	Shares of	Weighted
	restricted	average
	stock	fair value
Issued	20,858	\$ 40.62
Forfeited	0	0
Vested	20,858	\$ 40.62
Outstanding	0	0

Restricted Stock Awards – Employees The following table summarizes the restricted stock awards activity for our employees during the last three years.

		Weighted		
		average		
		remaining		Weighted
	Shares of	vesting period	a	verage fair
	restricted stock	(in years)		value
Outstanding – December 31, 2009 (1)	341,245		\$	33.93
Issued	205,030			36.34
Forfeited	(16,153)			34.13
Vested	(129,222)			35.19
Outstanding – December 31, 2010 (1)	400,900	2.4	\$	30.80
Issued	311,600	3.0		39.48

Forfeited	(25,784)	1.8	36.22	
Vested	(209,362)	0	34.68	
Outstanding – December 31, 2011 (1) (2)	477,354	2.6	\$ 34.40	

(1) Subject to restriction.

(2) Includes 82,222 restricted shares with nonforfeitable dividend rights.

## Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)

Under the ESPP, employees may purchase shares of our common stock in quarterly intervals at 85% of fair market value, we record an expense for the 15% purchase price discount. Employee ESPP contributions may not exceed \$25,000 per employee during any calendar year.

	2011	2010	2009
Shares	65,843	60,017	63,847
purchased on the			
open market			
Average	\$40.55	\$37.07	\$31.45
per-share			
purchase price			
Purchase price	\$401,346	\$333,639	\$298,968
discount			

Note 8 - Debt

The following table provides maturity dates, year-to-date weighted-average interest rates and amounts outstanding for our various debt securities and facilities that are included in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

		Decen Weighted average interest	nber 31, 2011  -	Decem Weighted- average interest	ber 31, 2010
Dollars in millions	Year(s) due	rate	Outstanding	rate	Outstanding
Short-term debt	-0.4				
Commercial paper- AGL Capital	2012	0.4	% \$869	0.4	% \$732
Commercial paper- Nicor Gas	2012	0.4	452	n/a	n/a
Current portion of long-term debt	2012	8.3	15	7.1	300
Current portion of capital leases	2012	4.9	2	4.9	1
Total short-term debt and current portion of					
long-term debt and capital leases		0.7	% \$1,338	3.2	% \$1,033
Long-term debt – net of current portion					
Senior notes	2013-2041	5.4	% \$2,550	5.5	% \$1,275
First mortgage bonds	2016-2038	5.6	500	n/a	n/a
Gas facility revenue bonds	2022-2033	1.2	200	1.3	200
Medium-term notes	2017-2027	7.8	181	7.8	196
First mortgage bonds fair value					
adjustment	2016-2038	n/a	99	n/a	n/a
Interest rate swaps fair value adjustment	2016	n/a	13	n/a	0
Capital leases	2012	n/a	0	4.9	2
Unamortized debt premium (discount), net	-	n/a	18	n/a	(2)
Total long-term debt		5.0	% \$3,561	5.2	% \$1,671
S			. ,		
Total debt		4.4	% \$4,899	4.6	% \$2,704

#### Short-term Debt

Our short-term debt at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was composed of borrowings under our commercial paper programs and current portions of our long-term debt and capital lease obligations.

Commercial Paper Programs We maintain commercial paper programs at AGL Capital and at Nicor Gas that consist of short-term, unsecured promissory notes that are used in conjunction with cash from operations to fund our seasonal working capital requirements. Working capital needs fluctuate during the year and are highest during the injection period in advance of the Heating Season. The Nicor Gas commercial paper program supports working capital needs at Nicor Gas, while our other subsidiaries, including SouthStar, participate in the AGL Capital commercial paper program. At December 31, 2011, our commercial paper maturities ranged from 3 to 58 days.

AGL Credit Facility On November 10, 2011, AGL Capital amended and restated its revolving credit facility to extend the maturity date to November 10, 2016 and to increase the revolving credit commitments to \$1.3 billion. This credit facility can be drawn upon to support the AGL Capital commercial paper program and to provide the flexibility to meet ongoing working capital and other general purpose needs. The interest rate payable on borrowings under the AGL Credit Facility is calculated either at the alternative base rate, plus an applicable margin, or LIBOR, plus an

applicable interest margin. The applicable interest margin used in both interest rate calculations will vary according to AGL Capital's current credit ratings. At December 31, 2011, there were no outstanding borrowings under this facility.

Nicor Gas Credit Facility On December 15, 2011, Nicor Gas entered into a \$700 million revolving credit facility, which matures on December 15, 2016. The Nicor Gas Credit Facility replaced its previous three-year credit facility and 364-day facility and can be drawn upon to support the Nicor Gas commercial paper program and to provide the flexibility to meet ongoing working capital and other general purpose needs. The interest rate payable on borrowings under the Nicor Gas Credit Facility is calculated either at the alternative base rate, plus an applicable interest margin, or LIBOR, plus an applicable interest margin. The applicable interest margin used in both interest rate calculations will vary according to Nicor Gas' current credit ratings. At December 31, 2011, there were no outstanding borrowings under this facility.

SouthStar Credit Facility SouthStar's five-year \$75 million unsecured credit facility expired on November 2, 2011. SouthStar used this line of credit for working capital and general corporate needs. SouthStar had no outstanding borrowings on this line of credit at December 31, 2010.

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt We have \$15 million of medium-term notes, which are reported as current portion of long-term debt on our December 31, 2011 Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Additionally, we had \$300 million of senior notes, which are reported as current portion of long-term debt on our December 31, 2010 Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Current Portion of Capital Leases Our capital leases consist primarily of a sale/leaseback transaction of gas meters and other equipment that was completed in 2002 by Florida City Gas and will be repaid through 2012. Based on the terms of the lease agreement, Florida City Gas is required to insure the leased equipment during the lease term. At the expiration of the lease term, Florida City Gas has the option to purchase the leased meters from the lessor at their fair market value, which will be determined based on an arm's-length transaction between an informed and willing buyer.

#### Long-term Debt

Our long-term debt at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of medium-term notes: Series A, Series B, and Series C, which we issued under an indenture dated December 1, 1989, senior notes, first mortgage bonds, gas facility revenue bonds and capital leases. Some of these issuances were completed in the private placement market. In determining that those specific bonds qualify for exemption from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, we relied on the facts that the bonds were offered only to a limited number of large institutional investors and each institutional investor that purchased the bonds represented that it was purchasing the bonds for its own account and not with a view to distribute them. We fully and unconditionally guarantee all of our senior notes. Additionally, substantially all of Nicor Gas' properties are subject to the lien of the indenture securing its first mortgage bonds.

The majority of our long-term debt matures after fiscal year 2016. The annual maturities of our long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

	Amount
	(in
Year	millions)
2012	\$ 17
2013	225
2014	0
2015	200
2016	545
Thereafter	2,461
Total	\$ 3,448

Senior Notes We had the following senior note issuances in 2011.

		Amount (in	Maturity date	
	Issuance Date	millions)	Ž	Interest rate
Public offering (1)	March 16, 2011	\$500	March 15, 2041	5.9%
Public offering (2)	September 15, 2011	\$200	March 15, 2041	5.9%
Public offering (2)	September 15, 2011	\$300	September 15, 2021	3.5%

Private placement – Series A (2)	October 27, 2011	\$120	October 27, 2016	1.9%
Private placement – Series B	October 27, 2011	\$155	October 27, 2018	3.5%

- (1) The net proceeds were used to repay our commercial paper and to repay our \$300 million in senior notes that matured on January 14, 2011. The remaining proceeds were used for the cash consideration and expenses incurred in connection with the Nicor merger.
- (2) The net proceeds were used to pay a portion of the cash consideration and expenses incurred in connection with the Nicor merger.

Following our issuances of these senior notes we terminated the Bridge Facility.

Interest Rate Swaps On May 4, 2011, we entered into interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of \$250 million to effectively convert a portion of our \$300 million 6.4% fixed-rate senior notes that mature July 15, 2016 to a variable-rate obligation. Under the terms of the swaps, the interest rates reset quarterly based on LIBOR plus 3.9%.

As of December 31, 2011, we also held forward-starting interest rate swaps totaling \$90 million that were redesignated as cash flow hedges upon the close of the Nicor merger. Under the terms of the swaps, we agree to pay a fixed swap rate and receive a floating rate based on LIBOR.

First Mortgage Bonds As a result of the merger, we acquired the first mortgage bonds of Nicor Gas, which at December 31, 2011, had principal balances totaling \$500 million. The fair value step-up of these bonds on December 9, 2011, the merger closing date, was \$99 million, a step up to fair value that is reflected in our long-term debt. Nicor Gas has issued first mortgage bonds through the public and private placement markets.

Gas Facility Revenue Bonds We are party to a series of loan agreements with the New Jersey Economic Development Authority (NJEDA) under which the NJEDA has issued a series of gas facility revenue bonds. These gas revenue bonds are issued by state agencies or counties to investors, and proceeds from the issuance are then loaned to us. In June and September 2010, the letters of credit supporting the gas revenue bonds were set to expire, and according to the terms of the bond indentures, we repurchased the bonds before the expiration of the letters of credit using the proceeds of AGL Capital commercial paper issuances.

#### Financial and Non-Financial Covenants

The AGL Credit Facility and the Nicor Gas Credit Facility include a financial covenant that requires us to maintain a ratio of total debt to total capitalization of no more than 70%; however, our goal is to maintain this ratio at levels between 50% and 60%. These ratios, as calculated in accordance with our debt covenant includes standby letters of credit, surety bonds and excludes other comprehensive income pension adjustments. Adjusting for these items, the following table contains our debt-to-capitalization ratios for the periods presented, which are within our required and targeted ranges.

	AGL Resources				Nicor Gas			
	December 31,				December 31,			
	2011		2010		2011		2010	
Debt-to-capitalization ratio	58	%	58	%	60	%	n/a	

The credit facilities contain certain non-financial covenants that, among other things, restrict liens and encumbrances, loans and investments, acquisitions, dividends and other restricted payments, asset dispositions, mergers and consolidations and other matters customarily restricted in such agreements. We were in compliance with all existing debt provisions and covenants, both financial and non-financial, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

#### **Default Provisions**

Our credit facilities and other financial obligations include provisions that, if not complied with, could require early payment or similar actions. The most important default events include:

- a maximum leverage ratio
- insolvency events and nonpayment of scheduled principal or interest payments
  - acceleration of other financial obligations
    - change of control provisions

We have no trigger events in our debt instruments that are tied to changes in our specified credit ratings or our stock price and have not entered into any transaction that requires us to issue equity based on credit ratings or other trigger events.

#### **Preferred Securities**

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had 10 million shares of authorized, unissued Class A junior participating preferred stock, no par value, and 10 million shares of authorized, unissued preferred stock, no par value.

## Note 9 – Equity

#### **Treasury Shares**

Our Board of Directors authorized us to purchase up to 8 million treasury shares through our repurchase plan which expired on January 31, 2011. This plan was used to offset shares issued under our employee and non-employee director incentive compensation plans and our dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plans. Stock purchases under this plan were made in the open market or in private transactions at times, and in amounts, that we deemed appropriate. We held the purchased shares as treasury shares and accounted for them using the cost method. In 2011, we spent \$2 million to purchase less than 0.1 million treasury shares at a weighted average price per share of \$36.25. In 2010, we spent \$7 million to purchase approximately 0.2 million treasury shares at a weighted average price per share of \$36.01.

#### Dividends

Our common shareholders may receive dividends when declared at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Dividends may be paid in cash, stock or other form of payment, and payment of future dividends will depend on our future earnings, cash flow, financial requirements and other factors. As a result of the Nicor merger, AGL Resources shareholders on record as of the close of business on December 8, 2011, received a pro rata dividend for the stub period, accruing from November 19, 2011.

Additionally, we derive a substantial portion of our consolidated assets, earnings and cash flow from the operation of regulated utility subsidiaries, whose legal authority to pay dividends or make other distributions to us is subject to regulation. As with most other companies, the payment of dividends is restricted by laws in the states where we conduct business. In certain cases, our ability to pay dividends to our common shareholders is limited by (i) our ability to pay our debts as they become due in the usual course of business and satisfy our obligations under certain financing agreements, including our debt-to-capitalization covenant, (ii) our ability to maintain total assets below total liabilities, and (iii) our ability to satisfy our obligations to any preferred shareholders.

#### Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Our comprehensive income (loss) includes net income and net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. plus OCI, which includes changes in fair value of certain derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, certain changes in pension and other retirement benefit plans and reclassifications for amounts included in net income and net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc. For more information on our derivative instruments, see Note 5. For more information on our pensions and retirement benefit obligations, see Note 6. Our comprehensive income (loss) amounts are aggregated within our accumulated other comprehensive loss. The following table provides the components of our accumulated other comprehensive loss balances, net of the related tax effects allocated to each component of OCI.

		Pension &	
		other	Accumulated
	Derivative	retirement	other
	instruments	obligations	comprehensive
In millions	(1)	(2)	income (loss)
As of Dec. 31, 2008	\$(3)	\$(131	) \$ (134)
Other comprehensive income	1	17	18
As of Dec. 31, 2009	(2	(114	) (116 )
Other comprehensive loss	(5	(28	) (33 )
Purchase of additional 15% ownership interest in SouthStar	(1	0	(1)

As of Dec. 31, 2010	(8	) (142	) (150	)
Other comprehensive loss	(2	) (65	) (67	)
As of Dec. 31, 2011	\$(10	) \$(207	) \$ (217	)

<sup>(1)</sup> Income taxes for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were immaterial.

<sup>(2)</sup> Income taxes for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were \$41 million, \$20 million and \$10 million, respectively.

#### Note 10 – Non-Wholly Owned Entities

As of December 31, 2011, we had ownership interests in SouthStar, Triton, Horizon Pipeline and Sawgrass Storage.

#### Variable Interest Entities

On a quarterly basis we evaluate all of our owner interests to determine if they represent a variable interest entity (VIE) as defined by the authoritative accounting guidance on consolidation, and if so, which party is the primary beneficiary. We have determined that SouthStar, a joint venture owned by us and Piedmont, is the only VIE for which we are the primary beneficiary, which requires us to consolidate its assets, liabilities and Statements of Income. Earnings from SouthStar in 2011, 2010 and 2009 were allocated entirely in accordance with the ownership interests. We account for our ownership of SouthStar in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance which is fully described within Note 2.

SouthStar markets natural gas and related services under the trade name Georgia Natural Gas to retail customers primarily in Georgia, and under various other trade names to retail customers in Ohio, Florida and New York and to commercial and industrial customers, principally in Alabama, Florida, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee. The primary risks associated with SouthStar are discussed in our risk factors included in Item 1A.

The following table illustrates the effect that our 2009 purchase of an additional 15% ownership percentage, which became effective in January 2010, had on our equity.

	Accumulated									
					other					
	Premium on compreher					sive				
In millions	CO	mmon stoc	k		loss		Total			
Purchase of additional 15%										
ownership interest	\$	(51	)	\$	(1	) \$	(52	)		

Our conclusion that SouthStar is a VIE resulted from our equal voting rights with Piedmont not being proportional to our economic obligation to absorb 85% of losses or residual returns from the joint venture. Following are additional factors we considered in determining that we have the power to direct SouthStar's activities that most significantly impact its performance.

#### Operations

Our wholly owned subsidiary, Atlanta Gas Light, provides the following services in accordance with Georgia Commission authorization that affect SouthStar's operations:

- provides meter reading services for SouthStar's customers in Georgia
  - maintains and expands the natural gas infrastructure in Georgia
- markets the benefits of natural gas, performs outreach to residential and commercial developers, offers natural gas appliance rebates and billboard and print advertising, all of which support SouthStar's efforts to maintain and expand its residential, commercial and industrial customers in its largest market, Georgia
  - assigns storage and transportation capacity used in delivering natural gas to SouthStar's customers

#### Liquidity and capital resources

• we provide guarantees for SouthStar's activities with its counterparties, its credit exposure and to certain natural gas suppliers in support of SouthStar's payment obligations

• SouthStar utilizes the AGL Capital commercial paper program for its liquidity and working capital requirements. We support SouthStar's daily cash management activities and assist with ensuring SouthStar has adequate liquidity and working capital resources

#### Back office functions

• in accordance with our services agreement, we provide services to SouthStar with respect to accounting, information technology, credit and internal controls

SouthStar's financial results are seasonal in nature, with business depending to a great extent on the first and fourth quarters of each year. SouthStar's current assets consist primarily of natural gas inventory, derivative instruments and receivables from its customers. SouthStar also has receivables from us due to its participation in AGL Capital's commercial paper program. See Note 2 for additional discussions of SouthStar's inventories. SouthStar's restricted assets consist of customer deposits and were immaterial as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. SouthStar's current liabilities consist primarily of accrued natural gas costs, other accrued expenses, customer deposits, derivative instruments and payables to us from its participation in AGL Capital's commercial paper program.

As of December 31, 2011, SouthStar's current assets, which approximate fair value, exceeded its current liabilities, long-term assets and other deferred debits, long-term liabilities and other deferred credits by approximately \$56 million. SouthStar's other contractual commitments and obligations, including operating leases and agreements with third party providers, do not contain terms that would trigger material financial obligations in the event that such contracts were terminated. As a result, our maximum exposure to a loss at SouthStar is considered to be immaterial. SouthStar's creditors have no recourse to our general credit beyond our corporate guarantees we have provided to SouthStar's counterparties and natural gas suppliers. We have provided no financial or other support that was not previously contractually required. With the exception of our corporate guarantees, we have not entered into any arrangements that could require us to provide financial support to SouthStar.

Price and volume fluctuations of SouthStar's natural gas inventories can cause significant variations in our working capital and cash flow from operations. Changes in our operating cash flows are also attributable to SouthStar's working capital changes resulting from the impact of weather, the timing of customer collections, payments for natural gas purchases and cash collateral amounts that SouthStar maintains to facilitate its derivative instruments.

Cash flows used in our investing activities include capital expenditures for SouthStar for the year ended December 31, of \$2 million for 2011, \$3 million for 2010 and \$2 million for 2009. Cash flows used in our financing activities include SouthStar's distribution to Piedmont for its portion of SouthStar's annual earnings from the previous year. Generally, this distribution occurs in the first or second quarter of each fiscal year. For the year ended December 31, 2011, SouthStar distributed \$16 million to Piedmont and \$27 million during the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease of \$11 million was primarily the result of our increased ownership percentage of SouthStar in 2010.

The following table provides additional information on SouthStar's assets and liabilities as of the periods presented, which are consolidated within our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

		December 31, 2011			December 31, 2010				10			
					%						%	
In millions	Coı	nsolidated	Sou	uthStar (1)	(2)	Co	nsolidated	(	Sou	ıthStar (1)	(2)	)
Current assets	\$	2,746	\$	210	8	% \$	2,166		\$	239	11	1 %
Long-term assets and other												
deferred debits		11,167		9	0		5,356			9	0	
Total assets	\$	13,913	\$	219	2	% \$	7,522	(	\$	248	3	%
Current liabilities	\$	3,084	\$	77	2	% \$	2,432	(	\$	93	4	%
Long-term liabilities and												
other deferred credits		7,490		0	0		3,252			0	0	
Total Liabilities		10,574		77	1		5,684			93	2	
Equity		3,339		142	4		1,836			155	8	
Total liabilities and equity	\$	13,913	\$	219	2	% \$	7,520	:	\$	248	3	%

<sup>(1)</sup> These amounts reflect information for SouthStar and do not include intercompany eliminations and the balances of our wholly owned subsidiary with an 85% ownership interest in SouthStar.

## **Equity Method Investments**

Triton We have an investment in Triton, a cargo container leasing company. Container equipment that is acquired by Triton is accounted for in tranches as defined in Triton's operating agreement, and investors make capital contributions to Triton to invest in each of the tranches. As of December 31, 2011, we had invested in seven tranches established by

<sup>(2)</sup> SouthStar's percentage of the amount on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

#### Triton.

Horizon Pipeline We have a 50% owned joint venture with Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America that is regulated by the FERC. Horizon Pipeline operates an approximate 70 mile natural gas pipeline from Joliet, Illinois to near the Wisconsin/Illinois border. Nicor Gas typically contracts for 70% to 80% of the total capacity.

Sawgrass Storage We have a 50% owned joint venture with Samson Contour Energy that is currently in its development stage. The purpose of the joint venture is to develop, operate and market the services of a natural gas storage and pipeline facility in Louisiana.

Our investments that are accounted for under the equity method are as follows:

In millions	2011
Triton	\$ 76
Horizon Pipeline	18
Other	8
Total	\$ 102

Our net equity investment income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, was approximately \$1 million. During the same period, we received an immaterial amount of dividends from our equity investees.

Note 11 - Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

We have incurred various contractual obligations and financial commitments in the normal course of our operating and financing activities that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on liquidity or the availability of capital resources. Contractual obligations include future cash payments required under existing contractual arrangements, such as debt and lease agreements. These obligations may result from both general financing activities and from commercial arrangements that are directly supported by related revenue-producing activities. The following table illustrates our expected future contractual payments such as debt and lease agreements, and commitments as of December 31, 2011.

In millions Recorded contractual obligations:	Total	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017 & thereafter
Long-term debt							
(1)	\$3,431	\$0	\$225	\$0	\$200	\$545	\$2,461
Short-term debt							
(2)	1,338	1,338	0	0	0	0	0
Pipeline							
replacement							
program costs (3)	276	131	145	0	0	0	0
Environmental							
remediation							
liabilities (3)	327	37	66	55	45	32	92
Total	\$5,372	\$1,506	\$436	\$55	\$245	\$577	\$2,553

Unrecorded contractual obligations and commitments (4)

(9)(10):

Pipeline charges,							
storage capacity							
and gas supply (5)	\$2,263	\$781	\$494	\$269	\$164	\$85	\$470
Interest charges							
(6)	2,581	169	161	158	149	137	1,807
Operating leases							
(7)	220	32	25	20	19	18	106
Asset							
management							
agreements (8)	26	11	9	3	2	1	0
Standby letters of							
credit,							
performance /							
surety bonds (9)	22	18	4	0	0	0	0

Other	14	5	3	2	2	2	0
Total	\$5,126	\$1,016	\$696	\$452	\$336	\$243	\$2,383

- (1) Excludes the \$99 million step up to fair value of first mortgage bonds, \$18 million unamortized debt premium and \$13 million interest rate swaps fair value adjustment.
- (2) Includes current portion of long-term debt of \$15 million, which matures in June 2012 and current portion of capital leases.
  - (3) Includes charges recoverable through rate rider mechanisms.
- (4) In accordance with GAAP, these items are not reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
- (5) Includes charges recoverable through a natural gas cost recovery mechanism or alternatively billed to Marketers and demand charges associated with Sequent. The gas supply amount includes amounts for Nicor Gas and SouthStar gas commodity purchase commitments of 67 Bcf at floating gas prices calculated using forward natural gas prices as of December 31, 2011, and is valued at \$222 million. As we do for other subsidiaries, we provide guarantees to certain gas suppliers for SouthStar in support of payment obligations.
- (6) Floating rate interest charges are calculated based on the interest rate as of December 31, 2011 and the maturity date of the underlying debt instrument. As of December 31, 2011, we have \$61 million of accrued interest on our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position that will be paid in 2012.
- (7) We have certain operating leases with provisions for step rent or escalation payments and certain lease concessions. We account for these leases by recognizing the future minimum lease payments on a straight-line basis over the respective minimum lease terms, in accordance with authoritative guidance related to leases. However, this lease accounting treatment does not affect the future annual operating lease cash obligations as shown herein. Our operating leases are primarily for real estate.
  - (8) Represent fixed-fee minimum payments for Sequent's affiliated asset management agreements.
- (9) We provide guarantees to certain municipalities and other agencies and certain gas suppliers of SouthStar in support of payment obligations.
- (10) Based on the current funding status of the plans, we would be required to make a minimum contribution to our pension plans of approximately \$36 million in 2012. We may make additional contributions in 2012.

#### Substitute Natural Gas

On September 30, 2011, Nicor Gas signed an agreement to purchase approximately 25 Bcf of SNG annually for a 10-year term beginning as early as 2015. The counterparty intends to construct a 60 Bcf per year coal gasification plant in southern Illinois. The project is expected to be financed by the counterparty with external debt and equity. In addition, the final price of the SNG may exceed market prices and is dependent upon a variety of factors, including plant construction costs, and is not estimable. The price of the SNG under this contract could potentially be significantly more than market price. However, this agreement complies with an Illinois statute that authorizes full recovery of the purchase costs; therefore we expect to recover such costs. Since the purchase agreement is contingent upon various milestones to be achieved by the counterparty to the agreement, our obligation is not certain at this time. While the purchase agreement is a variable interest in the counterparty, we have concluded, based on a qualitative evaluation, that we are not the primary beneficiary required to consolidate the counterparty. No amount has been recognized on our Statement of Financial Position in connection with the purchase agreement.

On October 11, 2011, the Illinois Power Agency (IPA) approved the form of a draft 30-year contract for the purchase of 20 Bcf per year of SNG from a second proposed plant beginning as early as 2018. In November 2011, Nicor Gas filed a lawsuit against the IPA and the developer of this second proposed plant contending that the draft contract approved by the IPA does not conform to certain requirements of the enabling legislation. The lawsuit is pending in circuit court in DuPage County, Illinois. In accordance with the enabling legislation, the draft contract approved by the IPA for the second proposed plant was submitted to the Illinois Commission for further approvals by that regulatory body. The Illinois Commission issued an order on January 10, 2012 approving a final form of contract for the second plant. The final form of contract approved by the Illinois Commission modified the draft contract submitted by the IPA in various respects. Both we and the developer of the plant have filed applications for rehearing with the Illinois Commission seeking changes to the final form of contract it approved.

The price of the SNG that may be produced from both of the coal gasification plants may significantly exceed market prices and is dependent upon a variety of factors, including plant construction costs, and is currently not estimable. Illinois laws provided that prices paid for SNG purchase from the plants are to be considered prudent and not subject to review or disallowance by the Illinois Commission. No amount has been recognized on our Statement of Financial Position in connection with this contract.

#### Contingencies and Guarantees

Contingent financial commitments, such as financial guarantees, represent obligations that become payable only if certain predefined events occur and include the nature of the guarantee and the maximum potential amount of future payments that could be required of us as the guarantor. We have certain subsidiaries that enter into various financial and performance guarantees and indemnities providing assurance to third parties.

Financial guarantees Tropic Equipment Leasing Inc. (TEL), a wholly owned subsidiary, holds our interest in Triton and has an obligation to restore to zero any deficit in its equity account for income tax purposes in the unlikely event that Triton is liquidated and a deficit balance remains. This obligation continues for the life of the Triton partnerships and any payment is effectively limited to the assets of TEL, which were approximately \$76 million at December 31, 2011. We believe the likelihood of any such payment by TEL is remote. No liability has been recorded for this obligation.

Performance guarantees Nicor Services markets product warranty contracts that provide for the repair of heating, ventilation and air conditioning equipment, natural gas lines and other appliances within homes. Revenues from these product warranty contracts are recognized ratably over the coverage period, and related repair costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Indemnities In certain instances, we have undertaken to indemnify current property owners and others against costs associated with the effects and/or remediation of contaminated sites for which we may be responsible under applicable federal or state environmental laws, generally with no limitation as to the amount. These indemnifications relate primarily to ongoing coal tar cleanup, as discussed in Environmental Matters. We believe that the likelihood of payment under our other environmental indemnifications is remote. No liability has been recorded for such indemnifications.

#### **Environmental Matters**

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. These laws and regulations require us to remove or remedy the effect on the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. The following table provides more information on the costs related to remediation of our former operating sites.

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

					expected costs	
	Cost			ov	er next	
	estimate	A	mount	twelve		
In millions	range	recorded		n	nonths	
	\$42 -					
Georgia and Florida	\$98	\$	58	\$	7	
-	134 -					
Illinois	216		134		19	
	124 -					
New Jersey	174		124		9	
•	10 -					
North Carolina	16		11		2	
	\$310					
	-					
Total	\$504	\$	327	\$	37	

We have confirmed 14 former operating sites in Georgia and Florida where Atlanta Gas Light, or its predecessors, owned or operated all or part of these sites. As of December 31, 2011, the soil and sediment remediation program was substantially complete for all Georgia sites, except for a few remaining areas of recently discovered impact, although groundwater cleanup continues. Investigation is concluded for one phase of the Orlando, Florida site; however, the Environmental Protection Agency has not approved the cleanup plans. For elements of the Georgia and Florida sites where we still cannot provide engineering cost estimates, considerable variability remains in future cost estimates.

We have identified 6 former operating sites in New Jersey where Elizabethtown Gas owned or operated all or part of these sites. Material cleanups of these sites have not been completed nor are precise estimates available for future cleanup costs and therefore considerable variability remains in future cost estimates. We have also identified a site in North Carolina, which is subject to a remediation order by the North Carolina Department of Energy and Natural Resources, and there are no cost recovery mechanisms for the environmental remediation.

We have identified 26 sites in Illinois for which we have some responsibility. Nicor Gas and Commonwealth Edison Company are parties to an agreement to cooperate in cleaning up residue at many of these sites. The agreement allocates to Nicor Gas 51.73% of cleanup costs for 23 sites, no portion of the cleanup costs for 14 other sites and 50% of general remediation program costs that do not relate exclusively to particular sites. In addition to the sites from the agreement with Commonwealth Edison Company there are 3 sites in which we have sole responsibility. Information regarding preliminary site reviews has been presented to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for certain sites. More detailed investigations and remedial activities are complete, in progress or planned at many of these sites.

Our ERC liabilities are customarily reported estimates of future remediation costs for our former operating sites that are contaminated based on probabilistic models of potential costs and on an undiscounted basis. However, we have not yet performed these probabilistic models for all of our sites in Illinois, which will be completed in 2012. The results of the detailed site-by-site investigations will determine the extent additional remediation is necessary and provide a basis for estimating additional future costs. As of December 31, 2011, we had recorded a liability in connection with these matters of \$134 million. In accordance with Illinois Commission authorization, we have been recovering, and expect to continue to recover, these costs from our customers, subject to annual prudence reviews.

Our ERC liabilities are included as a corresponding regulatory asset. These recoverable ERC assets are a combination of accrued ERC liabilities and recoverable cash expenditures for investigation and cleanup costs. We primarily recover these costs through rate riders and expect to collect \$7 million in revenues over the next 12 months which is reflected as a current asset. We recovered \$11 million in 2011, \$13 million in 2010 and \$20 million in 2009 from our ERC rate riders.

#### Litigation

We are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. Although in some cases the company is unable to estimate the amount of loss reasonably possible in addition to any amounts already recognized, it is possible that the resolution of these contingencies, either individually or in aggregate, will require the company to take charges against, or will result in reductions in, future earnings. It is the opinion of management that the resolution of these contingencies, either individually or in aggregate, could be material to earnings in a particular period but will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

SouthStar Litigation In February 2008, a class action lawsuit was filed in the Superior Court of Fulton County in the State of Georgia against Georgia Natural Gas alleging that it charged its customers of variable rate plans prices for natural gas that were in excess of the published price, failed to give proper notice regarding the availability of potentially lower price plans and that it changed its methodology for computing variable rates. Georgia Natural Gas asserts that no violation of law or Georgia Commission rules has occurred. This lawsuit was dismissed in September 2008. The plaintiffs appealed the dismissal of the lawsuit and, in May 2009, the Georgia Court of Appeals reversed the lower court's order. In June 2009, Georgia Natural Gas filed a petition for reconsideration with the Georgia Supreme Court. In October 2009 the Georgia Supreme Court agreed to review the Court of Appeals' decision. Accordingly, the Georgia Supreme Court held oral arguments in January 2010. In March 2010 the Georgia Supreme Court upheld the Court of Appeals' decision. A settlement agreement was reached with the plaintiffs' in December 2011. SouthStar asserts that no violation of law or Georgia Commission rules has occurred, however they agreed to settle in order to avoid the further expense and inconvenience of litigation.

Litigation Related to the Nicor Merger We were named as a defendant in several class action lawsuits brought by purported Nicor shareholders challenging Nicor's merger with us. The complaints alleged that we aided and abetted alleged breaches of fiduciary duty by Nicor's Board of Directors. The shareholder actions sought, among other things, declaratory and injunctive relief, including orders enjoining the defendants from completing the merger and, in certain circumstances, damages. This lawsuit was settled on December 7, 2011.

PBR Proceeding Nicor Gas' PBR plan for natural gas costs went into effect in 2000 and was terminated January 1, 2003. Under this plan, Nicor Gas' total gas supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark. Savings and losses relative to the benchmark were determined annually and shared equally with sales customers. The PBR plan is currently under review by the Illinois Commission as there are allegations that Nicor Gas acted improperly in connection with the PBR plan. On June 27, 2002, the Citizens Utility Board (CUB) filed a motion to reopen the record in the Illinois Commission's proceedings to review the PBR plan (the "Illinois Commission Proceedings"). As a result of the motion to reopen, Nicor Gas, the staff of the Illinois Commission and CUB entered into a stipulation providing for additional discovery. The Illinois Attorney General's Office (IAGO) has also intervened in this matter. In addition, the IAGO issued Civil Investigation Demands (CIDs) to CUB and the Illinois Commission staff. The CIDs ordered that CUB and the Illinois Commission staff produce all documents relating to any claims that Nicor Gas may have presented, or caused to be presented, false information related to its PBR plan. We have committed to cooperate fully in the reviews of the PBR plan.

The Nicor Board of Directors directed management to, among other things, make appropriate adjustments to account for, and fully address, the adverse consequences to ratepayers, and conduct a detailed study of the adequacy of internal accounting and regulatory controls. The adjustments were made in prior years' financial statements resulting in a \$25 million liability. Included in this \$25 million liability is a \$4 million loss contingency. A \$2 million adjustment to the previously recorded liability, which is discussed below, was made in 2004 increasing the recorded liability to \$27 million. By the end of 2003, we completed steps to correct the weaknesses and deficiencies identified in the detailed study of the adequacy of internal controls.

On February 5, 2003, CUB filed a motion for \$27 million in sanctions against Nicor Gas in the Illinois Commission Proceedings. In that motion, CUB alleged that Nicor Gas' responses to certain CUB data requests were false. Also on February 5, 2003, CUB stated in a press release that, in addition to \$27 million in sanctions, it would seek additional refunds to consumers. On March 5, 2003, the Illinois Commission staff filed a response brief in support of CUB's motion for sanctions. On May 1, 2003, the Administrative Law Judges assigned to the proceeding issued a ruling denying CUB's motion for sanctions. CUB has filed an appeal of the motion for sanctions with the Illinois Commission, and the Illinois Commission has indicated that it will not rule on the appeal until the final disposition of the Illinois Commission Proceedings. It is not possible to determine how the Illinois Commission will resolve the claims of CUB or other parties to the Illinois Commission Proceedings.

In 2004, Nicor Gas became aware of additional information relating to the activities of individuals affecting the PBR plan for the period from 1999 through 2002, including information consisting of third party documents and recordings of telephone conversations from Entergy-Koch Trading, LP (EKT), a natural gas, storage and transportation trader and consultant with whom Nicor Gas did business under the PBR plan. Review of additional information completed in 2004 resulted in the \$2 million adjustment to the previously recorded liability referenced above.

The evidentiary hearings on this matter were stayed in 2004 in order to permit the parties to undertake additional third party discovery from EKT. In December 2006, the additional third party discovery from EKT was obtained and the Administrative Law Judge issued a scheduling order that provided for Nicor Gas to submit direct testimony by April 13, 2007. Nicor Gas submitted direct testimony in April 2007, rebuttal testimony in April 2011 and surrebuttal testimony in December 2011. In surrebuttal testimony, we sought \$6 million, which included interest due to us of \$2 million, as of December 31, 2011. The staff of the Illinois Commission, IAGO and CUB submitted direct testimony to the Illinois Commission in April 2009 and rebuttal testimony in October 2011. In rebuttal testimony, the staff of the Illinois Commission, IAGO and CUB requested refunds of \$85 million, \$255 million and \$305 million, respectively.

In February 2012, we committed to a stipulated resolution of issues with the staff of the Illinois Commission, which includes crediting Nicor Gas customers \$64 million, but does not constitute an admission of fault. This resulted in a \$37 million adjustment to the previously recorded \$27 million liability referenced above. The stipulated resolution is not final and is subject to review and approval by the Illinois Commission. The CUB and IAGO are not parties to the stipulated resolution and continue to pursue their claims in the proceeding. Evidentiary hearings on this matter are scheduled to begin on February 28, 2012. The \$64 million proposed credit is consistent with the estimated liability we recorded for this matter as part of our accounting for the merger with Nicor.

We are unable to predict the outcome of the Illinois Commission's review or our potential exposure thereunder. Since the PBR plan and historical gas costs are still under Illinois Commission review, the final outcome could be materially different than the amounts reflected in our financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

Nicor Services Warranty Product Actions In the first quarter of 2011, three putative class actions were filed against Nicor Services and Nicor Gas, and in one case against Nicor. In September 2011, the three cases were consolidated into a single class action pending in state court in Cook County, Illinois. The plaintiffs purport to represent a class of customers of Nicor Gas who purchased appliance warranty and service plans from Nicor Services and/or a class of customers of Nicor Gas who purchased the Gas Line Comfort Guard product from Nicor Services. In the consolidated

action, the plaintiffs variously allege that the marketing, sale and billing of the Nicor Services appliance warranty and service plans and Gas Line Comfort Guard violate the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, constitute common law fraud and result in unjust enrichment of Nicor Services and Nicor Gas. The plaintiffs seek, on behalf of the classes they purport to represent, actual and punitive damages, interest, costs, attorney fees and injunctive relief. While we are unable to predict the outcome of these matters or to reasonably estimate our potential exposure related thereto, if any, and have not recorded a liability associated with this contingency, the final disposition of this matter is not expected to have a material adverse impact on our liquidity or financial condition.

Municipal Tax Matters Many municipalities in Nicor Gas' service territory have enacted ordinances that impose taxes on gas sales to customers within municipal boundaries. Most of these municipal taxes are imposed on Nicor Gas based on revenues generated by Nicor Gas within the municipality. Other municipal taxes are imposed on natural gas consumers within the municipality but are collected from consumers and remitted to the municipality by us. A number of municipalities have instituted audits of Nicor Gas' tax remittances. In May 2007, five of those municipalities filed an action against Nicor Gas in state court in DuPage County, Illinois relating to these tax audits. Following a dismissal of this action without prejudice by the trial court, the municipalities filed an amended complaint. The amended complaint seeks, among other things, compensation for alleged unpaid taxes. We are contesting the claims in the amended complaint. In December 2007, 25 additional municipalities, all represented by the same audit firm involved in the lawsuit, issued assessments to Nicor Gas claiming that it failed to provide information requested by the audit firm and owed the municipalities back taxes. We believe the assessments are improper and have challenged them. While we are unable to predict the outcome of these matters or to reasonably estimate our potential exposure related thereto, if any, and have not recorded a liability associated with this contingency, the final disposition of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse impact on our liquidity or financial condition.

On February 8, 2010, the IAGO issued a subpoena to Nicor Gas to provide documents in connection with an IAGO investigation pursuant to the Illinois Whistleblower Reward and Protection Act. On November 30, 2010, the IAGO issued Nicor Gas an amended request for information. According to the subpoena, the IAGO investigation relates to billing practices used with certain customer accounts involving government funds. While we believe the billing practices comply with Illinois Commission requirements, we are unable to predict the outcome of this matter or reasonably estimate its potential exposure, if any, and have not recorded a liability associated with this matter.

Other In addition to the matters set forth above, we are involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various courts and agencies with respect to general claims, taxes, environmental, gas cost prudence reviews and other matters. Although unable to determine the ultimate outcome of these other contingencies, we believe that these amounts are appropriately reflected in our financial statements, including the recording of appropriate liabilities when reasonably estimable.

#### Note 12 - Income Taxes

#### Income Tax Expense

The relative split between current and deferred taxes is due to a variety of factors including true ups of prior year tax returns, and most importantly, the timing of our property-related deductions. Components of income tax expense shown in the Consolidated Statements of Income are shown in the following table.

In millions	2011		2010		2009	
Current income taxes						
Federal	\$ (89	) \$	37	\$	23	
State	1		12		8	
Deferred income taxes						
Federal	196		86		94	
State	18		6		11	
Amortization of investment tax						
credits	(1	)	(1	)	(1	)
Total	\$ 125	\$	140	\$	135	

The reconciliations between the statutory federal income tax rate, the effective rate and the related amount of tax for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 on our Consolidated Statements of Income are presented in the following table.

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

In millions	20	11	20	010 20		)9	
Computed tax expense at							
statutory rate	\$	109	\$	136	\$	134	
State income tax, net of federal							
income tax benefit		14		15		16	
Tax effect of net income							
attributable to the noncontrolling							
interest		(6	)	(6	)	(11	)
Amortization of investment tax							
credits		(1	)	(1	)	(1	)
Affordable housing credits		(1	)	(2	)	(2	)
Flexible dividend deduction		(2	)	(2	)	(2	)
Change in control payments		9		0		0	
Merger transaction costs		3		0		0	
Other – net		0		0		1	
Total income tax expense on							
Consolidated Statements of							
Income	\$	125	\$	140	\$	135	

#### Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

We report some of our assets and liabilities differently for financial accounting purposes than we do for income tax purposes. We report the tax effects of the differences in those items as deferred income tax assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. We measure the assets and liabilities using income tax rates that are currently in effect. Because of the regulated nature of the utilities' business, we recorded a regulatory tax liability in accordance with authoritative guidance related to rate-regulated entities, which we are amortizing over approximately 30 years (see Note 2). Our deferred tax assets include \$137 million related to an unfunded pension and other retirement benefit obligation, an increase of \$43 million from 2010.

We have provided a valuation allowance for some of these items that reduce our net deferred tax assets to amounts we believe are more likely than not to be realized in future periods. With respect to our continuing operations, we have net operating losses in various jurisdictions. Components that give rise to the net accumulated deferred income tax liability are as follows.

	As of I	December 31,	,
In millions	2011	2010	
Accumulated deferred income tax liabilities			
Property – accelerated depreciation and other property-related items	\$1,418	\$863	
Mark to market	22	11	
Investments in partnerships	42	0	
Other	91	0	
Acquisition intangibles	34	0	
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries	39	0	
Total accumulated deferred income tax liabilities	1,646	874	
Accumulated deferred income tax assets			
Deferred investment tax credits	10	4	
Unfunded pension and other retirement benefit obligation	137	94	
Other	57	11	
Total accumulated deferred income tax assets	204	109	
Valuation allowances (1)	(3	) (3	)
Total accumulated deferred income tax assets, net of valuation allowance	201	106	
Net accumulated deferred tax liability	\$1,445	\$768	

<sup>(1)</sup> Valuation allowance is due to the net operating losses on a former non-operating subsidiary that are not allowed in New Jersey.

To the extent foreign cargo shipping earnings are not repatriated to the United States, such earnings are not currently subject to taxation. In addition, to the extent such earnings are indefinitely reinvested offshore, no deferred income tax expense is recorded by us. At December 31, 2011, we had approximately \$39 million of deferred income tax liabilities related to approximately \$104 million of cumulative undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries. We have not recorded deferred income taxes of approximately \$31 million on approximately \$89 million of cumulative undistributed foreign earnings.

#### Tax Benefits

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, we did not have a liability for unrecognized tax benefits. Based on current information, we do not anticipate that this will change materially in 2012. As of December 31, 2011, we did not have a liability recorded for payment of interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

We file a United States federal consolidated income tax return and various state income tax returns. We are no longer subject to income tax examinations by the Internal Revenue Service or in any state for years before 2007.

#### Note 13 - Segment Information

Our operating segments comprise revenue-generating components of our company for which we produce separate financial information internally that we regularly use to make operating decisions and assess performance. Our determination of reportable segments considers the strategic operating units under which we manage sales of various products and services to customers in differing regulatory environments. We manage our businesses through five operating segments – distribution operations, retail operations, wholesale services, midstream operations, cargo shipping and one non-operating segment, other.

Our distribution operations segment is the largest component of our business and includes natural gas local distribution utilities in seven states - Illinois, Georgia, Virginia, New Jersey, Florida, Tennessee and Maryland. These utilities construct, manage, and maintain intrastate natural gas pipelines and distribution facilities. Although the operations of our distribution operations segment are geographically dispersed, the operating subsidiaries within the distribution operations segment are regulated utilities, with rates determined by individual state regulatory commissions. These natural gas distribution utilities have similar economic and risk characteristics.

We are also involved in several related and complementary businesses. Our retail operations segment includes retail natural gas marketing to end-use customers primarily in Georgia as well as various businesses that market retail energy-related products and services to residential and small business customers in Illinois. Additionally, our retail operations segment provides warranty protection solutions to customers and customer move connection services for utilities. Our wholesale services segment includes natural gas asset management and related logistics activities for each of our utilities as well as for nonaffiliated companies, natural gas storage arbitrage and related activities. Our midstream operations segment includes the development and operation of high-deliverability natural gas storage assets.

Our cargo shipping segment transports containerized freight between Florida, the eastern coast of Canada, the Bahamas and the Caribbean region. The cargo shipping segment also includes amounts related to cargo insurance coverage sold to its customers and other third parties. The cargo shipping segment's vessels are under foreign registry, and its containers are considered instruments of international trade. Although the majority of its long-lived assets are foreign owned and its revenues are derived from foreign operations, the functional currency is generally the United States dollar. Our cargo shipping segment also includes an equity investment in Triton, a cargo container leasing business. Profits and losses are generally allocated to investor's capital accounts in proportion to their capital contributions. Our investment in Triton is accounted for under the equity method, and our share of earnings are reported within "Other Income" on our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Our other segment includes intercompany eliminations and aggregated subsidiaries that are not significant enough on a stand-alone basis and that do not fit into one of our other five operating segments.

We evaluate segment performance using the non-GAAP measure of EBIT, that includes operating income, other income and expenses, and equity investment income. Items we do not include in EBIT are income taxes and financing costs, including interest and debt expense, each of which we evaluate on a consolidated basis. We believe EBIT is a useful measurement of our performance because it provides information that can be used to evaluate the effectiveness of our businesses from an operational perspective, exclusive of the costs to finance those activities and exclusive of income taxes, neither of which is directly relevant to the efficiency of those operations.

You should not consider EBIT an alternative to, or a more meaningful indicator of, our operating performance than operating income or net income as determined in accordance with GAAP. In addition, our EBIT may not be comparable to a similarly titled measure of another company. The reconciliations of EBIT to operating income, earnings before income taxes and net income for 2011, 2010 and 2009 are presented below.

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

In millions	2011	2010	2009
Operating income	\$440	\$500	\$476
Other (expense) income	7	(1	) 9
EBIT	447	499	485
Interest expense	136	109	101
Earnings before income taxes	311	390	384
Income taxes	125	140	135
Net income	\$186	\$250	\$249

Summarized Statements of Income, Statements of Financial Position and capital expenditure information by segment as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are shown in the following tables. Please note that our segments have changed as a result of our merger with Nicor and amounts from the periods presented have been reclassified between the segments to reflect these changes.

In millions	Distribution operations	Retail operations	Wholesale services	Midstream operations	Cargo shipping	Other and intercompany eliminations (4)	Consolidated
Operating							
revenues from							
external parties	\$1,451	\$702	\$95	\$70	\$19	\$ 1	\$ 2,338
Intercompany							
revenues (1)	146	0	3	0	0	(149	) 0
Total operating							
revenues	1,597	702	98	70	19	(148	) 2,338
Operating							
expenses							
Cost of goods							
sold	625	534	41	33	12	(148	) 1,097
Operation and							
maintenance	362	71	48	15	7	(13	) 490
Depreciation and							
amortization	160	2	1	10	1	12	186
Nicor merger							
expenses (2)	0	0	0	0	0	68	68
Taxes other than							
income taxes	44	2	3	3	0	5	57
Total operating							
expenses	1,191	609	93	61	20	(76	) 1,898
Operating income							
(loss)	406	93	5	9	(1	) (72	) 440
Other income	6	0	0	0	1	0	7
EBIT	\$412	\$93	\$5	\$9	\$0	\$ (72	\$ 447
Identifiable and							
total assets (3)	\$11,020	\$501	\$1,214	\$635	\$481	\$ 62	\$ 13,913
Goodwill	\$1,586	\$124	\$2	\$16	\$77	\$ 8	\$ 1,813
Capital							
expenditures	\$365	\$2	\$1	\$35	\$0	\$ 24	\$ 427
2010	Distribution	Retail	Wholesale	Midstream	Cargo	Other and intercompany eliminations	
In millions	operations	operations	services	operations	shipping	(4)	Consolidated
Operating							
revenues from							
external parties	\$1,349	\$840	\$121	\$46	\$0	\$ 17	\$ 2,373
Intercompany							
revenues (1)	145	0	0	0	0	(145	) 0
Total operating							
revenues	1,494	840	121	46	0	(128	) 2,373

Edgar Filing: AGL RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K

Operating								
expenses								
Cost of goods								
sold	615	657	16	16	0	(140	) 1,164	
Operation and								
maintenance	358	76	52	17	0	(6	) 497	
Depreciation and								
amortization	138	2	2	5	0	13	160	
Nicor merger								
expenses (2)	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	
Taxes other than								
income taxes	35	2	3	2	0	4	46	
Total operating								
expenses	1,146	737	73	40	0	(123	) 1,873	
Operating income								
(loss)	348	103	48	6	0	(5	) 500	
Other income								
(expense)	4	0	1	0	0	(6	) (1	)
EBIT	\$352	\$103	\$49	\$6	\$0	\$ (11	) \$ 499	
Identifiable and								
total assets (3)	\$5,484	\$259	\$1,326	\$471	\$0	\$ (20	) \$ 7,520	
Goodwill	\$404	\$0	\$0	\$14	\$0	\$ 0	\$ 418	
Capital								
expenditures	\$357	\$3	\$2	\$126	\$0	\$ 22	\$ 510	

	Distribution		Retail		/holesale		Iidstream		Cargo	inte	other and ercompar mination	ny 1s		
In millions	operations	op	perations	5	services	0	perations		shipping		(4)		Co	nsolidated
Operating														
revenues from														
external parties	\$1,348	\$	801	\$	121	\$	22	\$	0	\$	25		\$	2,317
Intercompany														
revenues (1)	138		0		0		0		0		(138	)		0
Total operating	5													
revenues	1,486		801		121		22		0		(113	)		2,317
Operating	g													
expenses														
Cost of goods	8													
sold	646		620		10		0		0		(134	)		1,142
Operation and														
maintenance	352		71		59		15		0		0			497
Depreciation														
and amortization	135		4		3		3		0		13			158
Nicor merger	r													
expenses (2)	0		0		0		0		0		0			0
Taxes other than														
income taxes	35		1		2		1		0		5			44
Total operating														
expenses	1,168		696		74		19		0		(116	)		1,841
Operating														•
income (loss)	318		105		47		3		0		3			476
Other income	)													
(expense)	9		0		0		0		0		0			9
EBIT	\$327	\$	105	\$	47	\$	3	\$		\$	3		\$	485
Identifiable and		•		·		·			-				•	
total assets (3)	\$5,222	\$	261	\$	1,168	\$	332	\$	0	\$	96		\$	7,079
Goodwill	\$404	\$	0	\$	0	\$	14	\$		\$	0		\$	418
Capita		т .		7		т		Ψ	-	-			T	
expenditures	\$354	\$	2	\$	1	\$	110	\$	0	\$	9		\$	476
(1) T	Ψ331	Ψ 1	_ 1	•	1 1		110	ψ •					Ψ	., 0

<sup>(1)</sup> Intercompany revenues – wholesale services records its energy marketing and risk management revenues on a net basis and its total operating revenues include intercompany revenues of \$449 million in 2011, \$473 million in 2010 and \$425 million in 2009.

Note 14 – Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

<sup>(2)</sup> Transaction expenses associated with the Nicor merger are shown separately to better compare year-over-year results.

<sup>(3)</sup> Identifiable assets are those used in each segment's operations.

<sup>(4)</sup> Our other segment's assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and equipment and the effect of intercompany eliminations.

Our quarterly financial data for 2011, 2010 and 2009 are summarized below. The variance in our quarterly earnings is the result of the seasonal nature of our primary business.

In millions, except per share amounts 2011	March 31	June 30	Sept. 30	Dec. 31
Operating revenues	\$878	\$375	\$295	\$790
Operating income	238	60	24	118
Net income (loss) attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	124	18	(3	) 33
Basic earnings (loss) per common share attributable to AGL			·	•
Resources Inc. common shareholders	1.60	0.23	(0.04	) 0.37
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share attributable to				
AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders	1.59	0.23	(0.04	) 0.37
2010				
Operating revenues	\$1,003	\$359	\$346	\$665
Operating income	253	48	62	137
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	134	14	22	64
Basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL				
Resources Inc. common shareholders	1.74	0.17	0.29	0.82
Diluted earnings per common share attributable to AGL				
Resources Inc. common shareholders	1.73	0.17	0.29	0.81
2009				
Operating revenues	\$995	\$377	\$307	\$638
Operating income	230	55	43	148
Net income attributable to AGL Resources Inc.	119	20	12	71
Basic earnings per common share attributable to AGL				
Resources Inc. common shareholders	1.55	0.26	0.16	0.92
Diluted earnings per share attributable to AGL Resources				
Inc. common shareholders	1.55	0.26	0.16	0.92

Our basic and diluted earnings per common share are calculated based on the weighted daily average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the quarter. Those totals differ from the basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to AGL Resources Inc. common shareholders shown in the Consolidated Statements of Income, which are based on the weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the entire year.

# ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

#### ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). No system of controls, no matter how well-designed and operated, can provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the system of controls are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide assurance that the system of controls has operated effectively in all cases. Our disclosure controls and procedures however are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of disclosure controls and procedures are met.

Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2011, in providing a reasonable level of assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods in SEC rules and forms, including a reasonable level of assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than changes resulting from the Nicor merger discussed below, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2011, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

On December 9, 2011, we completed our merger with Nicor. As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, management has elected to exclude Nicor from management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Reports of Management and Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management has assessed, and our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has audited, our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. The unqualified reports of management and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP thereon are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 9B. C	OTHER INF	ORMATION
------------	-----------	----------

None

## **PART III**

## ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

## EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Set forth below are the names, ages and positions of our executive officers along with their business experience during the past five years. All officers serve at the discretion of our Board of Directors. All information is as of the date of the filing of this report.

John W. Somerhalder II, Age 56 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer October 2007 – Present President and Chief Executive Officer March 2006 – October 2007  Ralph Cleveland, Age 49 Executive Vice President and President, Nicor Gas December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations December 2008 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations Pebruary 2005 – December 2008  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer November 2010 – Present Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer May 2006 – June 2009  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51 Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Utility Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Utility Operations June 2007 – December 2017  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57 Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer December 2011 – Present November 2008 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing November 2008 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing November 2008 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President Sequent April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010	Name, age and position with the company	Periods served
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Executive Officer Ralph Cleveland, Age 49 Executive Vice President and President, Nicor Gas Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations December 2001 – Present December 2011 Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations December 2010 – Present Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Utility Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations November 2004 – June 2007  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57 Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications December 2011 – Present Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing November 2008 – December Communications December 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent President, Sequent Peter Vice President, Business Development and Support, Prebruary 2007 – April 2010	John W. Somerhalder II. Age 56	
Ralph Cleveland, Age 49  Executive Vice President and President, Nicor Gas  Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  December 2010 – Present  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  December 2011 – Present  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  December 2011 – Present  Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  December 2011 – Present  Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  November 2004 – June 2007  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Executive Vice President, Human Resources  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010		October 2007 – Present
Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  April 2010 – Present  September 2001 – Present  September 2004 – November 2011  September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010		March 2006 – October 2007
Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  May 2006 – June 2009  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  November 2004 – November 2011  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  Papil 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010	Ralph Cleveland, Age 49	
Executive Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations  Andrew W. Evans, Age 45  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  November 2004 – November 2011  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Sequent  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Sequent  Papil 2010 – December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010		December 2011 – Present
Andrew W. Evans, Age 45  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer November 2010 – Present Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer June 2009 – November 2010  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer May 2006 – June 2009  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Utility Operations June 2007 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations November 2004 – June 2007  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer December 2011 – Present Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing November 2008 – December Communications 2011  Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010		
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51 Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations Executive Vice President, Utility Operations Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57 Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Communications  September 2004 – November 2011 – Present Senior Vice President, Human Resources  September 2008 – December 2011 – Present Senior Vice President, Human Resources  September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010	Senior Vice President, Engineering and Operations	2
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer June 2009 – November 2010 – Present Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer June 2009 – November 2010 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer May 2006 – June 2009  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations December 2011 – Present Executive Vice President, Utility Operations June 2007 – December 2011 Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations November 2004 – June 2007  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer December 2011 – Present Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing November 2008 – December Communications 2011  Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010	Andrew W. Evens. Age 45	
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51 Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations Executive Vice President, Utility Operations Executive Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  December 2011 – Present June 2007 – December 2011 Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57 Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  Pecember 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010		November 2010 _ Present
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  November 2008 – December 2011  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  President, Sequent  President, Sequent  December 2011 – Present  April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010		
Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51  Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  President, Sequent  President, Sequent  President, Business Development and Support,  Pebruary 2007 – April 2010		
Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations  Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  President, Sequent  April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010	Executive vice i resident and emer i manetar officer	171ay 2000 June 2009
Executive Vice President, Utility Operations  Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing  Communications  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  Senior Vice President, Human Resources  September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and  Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  President, Sequent  December 2011 – Present  April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010	Henry P. Linginfelter, Age 51	
Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations  Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources  September 2008 – December 2011 Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  President, Sequent  December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010	Executive Vice President, Distribution Operations	December 2011 – Present
Melanie M. Platt, Age 57  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  President, Sequent  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  February 2007 – April 2010	Executive Vice President, Utility Operations	June 2007 – December 2011
Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010	Senior Vice President, Mid-Atlantic Operations	November 2004 – June 2007
Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010		
Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Marketing Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010		
Communications Senior Vice President, Human Resources September 2004 – November 2008  Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent President, Sequent Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49 February 2007 – April 2010		
Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  President, Sequent  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011  February 2007 – April 2010		
Paul R. Shlanta, Age 54  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  September 2005 – Present December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011	Senior Vice President, Human Resources	September 2004 – November
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  September 2005 – Present December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 February 2007 – April 2010		2008
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  September 2005 – Present December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 February 2007 – April 2010		
Compliance Officer  Peter I. Tumminello, Age 49  Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent  President, Sequent  Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  December 2011 – Present  April 2010 – December 2011  February 2007 – April 2010		G 1 2005 P
Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 February 2007 – April 2010	·	September 2005 – Present
Executive Vice President, Wholesale Services, and President Sequent President, Sequent Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, December 2011 – Present April 2010 – December 2011 February 2007 – April 2010		
President, Sequent Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support,  April 2010 – December 2011 February 2007 – April 2010	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, February 2007 – April 2010	-	
Sequent	Executive Vice President, Business Development and Support, Sequent	February 2007 – April 2010

Vice President, Corporate Business Development

November 2005 – February 2007

The other information required by this item with respect to directors will be set forth under the captions "Proposal I -Election of Directors", - "Corporate Governance - Ethics and Compliance Program," – "Committees of the Board" and "-Audit Committee" in the Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders or in a subsequent amendment to this report. The information required by this item with respect to Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance will be set forth under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statement or subsequent amendment referred to above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

#### ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions "Compensation and Management Development Committee Report," "Compensation and Management Development Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation," "Director Compensation," "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" and "Executive Compensation" in the Proxy Statement or subsequent amendment referred to in Item 10 above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference, except for the information under the caption "Compensation and Management Development Committee Report" which is specifically not so incorporated herein by reference.

## ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions "Share Ownership" and "Executive Compensation -- Equity Compensation Plan Information" in the Proxy Statement or subsequent amendment referred to in Item 10 above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

#### ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions "Corporate Governance – Director Independence" and "- Policy on Related Person Transactions" and "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" in the Proxy Statement or subsequent amendment referred to in Item 10 above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

#### ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be set forth under the caption "Proposal 2 – Ratification of the Appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2012" in the Proxy Statement or subsequent amendment to referred to in Item 10 above. All such information that is provided in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

#### **PART IV**

#### ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

- (a) Documents Filed as Part of This Report.
- (1) Financial Statements Included in Item 8 are the following:
  - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
  - Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
  - Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2011 and 2010
  - Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
- Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
  - Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
  - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
    - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

#### (2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts - Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts and Income Tax Valuations for Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 31, 2011.

Schedules other than those referred to above are omitted and are not applicable or not required, or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

#### (3) Exhibits

Where an exhibit is filed by incorporation by reference to a previously filed registration statement or report, such registration statement or report is identified in parentheses. The Commission file number reference for any exhibit incorporated by reference is 001-14174 unless otherwise indicated.

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger among AGL Resources Inc., Apollo Acquisition Corp, Ottawa Acquisition LLC and Nicor Inc., dated December 6, 2010 (Exhibit 2.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 7, 2010).

Waiver entered into as of February 4, 2011, by and among AGL Resources Inc., Apollo Acquisition Corp. and Nicor Inc. (Exhibit 2.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed February 9, 2011).

- 3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed December 9, 2011, with the Secretary of State of the state of Georgia (Exhibit 3.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 13, 2011).
- 3.2 Bylaws, as amended on December 9, 2011 (Exhibit 3.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 13, 2011).
- 4.1 Specimen form of Common Stock certificate (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007).

- 4.2.b Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 6.00% Senior Notes due 2034 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 27, 2004).
- 4.2.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of September 27, 2004 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 6.00% Senior Notes due 2034 (Exhibit 4.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 27, 2004).
- 4.3.a Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 4.95% Senior Notes due 2015 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004).
- 4.3.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of December 20, 2004 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 4.95% Senior Notes due 2015 (Exhibit 4.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004).
- 4.4.a Form of AGL Capital Corporation 6.375% Senior Notes due 2016 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 14, 2007).
- 4.4.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of December 14, 2007 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 6.375% Senior Notes due 2016 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 14, 2007).
- 4.5.a Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 4.45% Senior Notes due 2013 (Exhibit 4.1.g, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
- 4.5.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of July 2, 2003 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 4.45% Senior Notes due 2013 (Exhibit 4.3.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007).
- 4.6.a Specimen AGL Capital Corporation 5.25% Senior Notes due 2019 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed August 10, 2009).
- 4.6.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of August 10, 2009 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 5.25% Senior Notes due 2019 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed August 2009).
- 4.7.a. Form of AGL Capital Corporation 5.875% Senior Notes due 2041 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed March 21, 2011).
- 4.7.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of March 21, 2011 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 5.875% Senior Notes due 2041 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed March 21, 2011).
- 4.8.a Form of AGL Capital Corporation 3.500% Senior Notes due 2021 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 20, 2011).
- 4.8.b Form of Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc. dated as of September 2011 regarding the AGL Capital Corporation 3.500% Senior Notes due 2021 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 20,

	2011).
4.9.a	Form of AGL Capital Corporation Series A Senior Notes due 2016 (Exhibit 4.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 7, 2011).
4.9.b	Form of AGL Capital Corporation Series B Senior Notes due 2018 (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 7, 2011).
4.10.a	Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1989, between Atlanta Gas Light Company and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee (Exhibit 4(a), Atlanta Gas Light Company registration statement on Form S-3, No. 33-32274).
4.10.b	First Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 16, 1992, between Atlanta Gas Light Company and NationsBank of Georgia, National Association, as Successor Trustee (Exhibit 4(a), Atlanta Gas Light Company registration statement on Form S-3, No. 33-46419).
4.11	Indenture, dated February 20, 2001 among AGL Capital Corporation, AGL Resources Inc. and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.2, AGL Resources Inc. registration statement on Form S-3, filed on September 17, 2001, No. 333-69500).

- 4.12 Indenture of Commonwealth Edison Company to Continental Illinois National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago, Trustee, dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.01, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.a Indenture of Adoption of Northern Illinois Gas Company to Continental Illinois National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago, Trustee, dated February 9, 1954 (Exhibit 4.02, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.b Supplemental Indenture, dated February 15, 1998, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to Harris Trust and Savings Bank, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.19, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.c Supplemental Indenture, dated May 15, 2001, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.18, Northern Illinois Gas Company registration statement on Form S-3 filed July 20, 2001, File No. 333-65486).
- 4.12.d Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.09, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.e Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.10, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.f Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.11, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.g Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2006, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.11, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.h Supplemental Indenture, dated August 1, 2008, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Mellon Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.01, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2008, File No. 1-7296).
- 4.12.i Supplemental Indenture, dated July 23, 2009, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Mellon Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.01, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2009, File No. 1-7296).

Supplemental Indenture, dated February 1, 2011, of Northern Illinois Gas Company to BNY Mellon Trust Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954 (Exhibit 4.12, Northern Illinois Gas Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, File No. 1-7296).

# Director Compensation Contracts, Plans and Arrangements

10.1.a	AGL Resources Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).
10.1.b	First Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.1.o, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002).
10.1.c	Second Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.1.k, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
10.1.d	AGL Resources Inc. 2006 Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan, amended and restated as of December 9, 2011 (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K dated December 15, 2011).
10.1.e	AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.1.b, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1997).
10.1.f	First Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.5, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).
10.1.g	Second Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.4, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).
10.1.h	Third Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.5, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).
10.1.i	Fourth Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.1.m, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
10.1.j	Fifth Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 1998 Common Stock Equivalent Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (Exhibit 10.1.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
10.1.k	Form of Stock Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.1.aj, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).
10.1.1	Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.1.ak, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).

10.1.m

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement, dated April 28, 2004, between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself and the Indemnities named therein (Exhibit 10.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

## Executive Compensation Contracts, Plans and Arrangements

- 10.1.aa AGL Resources Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (1999), as amended and restated as of January 1, 2002 (Exhibit 99.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).
- 10.1.ab First amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (1999), as amended and restated (Exhibit 10.1.b, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).
- 10.1.ac Second amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (1999), as amended and restated (Exhibit 10.1.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
- 10.1.ad Third amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (1999), as amended and restated. (Exhibit 10.1.ad, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.1.ae AGL Resources Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated (Annex A of AGL Resources Inc.'s Schedule 14A, File No. 001-14174, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2011).
- 10.1.af Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated.
- 10.1.ag AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Annex A of AGL Resources Inc.'s Schedule 14A, File No. 001-14174, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 19, 2007).
- 10.1.ah First Amendment to the AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.ai, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.1.ai Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.b, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
- 10.1.aj Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.c, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
- 10.1.ak Form of Performance Cash Award Agreement AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.al, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009).
- 10.1.al Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (performance based) AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).

- 10.1.am Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (time based) AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.f, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
- 10.1.an Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.ao, AGL Resources Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009).
- 10.1.ao Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement AGL Resources Inc. 2007 Omnibus Performance Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.1.h, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).
- 10.1.ap Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and Restricted Stock Agreement for key employees (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004).
- 10.1.aq Form of Performance Unit Agreement for key employees (Exhibit 10.1.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).
- 10.1.ar Forms of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement without the reload provision (LTIP and Officer Plan) (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed March 18, 2005).
- 10.1.as Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement with the reload provision (Officer Plan) (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed March 18, 2005).
- 10.1.at Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and Performance Cash Unit Agreement for key employees (Exhibit 10.2 and 10.3, respectively, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed February 24, 2006).
- 10.1.au AGL Resources Inc. Nonqualified Savings Plan as amended and restated as of January 1, 2009. (Exhibit 10.1.av, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.1.av Form of AGL Resources Inc. Annual Incentive Plan.
- 10.1.aw Description of Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for John W. Somerhalder II. (Exhibit 10.1.ay, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.1.ax AGL Resources Inc. Excess Benefit Plan as amended and restated as of January 1, 2009. (Exhibit 10.1.az, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.1.ay Form of Continuity Agreement, dated December 1, 2011, by and between AGL Resources Inc., on behalf of itself and AGL Services Company (its wholly owned subsidiary) and certain officers, including John W. Somerhalder II, Andrew W. Evans, Henry P. Linginfelter, Paul R. Shlanta and Peter I. Tumminello (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 7, 2011).

10.1.az Description of compensation for each of John W. Somerhalder, Andrew W. Evans, Henry P. Linginfelter, Paul R. Shlanta, and Peter I. Tumminello (our Named Executive Officers for the year ended December 31, 2010) incorporated herein by reference to the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of the AGL Resources Inc. Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 3, 2011 filed on March 14, 2011).

- 10.2 Guaranty Agreement, effective December 13, 2005, by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and AGL Resources Inc. (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006).
- 10.2.a Form of Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement between AGL Capital Corporation, as Issuer, AGL Resources Inc., as Guarantor, and the Dealers named therein, dated September 25, 2000 (Exhibit 10.79, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000).
- 10.2.b Guarantee of AGL Resources Inc., dated October 5, 2000, of payments on promissory notes issued by AGL Capital Corporation (AGLCC) pursuant to the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement dated September 25, 2000, between AGLCC and The Bank of New York (Exhibit 10.80, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000).
- 10.2.c Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, dated September 25, 2000, between AGL Capital Corporation and The Bank of New York (Exhibit 10.81, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000).
- 10.4 Note Purchase Agreement dated August 31, 2011, by and among AGL Capital Corporation as issuer, AGL Resources Inc. as guarantor and each of the note purchasers signatory thereto (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 7, 2011).
- 10.5.a Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated July 25, 2002 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003). (Confidential treatment pursuant to 17 CFR Sections 200.80 (b) and 240.24-b has been granted regarding certain portions of this exhibit, which portions have been filed separately with the Commission).
- 10.5.b Modification to the Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated February 1, 2005 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6.b, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.5.c Term Extension to the Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated August 1, 2005 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6.c, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.5.d Modification to the Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated June 30, 2005 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6.d, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.5.e Second Modification to the Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated February 1, 2006 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6.e, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

- 10.5.f Third Modification to the Amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement, dated February 1, 2008 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and The RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6.f, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).
- 10.5.g Fourth Modification to the amended and Restated Master Environmental Management Services Agreement dated as of February 1, 2009 by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and the RETEC Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.6, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009).
- 10.5.h Environmental Services Agreement, dated July 16, 2009, by and between Atlanta Gas Light Company and MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).
- 10.6.a SouthStar Energy Services LLC Amended and Restated Agreement, dated April 1, 2004 by and between Georgia Natural Gas Company and Piedmont Energy Company (Exhibit 10, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004).
- 10.6.b Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated July 29, 2009, by and between Georgia Natural Gas Company and Piedmont Energy Company (Exhibit 10, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009).

- 10.7 Credit Facility, dated as of December 15, 2011 among Northern Illinois Gas Company, an Illinois corporation, as borrower, the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties to this Agreement, as lenders, SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent and lender, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., as co-syndication agents and lenders, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association, as co-documentation agents and lenders (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 15, 2011).
- 10.8.a Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2011, among AGL Resources Inc., as guarantor, AGL Capital Corporation, as borrower, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and issuing lender, SunTrust Bank and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as co-syndication agents, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as issuing lender, Bank of America, N.A. and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., as co-documentation agents, and the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed November 17, 2011).
- 10.8.b Guarantee Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2011, made by AGL Resources Inc., as guarantor, in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of the date thereof, among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, the lenders named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed November 17, 2011).
- 10.9.a Credit Agreement as of September 15, 2010 by and among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, Banc of America Securities LLC and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., as joint arrangers and joint bookrunners, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein, Bank of America, N.A. and SunTrust Bank, as Co-Syndication Agents, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, UFJ, Ltd., and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 20, 2010).
- 10.9.b First Amendment as of December 21, 2010 to Credit Agreement as of September 15, 2010 by and among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, Banc of America Securities LLC and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., as joint arrangers and bookrunners, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein, Bank of America, N.A. and SunTrust Bank, as co-syndication agents, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, UFJ, Ltd., and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as co-documentation agents (Exhibit 10.5, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 23, 2010).
- 10.9.c Second Amendment as of August 11, 2011 to Credit Agreement as of September 15, 2010, as amended, by and among AGL Capital Corporation, AGL Resources Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, and the several lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).
- 10.10.d Guarantee, dated as of September 15, 2010 made by AGL Resources Inc., the guarantor, in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for the lenders parties to the Credit Agreement, dated as of September 15, 2010, among Guarantor, AGL Capital Corporation, the borrower, the lenders named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed September 20, 2010).

- 10.11.a Bridge Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of December 21, 2010 among AGL Resources, Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as administrative agent, sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, SunTrust Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as co-syndication agents, Bank of America, N.A. and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as co-documentation agents, and the several lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 23, 2010).
- 10.11.b First Amendment as of August 11, 2011 to Bridge Term Loan Credit Agreement as of December 21, 2010 by and among AGL Capital Corporation, AGL Resources Inc., Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as administrative agent, and the several lenders named therein (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).
- 10.11.c Guarantee, dated as of December 21, 2010, made by AGL Resources Inc. in favor of Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as administrative agent for the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party to the Bridge Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of the date thereof, among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, the Lenders, and Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 23, 2010).

- 10.12.a Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of December 21, 2010 among AGL Resources, Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as administrative agent, sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A., as co-syndication agents, The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as co-documentation agents, and the several lenders named therein. (Exhibit 10.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 23, 2010).
- 10.12.b Guarantee, dated as of December 21, 2010, made by AGL Resources Inc. in favor of Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as administrative agent for the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party to the Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of the date thereof, among AGL Resources Inc., AGL Capital Corporation, the Lenders, and Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.4, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K filed December 23, 2010).
- 10.13.a Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.1, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).
- 10.13.b First Amendment dated as of December 17, 2010 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.9, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K, dated December 23, 2010).
- 10.13.c Second Amendment dated as of August 11, 2011 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, as amended, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.4, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).
- 10.14.a Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, New York Branch, as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein. (Exhibit 10.2, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).
- 10.14.b First Amendment, dated as of December 17, 2010 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York Branch, as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.8, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K, dated December 23, 2010).
- 10.14.c Second Amendment dated as of August 11, 2011 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, as amended, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.5, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).

Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, New York Branch, as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein. (Exhibit 10.3, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).

- 10.15.b First Amendment dated as of December 17, 2010 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York Branch, as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.7, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K, dated December 23, 2010).
- 10.15.c Second Amendment dated as of August 11, 2011 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, as amended, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, New York Branch, as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.6, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).
- 10.16.a Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein. (Exhibit 10.4, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).
- 10.16.b First Amendment, dated as of December 17, 2010 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.6, AGL Resources Inc. Form 8-K, dated December 23, 2010).
- 10.16.c Second Amendment dated as of August 11, 2011 to Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 14, 2010, as amended, by and among Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc., AGL Resources Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and lead arranger, and the several other banks and other financial institutions named therein (Exhibit 10.7, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011).

- 12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
- AGL Resources Inc. Code of Ethics for its Chief Executive Officer and its Senior Financial Officers (Exhibit 14, AGL Resources Inc. Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).
- 21 Subsidiaries of AGL Resources Inc.
- 23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm.
- Powers of Attorney (included on signature page hereto).
- 31.1 Certification of John W. Somerhalder II pursuant to Rule 13a 14(a).
- 31.2 Certification of Andrew W. Evans pursuant to Rule 13a 14(a).
- 32.1 Certification of John W. Somerhalder II pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
- 32.2 Certification of Andrew W. Evans pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
- 101.INS XBRL Instance Document. (1)
- 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. (1)
- 101.CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase. (1)
- 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase. (1)
- 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase. (1)
- 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase. (1)
- (1) Furnished, not filed

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report are the following documents formatted in extensible business reporting language (XBRL): (i) Document and Entity Information; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at December 31, 2011 and 2010; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009; (vi) Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009; (vi) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009; and (vii) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and otherwise are not subject to liability. We also make available on our web site the Interactive Data Files submitted as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report.

(b) Exhibits filed as part of this report.

See Item 15(a)(3).

(c) Financial statement schedules filed as part of this report.

See Item 15(a)(2).

#### **SIGNATURES**

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned; thereunto duly authorized, on February 7, 2012.

#### AGL RESOURCES INC.

By: /s/ John W. Somerhalder II
John W. Somerhalder II
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

#### Power of Attorney

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John W. Somerhalder II, Andrew W. Evans, Paul R. Shlanta and Bryan E. Seas, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of February 7, 2012.

Signatures	Title

/s/ John W. Somerhalder II Chairman, President

John W. Somerhalder II and Chief Executive

Officer

(Principal Executive

Officer)

/s/ Andrew W. Evans Executive Vice
Andrew W. Evans President and Chief

Financial Officer (Principal Financial

Officer)

/s/ Bryan E. Seas Senior Vice President Bryan E. Seas and Chief Accounting

and Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal

Accounting Officer)

/s/ Sandra N. Bane

Sandra N. Bane

Director

/s/ Thomas D. Bell, Jr. Thomas D. Bell, Jr.	Director
/s/ Norman R. Bobins Norman R. Bobins	Director
/s/ Charles R. Crisp Charles R. Crisp	Director
/s/ Brenda J. Gaines Brenda J. Gaines	Director
/s/ Arthur E. Johnson Arthur E. Johnson	Director
/s/ Wyck A. Knox, Jr. Wyck A. Knox, Jr.	Director
/s/ Dennis M. Love Dennis M. Love	Director
/s/ Charles H. McTier Charles H. McTier	Director
/s/ Dean R. O'Hare Dean R. O'Hare	Director
/s/ Armando J. Olivera Armando J. Olivera	Director
/s/ John E. Rau John E. Rau	Director
/s/ James A. Rubright James A. Rubright	Director
/s/ Bettina M. Whyte Bettina M. Whyte	Director
/s/ Henry C. Wolf Henry C. Wolf	Director

Schedule II

AGL Resources Inc. and Subsidiaries

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS - FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011.

	Additions				
	Balance at beginning	Charged to costs and	Charged to other		Balance at end of
Description	of period	expenses	accounts	Deductions	period
2009					
Allowance for uncollectible accounts	\$16	\$25	\$0	\$(27)	\$14
Income tax valuation	3	0	0	0	3
2010					
Allowance for uncollectible accounts	\$14	\$22	\$0	\$(20)	\$16
Income tax valuation	3	0	0	0	3
2011					
Allowance for uncollectible accounts	\$16	\$20	\$0	\$(19)	\$17
Income tax valuation	3	0	0	0	3